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M Dria: Shawholidew and Swertow,

2020 - Conquer Greater Heights

In 2020, Vietnamese economy witnessed two unex-
pected waves of COVID-19 outbreaks, the first from
March 2020 to April 2020, the second from July
2020 to September 2020.

Covid-19 - a "Black Swans" phenomenon wreaked
havoc on the economy and the market in 2020. The
pandemic caused grave consequences to the
entire business system including the real estate
industry.

The unpredictable progression of the epidemic
along with other influencing factors such as quality
supply shortage, legal environment changes,
circumspect credit policy, have caused real estate
businesses to face many challenges. In such a
context, HPX has focused on restructuring the
organization, rebranding, organizing training
courses to improve employee productivity, as well
as applying technology in business activities.

In addition, HPX has urged to facilitate the invest-
ment preparation, complete the legal framework
for assigned projects to implement promptly. The
Company initiated numerous new projects to
create supply for 2021 and the following years such
as Mai Pha New Urban Area Project - Lang Son, the
5A urban area project in De Tham, Cao Bang, the
project on resort combining commercial services
and housing in Ha Phong ward - Ha Long city -
Quang Ninh province, the Housing project in Fidel
Park - Dong Ha - Quang Tri.

With the goal of "Conquer Greater Heights”, in 2020

@ Annual Report 2020

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock

Company (HPX), | would like to wish you health, happiness, and success!

Over the past two decades, Hai Phat has gradually built a solid foundation to overcome the ups
and downs with the solidarity, dynamism of the Board of Directors, and the effort, creativity of
employees. The Company has obtained remarkable achievements, becomes the leading enter-

prise in the field of real estate development in Vietnam.

With the goal of becoming "A real estate developer with the most complete and synchronized
ecosystem in Vietham", we continue to strengthen our organization management, business
activities based on our 5 core values "Customer is our focus - Quality is our top priority - Creativi-

ty is our driving force - Efficiency is our goal - Responsibility is our commitment”. "

we officially entered the resort property market
and successfully affirm our brand position with The
Seahara project. In particular, The Seahara Phu Yen
Shop Villas with a scale of 1.4 hectares with 46 shop-
houses in Phu Yen was the first resort property
project of Hai Phat. The project'is under construc-
tion and will be launched this year. In addition, in
2020 we were selected to be the developer of the
Vinh My Resort project - Thua Thien Hue.

In terms of the resort property market, over the
years, we have expanded our land funds in the
coastal provinces of Da Nang, Nha Trang, Binh
Thuan, Phu Yen .. which are available for imple-
mentation in the following years. This is the founda-
tion for Hai Phat to expand and support sustainable
development in the long-term.

These results indicate the relentless efforts of Hai
Phat members, customers loyalty and support

from the community.
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2021-Construction of Sustainable Value

In 2021 Hai Phat set the goals to expand the scale of
investment area, focus on research our products
with the customer-centric mindset.

With the complicated progression of the Covid-19,
Hai Phat determined that in 2021, we will prioritize
stability, complete the ecosystem, as well as expand
land fund with prime locations in the provinces and
cities, which are accessible when market gradually
recovers.

Hai Phat will continue to branding in the potential
land funds such as: Bac Giang, Hanoi, Quang Ninh,
Cao Bang, Phan Thiet, Thua Thien Hue, Can Tho
with large-scale projects such as: My Do project -
Bac Giang with the scale of 9.2ha, the project on
resort combining commmercial services and housing
in Ha Phong ward - Ha Long city - Quang Ninh with
the size of 12.6 ha; No5A Urban Development
Project in De Tham (Cao Bang) with a scale of 4.35
ha; Phu Hai residential area, Phu Hai ward (Phan
Thiet - Binh Thuan) with 5.6 ha scale; An Binh New
Urban Area Project (Areas 1 and 2) with a scale of
223 ha in An Binh ward (Ninh Kieu - Can Tho); An
Khanh New Urban Area Project (Hanoi).

2020 is the beginning of Hai Phat's journey to
become "The real estate developer with the most
comprehensive ecosystem in Vietham" - an
ecosystem created added value in the real estate
development chain with a stable and sustainable

management system.

.' )*L

Dear Valued Shareholders, the achievements that
Hai Phat has built up today are derived from cease-
less efforts of the past. The journey to success is far
and difficult to achieve. However, with dedication,
desire to conquer, and efforts of the Board of Direc-
tors, Executive Board, and employees, along with
harmony from Shareholders, we affirm that Hai
Phat will together overcome all difficulties and
challenges, continue to sustainably "Conquer
GCreaterHeights".

On behalf of the Board of Directors and employees
of Hai Phat, | would like to express my sincere grati-
tude and wish customers, partners, and sharehold-
ers Health - Happiness - Success.

| always want to receive your trust, support, and
companionship in the future journey.

Sincerely thank you!

Chairman of Bod

Do Quy Hai



» GENERAL INFORMATION

Name of Organizer: Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Company
Charter Capital: 2,644,945,820,000 VND
Owner’s Capital: 2,644,945,820,000 VND

Address: 5% floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New Urban Area,
La Khe Ward, Ha Dong District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Telephone: +84 2432 080 666
Facsimiles: +84 2432 080 566
Website: haiphat.com.vn

+Stock ticker: HPX

° Vision

- Become a leading enterprise in the field of Vietnam Real Estate.

- That value will be delivered through each project with the foundation of pres-
tige and trust.

e Mission

- Create high-quality products and services to customers.

- Build a professional working environment, maximize the ability of each individ-
ual, create opportunities for enthusiastic talents to develop their long-term
careers.

- Give shareholders the optimal and sustainable benefits through a standard cor-
poration, governance model and professional management.

- Harmonize social benefits with business benefits, work together to contribute

to the cohrﬁﬁt‘jﬁﬁiy, ,p_rQWe environment, and create a lasting beautiful civi-
lized life. s ’M
el . L ST
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D BUSINESS KEY ACTIVITIES

o Project Development

.o

A

Real Estate Project Development has
always played a vital role in business key
activities, making major contributions to
the revenue stream of the Company since
the foundation until now. Hai Phat provid-
ed to the market thousands of products
with main lines such as apartments, villas,
shophouses, middle and high-end town-
houses, etc. Hai Phat's business philoso-
phy is to create differentiated real estate
products in each project, shape new stan-
dards for the future. Every product is the
optimal combination of sustainable living
environment and feature diversified utili-
ties in one project. Thanks to that, the
brand of the Company is increasingly
known and builds trust from customers.

Various buildings not only meet its func-
tional demand but also becomes the
symbol of the Company such as The Pride
project - An Hung urban area, To Huu (Ha
Dong). The project consists of a 45-storey

Annual Report 2020

building and 3 35-storey buildings, this is
the tallest building in Hanoi at the time of
2015, invested by a domestic private enter-
prise and implemented by local workers.
In addition, The Vesta Social Housing is
also a project that receives prestigious
awards including Vietnam National Real
Estate Award for the best Social Housing
project in 2018, Top 10 best public housing
projects in 2019 etc.

In the early stage, Hai Phat was renowned
as a real estate developer in the west of
Hanoi. The scale of projects is also con-
stantly expanding, from a few hundred
billion to thousands of billion with numer-
ous types of product lines from residential
to resort real estate. The growth in the
scale of the project over time is a clear
evident of the ability to implement and
develop real estate projects of the Compa-
ny to shareholders and customers.

e Sale and Distribution

Owning the major capital contribution in
the Hai Phat Land - one of the leading real
estate distributors in Vietnam, sale and
distribution is always the key activities in
the development strategy of Hai Phat.
With a team of members with 10 years of
experience in working and building distri-
bution systems in the market, until now
Hai Phat Land has built a network of more
than 40 branches and representative
offices; nearly'2,000 sale.staffs and more
than 2,500 collaborators.

Hai Phat Land is playing the role as a
bridge between the project developer
and the market. Not only renowned with

the distribution channel, the company
also provides marketing and communica-
tion solutions for real estate projects; real
estate secondary investment; training
programs of sales representatives for real
estate developers or distributors.

Hai Phat Land's growth was demonstrat-
ed by the expanding of the distribution
networks abroad - South Korea and the
Company planned to open more branch-
es in Taiwan and Singapore in the near
future. This not only shows the expansion
of the Company but also helps the Com-
pany to attract the flow of foreign invest-
ment.

www.haiphat.com.vn @



e Operational Management

Operational Management is a new business
activity of Hai Phat recently with the transfer
of owned shares from PSP Urban Services
Joint Stock Company and the establishment

of IWG Hotel and Resort Joint Stock Company.

In the residential real estate sector, the com-
pany provides full services of real estate opera-
tional management including: maintenance,
cleaning, security, property management, etc.
The formation of IWG Hotel and Resort Joint

wh

4

Stock Company is considered as the first step
of the company to entering the resort real
estate market. While some investors who have
only implemented project development and
sales, outsource the operational manage-
ment, Hai Phat will construct a complete
ecosystem from construction to operational
management in order to create a stable cash
flow and generate profit for shareholders.

With 17 years of experience in project develop-
ment, Hai Phat continues to pursue its goal of
becoming a leading real estate developer in
Vietnam. Until now, Hai Phat has completed
and put into operation various projects, con-
tribute to local economic development. These
projects are Van Phu New Urban Area (joint
venture project with Van Phu Investment
Joint Stock Company); The Pride — complex of
commercial, office and luxury apartment; Tan
Tay Do - complex of commercial, office and
apartment; social housing Phu Lam - The
Vesta; Phu Luong New Urban Area; low-rise
housing auction project Trau Quy, Gia Lam -
Thuan An Central Lake; debt restructure proj-
ect HPC Landmark 105; auction project No.23
Long Bien - Hanoi Homeland; Roman Plaza -
complex of commercial building, office and
apartment. At the same time, Hai Phat also

BUSINESS LOCATIONS

has developed land funds at reasonable cost
and located in the provinces and cities with
potential economic growth such as Lang Son,
Cao Bang, Lao Cai, Bac Giang, Hanoi, Nam
Dinh, Thai Binh, Thanh Hoa, Da Nang, Nha
Trang, Can Tho, Binh Thuan, Phu Yen ... with
the target products including villas, town-
houses, commercial townhouses, and
mid-end and high-end apartments.

@ Annual Report 2020 www.haiphat.com.vn @



D HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2017, the company increased its charter capital from VND

750 billion to VND 1500 billion and Dragon Capital Fund /,2020
became a strategic shareholder of Hai Phat when holding ,’
15% of the company's charter capital. /
,/
In 2011, the Company continued to ’/,
increased its charter capital from PR
300 billion VND to 750 billion VND in ___a’
order to expand the business and ‘0 ——m—meeee
finance project implementation. ,/
s 2018
/
/
2003 Hai Phat Investment Joint b 4 /
Stock Company was estab- B v ,’
lished with the original name . /
of Hai Phat Construction - Tour- 2017 7
ism Joint Stock Company with 20M \/’
charter capital of 8 billion VND. " e . "

- In 2019 and 2020, after being listed on
HOSE, the completed and restricted
system empower Hai Phat to sustainably
thrive in the future with three core busi-
ness areas: project development, project
distribution and operational manage-
ment. The affiliated and subsidiaries
companies in the ecosystem are clearly
ed towards the core business

a o

e

e - In 2021, Hai Phat continues to complete
, 2018, Hai Phat was .
A . the ecosystem an e affiliated com-
ially listed on the Ho Chi . . . :

” panies will be | on the stock market
=k Exchange (HOSE) toward a perférct governance system
with the ticker symbol of HPX :

| and charter capital increased to iz,—"
2008, the Company increased ' VND 2,000 billion on December

its charter capital to 300 billion 2018.

VND, with the main business

line - real estate development

and officially changed its

name to Hai Phat Investment

Joint Stock Company.

@ Annual Report 2020 www.haiphat.com.vn @




SHAREHOLDER'S STRUCTURE

Shareholder’s Structure

Shareholder Number of shares Ratios Number of Shareholders

1. Founding Shareholders

Domestic 105,899,710  40.04 % 1
Foreign 0 0 0
2. Shareholders owning over 5% share capital
Domestic 105,899,710  40.04 % 1
Foreign 23,083,232 8.72% 1
3. Shareholder
Domestic 122,289,037 46.24% 490
Foreign 13,222,603 4.99% 14
4. Treasury Stocks 0 0%
5. Shares are restricted for transfer 0 0% (]
6. Total 264,494,582 100% 506
Domestic 228,188,747 86.27% 491
Foreign 36,305,835 13.73% 15

List of Shareholders owning over 5% share capital

Shareholders Number of shares Ratios
1. Do Quy Hai 105,899,710 40.04 %
2. Vietnam Enterprise Investments Limited u \ 23,083,232 8.72%
Total '|I28,982,942 48.76%

Equity before increased ~ Change in Equity increased  Equity after increased

20/10/2020 2,299,955,060,000 344,990,76 2,644,945,820,000 Share issuance to pay dividend

Share transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons.

Transaction Relationship with Beginning ownership Ending ownership Description

executor internal persons

Number of shares Percentage  Number of shares Percentage

Mrs. Wife of Sold shares & received
1. 18,399,677 8.0% 9,928,207 3.75%

Chu Thi Luong Do Quy Hai dividend by shares

www.haiphat.co




Transactions between the Company and its affiliated persons and between
the Company and its major shareholders, internal persons and affiliated

persons at December 31 2020.

No Name of organization/ Relationship Time of transaction Resolution No./ Decision No. Content, quantity, No Name of organization/ Relationship Time of transaction

individual individual

approved by GMoS/ BoD (*)  total value of transaction

with the Company with the Company with the Company with the Company

Resolution No./ Decision No.

Content, quantity,

approved by GMoS/ BoD (*) total value of transaction

1 Chau Son Land Subsidiaries and related 25/3/2020 Resolution No. 02A/NQ-HDQT Rent payment 5 Ruby Land Investment and Subsidiaries 03/02/2020 Decision No. 67/QD-HBQT Centralized Cash
Joint Stock Company organizations of dated 06/01/2017 Development One Member Company dated 17/09/2018 Management
(formally called internal persons Limited (formally called Dong Do Land
08/10/2020 Decision No. 40/QD-HDQT Shares transfer 16/09/2020 Decision No. 39/Qb-HDQT Transfer of
Chau Son Land Co., LTD) One Member Limited Company)
dated 16/09/2020 dated 16/09/2020 contributed capital
02/11/2020 Resolution No. 32/NQ-HDPQT  Investment cooperation 6 Hai Phat Real Estate Investment Subsidiaries and related 17/04/2020 Resolution No. 10/NQ-HDQT Receive Real
dated 15/10/2020 agreement and Business Joint Stock organizations of dated 09/04/2020 Estate transfer
Company internal persons
08/12/2020 Resolution No. 08/NQ-HDQT Trading activities of 17/4/2020 Resolution No. 12/NQ-HDQT Assurance of third
dated 22/3/2019 commercial real estate dated 16/04/2020 party obligation
08/12/2020 Resolution No. 08/NQ-HDPQT Trading activities of 10/12/2020 Resolution No. 32/NQ-HDQT  Investment cooperation
dated 22/3/2019 commercial real estate . dated 15/10/2020 agreement
28/12/2020 Resolution No. 32/NQ-HDPQT  Investment cooperation 7 Mr. Lé Viét Diing Internal persons 25/3/2020 Decision No. 10/QD-HDQT Transfer of shares
dated 15/10/2020 agreement dated 24/03/2020
2 Hai Phat Binh Thuan One Subsidiaries and related 01/06/2020 Decision No. 71/2019/Qb-HDQT Transfer expenses 8 Ms. Tran Thuy Anh Affiliated persons 25/3/2020 Decision No. 11/QD-HDQT Transfer of shares
Member Company Limited organizations of dated 25/12/2019 and pay on behalf dated 24/03/2020
internal persons
03/12/2020 Resolution No. 32/NQ-HPQT  Investment cooperation 9 PSP Urban Services Joint Related organizations 31/08/2020 Resolution No. 39/NQ-HDQT Building management
dated 15/10/2020 agreement Stock Company of internal persons dated 31/7/2019 services
31/12/2020 Decision No. 71/2019/Qb-HDQT  Transfer expenses and 01/09/2020 Resolution No. 02A/NQ-HDQT Land lease contract
dated 25/12/2019 payment on behalf dated 06/01/2017
3 HP Hospitality Nha Trang Subsidiaries and related 01/06/2020 Decision No. 71/2019/Qb-HBQT  Transfer expenses and 10  Heritage Real Estate Vietnam  Subsidiaries and related 02/07/2020 Decision No. 67/QD-HDQT Centralized Cash
Company Limited organizations of ~ dated 25/12/2019 payment on behalf One Member Company organizations of dated 17/09/2018 Management
internal persons Limited internal persons
oo expenses and 19/10/2020 DQT  Investment Cooperation
v
- ; . Agreement
- o
4 Hai Phat Thu Do t Related organizations 25/03/2020 Resolution No. 08/NQ-HDQ 11 Investment Cooperation
Joint Stock Compal of internal persons dated 25/3/2020 of internal persons dated 29/12/2020 Agreement
: 28/5/2020 Decision No. 19/QD-HBQT Transfer of shares Topaz PM Vietnam Investment  Subsidiaries and related 11/12/2020 Decision No. 54/QD-HBQT Regular Consultant
- d dated 22/04/2020 - and Development One organizations of dated 10/12/2020
- el R .
: Member Company Limited internal persons
- 11/12/2020 Decision No. 54/Qb-HERBject management consulting
dated 10/12/2020  and construction supervision
Sapphire Invest One Member Subsidiaries 29/10/2020 Decision No. 67/QD-HDQT Centralized Cash

* GMoS: General Meeting of Shareholders

* BoD: Board of Directors

B&o cao thusng nién HPX 2020

Company Limited

dated 17/09/2018

Management

www.haiphat.com.vn
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Strategy
Committee
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Directors

Audit
Committee

Deputy CEO,
Head of Investment

Deputy CEO,
Head of Deployment

Deputy CEO,
Head of Sales

Deputy CEO,
Head of Operation

Deputy CEO,
Head of Finance -

Accounting &
Investor
Relations
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COMPANY STRUCTURE

Chau Son PSP Urban IWG
Land Joint Stock Services Joint Stock Hotel and Resort

Company Company J((;:)nnt1 s;?‘;k

Ruby Topaz PM
Land Investment Sapphire Diamond IC Vietnam Investment
& Development One Invest One Member One Member Company & Development One
Member Company Company Limited Limited Member Company
Limited Limited

Subsidiaries

Hali Phat P Hai Phat Heritage
Real Estate Hospitality Binh Thuan Real Estate Vietham
Investment and Nha Trang One Member One Member

Business Joint Company Company Company Limited
Stock Company Limited Limited

Hai Phat

Investment
Joint Stock

Company Civil
Engineering
Construction
Corporation
No.5 - JSC

BT Hai Phat
Ha Dong Thu Do
Limited Investment Joint
Company _ Stock Company

Joint Ventures
Companies

@ Annual Report 2020 www.haiphat.com.vn @



INTRODUCTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Do Quy Hai
Chairman of Board of Director

Born in 1969, Mr Hai was the founding shareholder of Hai Phat
Investment Joint Stock Company since its foundation. He has been the
Chairman of the Board of Directors since December 15, 2003 until now.

Qualification:
- Engineer of Civil - Industrial Construction

- Master of Business Administration

Experience:

- From 1989 to 2003, he worked at several construction companies of Ha
Tay province, Ministry of National Defense and Quang Ninh Housing
Investment and Construction Investment Joint Stock Company - this was
the solid foundation for the formation of Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock
Company in 2003.

- From 2003 up to now, he has worked at Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock
Company. At the beginning of the company’s development, he served as
Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO, from 2007 to now, he was
the Chairman of the Board of Directors. In addition, he is also Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Board of Members in
companies with contributed capital from Hai Phat Investment Joint
Stock Company.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hai Phat Thu Do Investment Joint
Stock Company;

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hai Phat Real Estate Investment
and Business Joint Stock Company

- Chairman of Hai Phat Binh Thuan One Member Company Limited

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 105,899,710
shares, accounting for 40.04%.

@ Annual Report 2020

Mr. Nguyen Van Phuong
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Born in 1979, Mr Nguyen Van Phuong joined the Company since 2016 as
Deputy General Director and after that he was appointed as Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors from 2017 until now.

Qualification:

- Construction engineer

Experience:

Mr. Nguyen Van Phuong spent years working in different organizations in
real estate development and business industry where he held different
positions, especially in industrial real estate.

Since his participation, he held important positions such as Deputy CEO
of Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Company and now Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors. He is also CEO, members of the Board of Directors
and Chairman of the Board of Directors of subsidiaries.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hai Phat Kinh Bac Joint Stock
Company;

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Civil Engineering Construction
Corporation No.5 - JSC.(CIENCO No.5) and Director of Cienco 5 - Hanoi
Branch;

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of S.E.A Thuan Phuoc Real Estate
Joint Stock Company;

- CEQ of An Viet Infrastructure Development and Investment Joint Stock
Company;

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 528,989 shares,
accounting for 0.20%.

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
cum Chairman of Strategy Committee,
non-executive member of the Board of Directors

Born in 1973, Mr Pham Minh Tuan joined the Company since 2009 as
Specialist of Investment Division and held various positions of increasing
responsibility including Deputy Head of Department and Head of
Investment Department, Assistant to Chairman of the Board of Directors,
CEOQ, member of the Board of Directors and from June 2020 to now, he
has been the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Qualification:
- Bachelor of Economics

- Master of business administration

Experience:

- Since his graduation, he worked at Transport Engineering Consulting
Joint Stock Company member of Civil Engineering Construction Corpora-
tion No.8.

- From 2003 to 2007: He held the position of Deputy CEO of Joint Stock
Company of Thai Binh Duong Group.

- From 2007 to 2009: he was CEO of Tran Hung Dao Joint Stock Company.

- Since his participation, he also held positions in the Company’s
subsidiaries such as Director, CEO, Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Chairman of the Board of Members in accordance with the goals and
strategies of the Company.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Chairman of the Board of Members and CEO of Hai Phong Land
Development Company Limited.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights 16,925 shares,
accounting for 0.0064%.

Mr. Le Viet Dzung
Non-executive member of the Board of Directors

Bornin 1975, Mr Le Viet Dzung joined the Company since 2017 as Deputy
CEO and currently a member of the Board of Directors.

Qualification:
- Construction engineer

- Master of business administration

Experience:

- Since his graduation, from 1995 to 2010, Mr. Le Viet Dzung served
as specialists and head of unit in different departments of Ha Tay
province, especially the Department of Construction of Ha Tay and
Hanoi.

- From 2010 to 2013, he was Deputy CEO of Nhan Hoa Investment Joint
Stock Company

- From 2013 to 2015, he was Deputy CEOQ of Urban Construction and
Investment Consulting Joint Stock Company.

- Before his appointment in the Company in 2017, Mr. Le Viet Dzung
held different position in the Company’s subsidiaries such as members
of the Board of Directors, Deputy CEO

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of 283 Investment Joint Stock
Company;

- Deputy CEO of Dai Dong A Investment Joint Stock Company

- Member of the Board of Directors of Railway Urban and Infrastructure
Development Investment Joint Stock Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 1,234,311 shares,
accounting for 0.47%
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Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa
Independent member of the Board of Directors
and Chairman of Audit Committee

Born in 1985, Mr Tran Vu Thai Hoa was appointed as an independent
member of the Board of Directors since June 2020 and concurrently
holds the position of Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Qualification:

- Bachelor of Banking and Finance

Experience:

- After his graduation, Mr Tran Vu Thai Hoa held various positions of
increasing responsibility mainly in financial institutions and the Ministry
of Finance such as specialist, head of department, director of
department, members of the Board of Directors. With years of experience
in financial and capital markets, Mr. Hoa has proposed requests and
criticism from the perspective of investors, financial institutions as well
as recommendations for the Company to enhance its corporate
governance, in order to construct a sustainable and transparent listed
company on the stock market.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoa Binh Construction
Investment Joint Stock Company

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Thai Binh Investment and Trade
Joint Stock Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 0
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Mr. Do Danh Tri
Independent member of the Board of Directors

Born in 1976, Mr Do Danh Tri joined the Board of Directors of the Compa-
ny as an independent member since October 2020.

Qualification:
- Bachelor of Laws
- Master in Financial Management

- Master of Laws

Experience:

- From his graduation to 2010, Mr Do Danh Tri served as specialist, deputy
chief of the district office, and chief of district justice department at Binh
Phuoc Provincial People's Committee.

- From 2010 to 2017, Mr Do Danh Tri served as head of training
department at Hanoi National University.

- From 2016 up to now, Mr. Do Danh Tri has been Member of the Board of
Directors of Vuong Phat Real Estate Joint Stock Company.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Vuong Phat Real Estate Investment
Joint Stock Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 0

INTRODUCTION TO THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

Mr. Doan Hoa Thuan
CEO

Born in 1975, since 2017 he served as Deputy CEO and now CEO of the
Company.

Qualification:
- Bachelor of Economics, Accounting major;

- Master of Business Administration.

Experience:

- From his graduation until 2016, Mr. Doan Hoa Thuan held various
positions of increasing responsibility such as specialist, controller,
deputy of financial department, financial director, deputy CEO, CEO
director, member of the Board of Directors at Ha Long Cement Joint
Stock Company, Song Da Finance Company, Song Da Thang Long Joint
Stock Company and Song Da Corporation.

- From 2017 to now, Mr. Doan Hoa Thuan has served as Deputy CEO, CEO
and concurrently holds several positions in some subsidiaries such as
Vice Chairman of Board of Directors, Chairman of Board of Directors.
Now, to ensure the independence and objectivity in management, Mr.
Doan Hoa Thuan only holds the position of CEO of the Company and the
person in charge of corporate governance.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 66,349 shares,
accounting for 0.03% '

Mr Pham Huy Thong
Deputy CEO

Born in 1978, since October 2010 Mr Thong has served as of Deputy
Head of Finance and Accounting Department, Controller and currently
Deputy CEO of the Company.

Qualification:

- Bachelor of Economics.

Experience:

- Since his graduation until 2010, Mr. Pham Huy Thong held different
positions at Glass and Ceramic Construction Corporation (Viglacera) and
its subsidiaries such as specialist of Department of Accounting-Finance,
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

- Since his participation, in addition to the positions hold in the Company,
Mr. Pham Huy Thong has also served in its subsidiaries as Controller and
in charge of financial department. In May 2020, Mr. Pham Huy Thong was
appointed as Deputy CEO.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 10,154 shares,
accounting for 0.004%
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Mr. Dinh The Quynh
Deputy CEO

Born in 1985, since April 2016, Mr. Dinh The Quynh held different
important positions in the Company and its subsidiaries including Head
of Sales Department, Deputy CEO in charge of Sales, Deputy CEO and
currently Deputy CEO of the Company.

Qualification:

- Bachelor of Foreign Trade.

Experience:

- From his graduation until 2016, Mr. Dinh The Quynh held different
positions in various commercial companies, investment companies and
real estate businesses including specialist, deputy CEO of real estate
trading floors, deputy director and deputy CEO of the company.

- Mr. Dinh The Quynh was appointed as Deputy CEO in April 2019. In
addition to the position of the Company's Deputy CEO, Mr. Dinh The
Quynh also holds several management positions in its subsidiaries,
including:

+ Deputy CEO of Hai Phat Real Estate Investment and Business Joint
Stock Company;

« Deputy CEO of Hai Phat Thu Do Investment Joint Stock Company.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Chau Son Real Estate Joint Stock
Company;

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of IWG Hotel and Resort Joint Stock
Company;

- Member of the Board of Directors of PSP Urban Services Joint Stock
Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights: 0
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Mr. Do Quy Thanh
Deputy CEO

Born in 1975, since 2016 Mr. Do Quy Thanh held different important
positions in the Company such as Head of Construction Inspection
Department, Deputy Chief of Office of the Board of Directors and now
Deputy CEO.

Qualification:

- Engineer of Civil - Industrial Construction.

Experience:

- Prior his participation in the Company, Mr. Do Quy Thanh had years of
experience working in construction companies, served as technical
specialist, construction manager and director.

- Since his participation, Mr. Do Quy Thanh has been in charge of
construction inspection, internal control, and operation management. Mr.
Do Quy Thanh was appointed as Deputy CEO in May 2020.

List of Positions hold at other organizations:

- Chairman of Board of Directors of PSP Urban Services Joint Stock
Company;

- Deputy CEO of Chau Son Real Estate Joint Stock Company;

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Phuc Thanh Trade and Concrete
Construction Joint Stock Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting rights 7,755,284 shares,
accounting for 2.93%

Mr. Nguyen Trong Thiet
Deputy CEO

Born in 1983, since 2011 Mr. Nguyen Trong
Thiet held different important positions in the
Company such as investment specialist, head
of investment department, Investment director
and now Deputy CEO.

Qualification:

- Construction engineer.

Experience:

- From his graduation to 2011, Mr. Nguyen Trong
Thiet held important positions at several design
and investment consulting firms such as
specialists, head of department and branch
deputy director.

- Mr. Nguyen Trong Thiet was appointed as
Deputy CEO from May 2020. In addition to his
position in the Company, Mr. Nguyen Trong
Thiet also held several positions in its
subsidiaries including:

+ CEO of Hai Phat Binh Thuan One Member
Company Limited;

+ Chairman of Heritage Real Estate Vietnam
One Member Company Limited;

+ Chairman Diamond IC One Member Company
Limited;

+ Member of the Board of Directors of Sea
Thuan Phuoc Real Estate Joint Stock Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting
rights 3,383 shares, accounting for 0.001%

Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan
Deputy CEO

Born in 1985, since 2011 Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan
held different important positions in the
Company such as specialist, head of Planning -
Technical Department and now Deputy CEO.

Qualification:

- Electric Engineer.

Experience:

- From his graduation to 2011, Mr. Ngo Quoc
Huan worked as a technical officer at compa-
nies in electromechanical engineering, urban
construction investment.

- Since his participation, Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan
has held important positions including
technical specialist, deputy head of the
department, head of the department at the
project management boards of Tan Tay Do, The
Pride, department of planning - engineering,
Department of Auction-Economy. He was
appointed as Deputy CEO from May 2020.

- In addition, Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan is also the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Topaz PM
Vietnam Investment and Development One
Member Company Limited.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting
rights: 3,383 shares, accounting for 0.001%

Mr. Le Hong Son
Chief Accountant

Born in 1971, he started working at the Compa-
ny since April 2020 as Chief Accountant.

Qualification:

- Bachelor of Banking and Finance.

Experience:

- Since his graduation to April 2020, Mr. Le Hong
Son hold various important positions at
subsidiaries of Song Da Corporation such as as
specialist, Deputy Chief Accountant, Chief
Accountant In addition, he also holds the
positions of Controller in the Company’s
subsidiaries, including:

- Chief Accountant of Diamond IC One Member
Company Limited;

- Chief Accountant of Topaz PM Vietnam
Investment and Development One Member
Company Limited;

- CEO of Muong Tung Electrical Joint Stock
Company;

- Member of the Board of Directors of Van
Phong Investment and Development Joint
Stock Company;

- Head of Supervisory Committee of Bac Ha
Construction Investment Joint Stock Company.

Percentage ownership of shares with voting
rights: 0
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o Launch of New Brand Identity
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HAI PHAT INVEST

HAI PHAT

Logo used in 2011 Logo used in 2017

Hai Phat's new logo consists 6 orange squares
organized from left to right representing the
buildings organized from low to-_-.;,bigh, 3
squares with yellow lines symbolizes the
upward pointing arrows.

The logo illustrates the constant growth of the
Company with the main business activities -
Project development while promoting our
core values. The small squares in the logo also

CORPORATE MILESTONES OF 2020

H
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Logo used in 2019 Logo used in 2020

represent subsidiaries and affiliated compa-
nies, demonstrates the expansion of the Hai
Phat Real Estate ecosystem.

The Board of Directors of Hai Phat expects
that this new brand identity will contribute to
enhancing the corporate value, improve our
competitiveness and become a prestigious
brand in the Real Estate industry.

a Restructure of human resources management

In 2020, Hai Phat appointed new members of

the Executive Board with the positions of

Annual Report 2020

Board, the Company will gradually change its
management policies, improve the efficiency

of WQ_[_Lgﬁga_perfprmance and towards the
' ab hﬁwéfﬁpf"ﬂ:rl international manage-

.

e Construct and perfect the Real Estate ecosystems

In order to optimize the human resources and
the capital cost of preparation and execution
for projects invested by Hai Phat and its
subsidiaries, the Company established two
companies specialized in investment proce-
dures consulting and project management

consulting. The formation of these two com-
panies is the advancement for the Company
to possess a complete ecosystem of real estate
development.

Q HPX is proposed in MSCI Small Cap Index

MSCI VIETNAM INDEX
Additions

AN PHAT HOLDINGS
HAI PHAT INVESTMENT
HOA SEN GROUP

KHANG DIEN HOUSE TRD

Deletions
None

4 Vietnamese tickers were added to the basket of MSCI Frontier Markets Small Cap Indexes.

The MSCI Frontier Markets Small Cap Index
this period recorded strong fluctuations with
17 excluded stocks, of which Kuwait account-
ed for 12 stocks. On the contrary, there were 12
newly added securities, of which Vietnam
accounted for 4 tickers including APH, KDH,
HPX and HSG. Accordingly, the number of

securities in this index decreased to 153 stocks.
Hai Phat was proposed to the MSCI Frontier
Markets Small Cap Indexes is a milestone for
the Company representing the transparency
in business resources, liquidity, sufficient capi-
tal and reasonable free-float ratio.

Alteration in the Composition of Executive Board in 2020

Position

Alteration

1 Mr. Le Viet Dung __Der o Terminated
2 Mrs. Tran Hoai Anh : £ JDeputy CEO Terminated
3 Mr. Ta Phu Cuong Deputy CEO Terminated
4 Mr. Do Quy Thanh Deputy CEO Appointed
5 Mr. Pham Huy Thong Deputy CEO and Information Publisher Appointed
6 Mr. Nguyen Trong Thiet Deputy CEO Appointed
7 Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan Deputy CEO Appointed

www.haiphat.com.vn @



Hai Phat Land awarded the title "Top 10 outstanding real estate trading
floors in Vietnam" for the 5th consecutive year

Vi MOT VIET NAM THINH VUONG

=l HAI PHAT LAND

Possess a top real estate distributor in the
market is a distinct competitive advantage for
the Company compared to other developers
in the Real Estate industry, The flow of market
information, as well as consumer trends, helps
Hai Phat promptly adjust and develop real
estate products to address market demand.

In 2020, Hai Phat Land also received 4 major

@ Annual Report 2020

awards in the field of real estate.

- Top 10 Typical Real Estate Exchange of Viet-
nam in 2019 voted by the Vietnam Real Estate
Brokerage Association in June 2020. This is
also the 5th consecutive time that Hai Phat
Land has won this award.

- Awards at ASEAN Economic Forum 2020 in
July 2020 in two categories: Top 10 typical

enterprises and Top 10 famous ASEAN brands,

- In September 2020, Hai Phat Land continued
to listed on the Top 5 prestigious Vietnam Real
Estate Consulting & Brokerage Companies in
2020 at the Announcement Ceremony of Top
10 prestigious real estate companies - Con-

G Expansion of clean land fund

As a real estate developer, keep charting clean
land funds is our priority goal. In 2020, Hai
Phat Joint Venture and Ha Son Company Lim-
ited have been selected as the investor of the
Mai Pha New Urban Area (Lang Son) project
with the scale of nearly 92 hectares and total
estimated investment of VND 3,380 billion. In
addition, Hai Phat and Hai Phat Land respec-

.. .—|. | | '__|]! lr||| | oy g 1 ."'!I'-E.I—HI
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struction - Building Materials - Banking -
Insurance - Technology 2020, organized by
Vietnam Report Joint Stock Company (Viet-
nam Report) in collaboration with VietNam-
Net Newspaper.

tively won the auction of urban projects No.
5A, De Tham ward, Cao Bang city, Cao Bang
province; resort project combining commer-
cial services and housing in Ha Phong ward,
Ha Long city, Quang Ninh province. The Com-
pany centinues to implement projects such as
An Binh 1, 2 in Can Tho city, Vinh My project in
Hue city, Thua Thien Hue province....
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D GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Through 17 years of operation since the foundation, Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Company

always affirms the sustainable development of the Company based on enterprise governance in

combination with compliance of the existing regulations, laws, charter of enterprise, behavior

standards, morality ethics, efficient operations of Board of Directors and Executing Board, ensure

shareholder’s and relevant benefit, equality’s treatment, company’s information transparency,

interest conflict prevents, etc.

In the purpose, at the annual shareholders meeting hold on June 2020, the shareholders agree to

change governance structure from General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Control

Committee, CEO to General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Audit Committee, CEQO.

° General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the
highest authority of the Company, the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders is held once
a year.

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
decides issues in accordance with the provi-
sions of law and the Charter of the Company,
especially approving: Annual financial state-

e Board of Directors

Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Company
maintains the membership structure of the
Board of Directors including 06 people, of
which two are independent members,
namely Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa and Mr. Do Danh
Tri. The term of office of the members of the
Board of Directors shall not exceed 05 (five)
years and méy be re-elected with an unlimit-
ed number of terms. The independent mem-
bers of the Board of Directors must account
" for at least one third (1/3) of the total number
of the members of the Board of Directors or
smaller if required by law.

The Board of Directors is the agency imple-
menting the function of monitoring and

Annual Report 2020

ments and cost estimates for the next fiscal
year; The company's annual business plan;
Report of the Board of Directors on the gover-
nance and results of operations of the Board
of Directors and each member of the Board of
Directors. Other benefits of the General Meet-
ing of Shareholders are detailed in the
announced Charter.

targets of business activities of the Company.
The Board of Directors has full powers and
performs the rights and obligations that are
not within the authority of the General Meet-
ing of Shareholders and are specified in
details in the Company Charter.

Meetings of the Board of Directors are con-
ducted when there are at least three quarters
(3/4) of the total number of members of the
Board of Directors present in person or
through a representative (authorized person).
the number of members of the Board of
Directors approved.

The Board of Directors has two affiliated Com-
mittees, which are:

Strategy Committee

- On June 27, 2020, the Strategy Board was
renamed to Strategy Committee in accor-
dance with Decision No. 32 / QD-HDQT issued
by the Board of Directors. Accordingly, the
position of Head of Strategy Board will be
automatically renamed as Chairman of the
Committee. The Strategy Committee is
belonging to the Board of Directors and Mr.

Audit Committee

- Right at the General Meeting of Sharehold-
ers year 2020 held on June 27th, 2020, the
General Meeting of Shareholders has agreed
to convert the corporate governance model to
the model of the Auditing Committee under
the Board of Directors to gradually approach
advanced and popular management method
in the world. Accordingly, on June 27,2020, the
Internal Audit Sub-Committee was renamed
to the Audit Committee according to Decision
No. 33 / QD-HPQT issued by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors appointed

e Supervisory Board

Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Company
operates with the management model of the
Supervisory Board until June 27, 2020, then
changes to the Audit Committee model.

The number of members of the Supervisory
Board of the Company is three (03) people.
The term of office of a controller does not
exceed five (05) years and may be re-elected
for an unlimited number of terms. 2

Q Executive Board

The Executive Board implements the resolu-
tions issued by the Board of Directors and the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the
business plan and investment plan of the
company approved by the Board of Directors
and the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The CEO is responsible to the Board of Direc-

Pham Minh Tuan - Vice Chairman of the Board
concurrently holds the position of Chairman
of the Committee. During the period, the
Strategy Committee has advised the Board of
Directors on a number of business develop-
ment orientations, monitoring the implemen-
tation of the goals of the Executive Directors
Board.

Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa - Independent Member
of the Board of Directors concurrently holds
the position of Chairman of the Audit Com-
mittee in place of Mr. Le Tien Hung.

- The Audit Committee operates according to
the functions, duties and powers prescribed
by law, ensuring independence, objectivity
and compliance with the law, in specifically
reviewing financial information, working with
an independent auditor, supervising the activ-
ities of the internal audit committee, risk and
internal controlling.

The main obligation of the Supervisory Board
is to supervise the financial situation of the
company, the legality of the activities of the
members of the Board of Directors, the CEQ,
other managers, the coordination of activities
between the Supervisory Board with the
Board of Directors, CEO and Shareholders.

Other rights and obligations of the Superviso-
ry Board are detailed in the Company Charter.

tors and the General Meeting of Shareholders
for the performance of assigned duties,
powers and must report to these levels if
required.

Other rights and obligations of the Executive
Board are specified in detail in the Company's

www.haiphat.com.vn @
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Finance & Accounting Department

The Finance and Accounting Department has
the function of advising and assisting the
Executive Board and the CEO in planning,
finance, credit, and capital investment outside

Investment Department

The Investment Department is in charge of
advising and assisting the Executive Board in
researching projects, issuing reports, analyz-
ing & evaluating projects for investment deci-
sion making and implementing investment
preparation procedures of the projects
belonging to the assigned areas.

Technical & Estimating Department

The  Technical & Estimating Department
advises on works of bidding, designing, engi-
neering and management projects that the
Company is developer as well as is responsible
for task of monitoring total investment of proj-

Sales Department

The Sales Department plays a key role in
advising and assisting the Executive Board in
researching and analyzing the real estate
market and organizing sales works. Besides,
The Department coordinates with relevant
departments to evaluate investment efficien-
cy of the projects in purpose of decision

After Sale Service Department

The After Sales Service Department is respon-
sible for implementing and monitoring the
sale contract signed with customers, at the
same time, implement rights and obligations
arising for the signed contract, including main
activities: requiring payment, handing — over
the product to customers, preparing proce-

Annual Report 2020

the enterprise. Other assignments include tax
- auditing as well as business accounting and
control of economic activities.

The Department is responsible for looking for
projects with the nature, size and location in
line with the direction and strategy of the
Company; implementation of compensation
for site clearance, site management of cleared
land.

ects, works, taking prime responsibility for the
settlement of project/work investment capital
and managing technical works, implementa-
tion of schedule, quality, safety & sanitation
works at the site of the project.

making.

The Board is absolutely responsible for plan-
ning sales policies, managing product mar-
keting programs, and selecting distribution
unit suitable for each product line of the com-

pany.

dures for getting ownership right certificate.
The Board is responsible for management of
properties formed after the investment and
coordinating with related departments to
exploit business activities for the properties
provided that ensuring the quality of proper-
ties.

Post-investment Operation Department

The post-investment operation department
has the function of advising and assisting the
Executive Board in performing customer care
tasks (the period after handing over product
to the customer), supervising the building
management and carrying out warranty work

The Human Resources Department

The Human Resources Department is in
charge of advising and assisting the Executive
Board in human resource development
(Recruitment, training, evaluation, policy,
reward - discipline), system administration.

The department is also responsible for human
resource planning and recruiting in accor-
dance with the proposed plan, developing

according to the provisions of the law, coordi-
nating with the Residential Representative
Board of the buildings to manage operational
services for the purpose of ensuring customer
care goals and improving the service quality of
the Company.

and implementing internal training
programs, external training to improve staff
productivity to meet the working require-
ments. Periodically, the department performs
the staff assessment to have an orientation to
train and develop the promotion system for
qualified employees.

Investor and Shareholders Relations Department

Investor and Shareholder Relations Depart-
ment has the function of advising and assist-
ing to the Executive Board on activities related
to investor & shareholder and stock market
and participating in capital mobilization plans
by stocks and convertible bonds.

The Department is responsible for announc-

Internal Audit Committee

The Internal Audit Committee has the func-
tion of advising the Executive Board in the
selection and control of the use of indepen-

Administration Department

The Administration Department is responsi-
ble for providing administrative services such
as: receptionist, documents keeping, reserva-
tions, occupational safety and sanitation, fire
prevention, etc... as well as conducting super-

ing information to the investors and share-
holders in accordance with the law, develop-
ing and preparing relevant documents for
communication, information transmission of
business operations and the company's strat-
egy to investors and shareholders and as well
as relevant authorities in the capital market.

dent audit services, building internal audit
professional process, planning, developing
and adjusting internal audit methods.

vision of outsourced services, performing
systematic information technology manage-
mentand managing internal & external public
relations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S REPORT

° Evaluation of the Board of Directors on the operational aspects of the Company

G On development strategy

In 2020, Vietnamese economy as well as the
global economy were heavily influenced by
the COVID-19 outbreak. Real estate and con-
struction are also ones of the industries facing
many difficulties and in need of support.
Experts commented that the real estate
market has never been through difficult times
and submerged in many levels like in 2020.
Experts all shared that the year 2020 is a
"death" year for many businesses operating in
the real estate sector. Many real estate compa-
nies listed on the stock market still showed
the growth in profits but the cash flow was
negative. Real estate businesses have difficul-
ty in cash flow because the sale opening was
delayed continuously and the market
demand dropped sharply. During the first 3
quarters of the year, the implementation,
launching and sale of projects of many real
estate businesses had to stop, postpone or
even close. The epidemic also made the finan-
cial resources of customers limited. Cash is
concentrated to serve essential needs. The
restriction on gathering and travelling nega-
tively affected the purchasing power of real
estate products.

o On company management

- The year 2020 marked the transformation of
the company by changing the corporate
governance model. At the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders year 2020 on June
27th, 2020, the General Meeting of Sharehold-
ers approved the transformation of the model
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Even so, the Board of Directors and the Execu-
tive Board of Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock
Company are constantly striving to overcome
difficulties to achieve set goals. In 2020, the
Company has changed the logo & re-brand-
ing, restructured the business and nominated
the key personnel, besides planned and
targeted to implement projects with large
land funds such as Mai Pha new urban area
project, An Binh 1& 2 new urban area projects,
prepared investment procedures to be ready
for the implementation of the project Seahara
Phan Thiet and grand sale opening of the
project Seahara Phu Yen, hold online seminars
and sales with customers. At the end of the
year, when the disease situation was stabi-
lized, the Company and its affiliates took
advantage of and the opportunity to success-
fully bid in the auction of two projects which
are 5A Urban Area project in De Tham city, Cao
Bang province and the project on resort com-
bining commercial services and housing in Ha
Phong ward, Ha Long city, Quang Ninh prov-
ince.

of operation organization of the company
from the model including the General Meet-
ing of Shareholders, the Board of Directors,
the Supervisory Board and the CEO into the
one consisting of General Meeting of Share-
holders, the Board of Directors, CEO in which

Audit Committee has been established
belonging to the Board of Directors.

The application of this Auditing Committee is
to closely monitor on risk management,
improve transparency in the operations of the
Board of Directors and the Executive Board
and in accordance with international practic-
es. In 2020, the company has fully complied
with the provisions of the law on corporate
governance.

- Enterprise information is fully and transpar-

ently provided, at the same time strength-
ened communication channels, promptly and
continuously updated information for stake-
holders. Efforts to improve corporate gover-
nance are not only from the management
leaders, but also from each employee of the
company and subsidiaries. The company
promptly has plans on capital use, capital
planning to ensure timely funding for projects
but with reasonable capital costs to achieve
optimal investment efficiency.

° On human and organization structure

- In each enterprise, people are always consid-
ered the most important resource and a "vital"
factor for the development of the business.
Therefore, HPX always sets the human devel-
opment goal as the core value of the business.
During the past time, HPX has always been a
professional and friendly working environ-
ment for employees to engage, develop and
assert themselves.

- In addition, the training and fostering of
young cadres to promote in the future are

always top priority by the management board.

0 On community development

- During the 17 years of development, whether
it is favorable or difficult, HPX has always
turned towards the community, actively con-
tributed to the society, replicated volunteer
programs with the spirit of sharing and caring
for life less fortunate, honoring poor students
with good academic achievements to moti-
vate them to overcome difficulties and chal-
lenges in life.

- In 2020, the company has contributed nearly
2 billion VND to community and social activi-
ties. One of the outstanding activities is that
Hai Phat Group has donated nearly 1 billion
VND in cash to the floodplain people of Thua

HPX is building and training a generation of
enthusiastic and dedicated staffs to the devel-
opment of the corporation.

- Currently, the Industrial Revolution 4.0 is
creating.a rapid change in the management,
administration and development of the busi-
ness, therefore the human resource manage-
ment is also directly affected by this trend. The
management leaders of Hai Phat have always
been changing in management and person-
nel structure to suit this modernization.

Thien Hue province. Although this number is
not large, but it is the Haiphat's heart to share
the difficulties with the people and authorities
of the g:entral..pro'vi'nceé.

- Besiaés, the company always strives to limit
negative impacts on the environment, ensure
full compliance with technical regulations and
standards as prescribed by law. The company
has approached, applied and asked contrac- '
tors to apply advanced technologies in con-
struction to improve the quality of works, save
energy & materials, build safe and sustainable
for purpose of limitation of effects on the envi-

www.haiphat.com.vn <4>

ronment.



e Board of Directors’ evaluation on Executive Board’s activity

Board of Directors’ supervisory activity on Executive Board

The Board of Directors has supervised the
activities of the Executive Board in compli-
ance with the provisions of the Charter, corpo-
rate governance regulations, internal gover-
nance regulations and regulations of current
law, specifically:

- Directed and successfully organized the
2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on June 27%, 2020 and the 1Ist Extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders 2020 on
October 10th, 2020.

- Urged and monitored the implementation
production process and business plans in
2020

- Supervised the implementation of the reso-
lutions and decisions of the Board of Directors
and the General Meeting of Shareholders
issued, examining the in business activities.

- Organized and directed the serious imple-
mentation of the publication of quarterly
financial statements, annual financial state-
ments and annual reports.

- Supervised and directed information disclo-
sure in order to ensure transparency and
timeliness in accordance with Government
regulations.

- Supervised the implementation of the inter-
nal management rules and regulations of the
Company.

lapme
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- Supervised the management activities of the
Executive Board to improve the efficiency of
production and business activities and
achieved the planned targets.

- Supervised the implementation of projects
invested by the Company.

- Monitored the operation of the Company in
compliance with the provisions of the Law on
Enterprises, the Company Charter and current
law provisions.

In 2020, under the supervision of the Board of
Directors, the Company has achieved a
number of achievements as follows:

- Closely managed production and business
activities in accordance with_ the orientation,
objectives and duties that General Meeting-of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors has
set out on the basis of compliance with the
current law provisions.

- Organized the implementation of business
activities with qualified implementation of
internal administration, proactively arranged
and completed the ecosystem, promoted
high-quality human resources.

ACTIVITIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2020

° Board of Directors

° Members and structure of the Board of Directors

(list of members of the Board of Management, percentages of ownership in voting shares and
other securities issued by the Company, number of positions that a member of the Board of

Management held in other companies).

No. Full name Position Number of positions that a member of the ~ Number of voting shares
Board of Management held in other companies and other securities

1 Mr. Do Quy Hai Chairman of BoD 05 105,899,710

2  Mr. LeTien Hung Vice Chairman of BoD 04 410,484

3 Mr.Nguyen Van Phuong Vice Chairman of BoD 04 528,989

4 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Vice Chairman of BoD, 0 16,925

Chairman of the Strategy Committee,

Audit Committee Member

5 Mr. Hoang Ve Dzung Independent Member of BoD 01 0
6  Mr. Nguyen Xuan Dong Independent Member of BoD 10 (0]
7  Mr. Le Viet Dzung Independent Member of BoD 03 1,234,311
8  Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa Independent Member of BoD 02 (0]

Chairman of Audit Commmittee

9  Mr. Do Danh Tri Independent Member of BoD 01 (]

-

-

Board of directors
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0 Sub-Committee of Board of Directors

In 2019, Board of Directors established two subcommittees, Strategy Sub-Committee (on April 17,
2019 according to Decision No. 12 / QD-HDQT of Board of Directors) and Internal Audit Sub-Com-
mittee (on April 17, 2019 according to Decision No. 13 / QD-HDQT of Board of Directors).

In 2020, the Company changed the name of 02 sub-committees of Board of Directors established
in 2019, specifically as follows:

Renamed Strategy Sub-Committee to Strategy Committee

On June 27, 2020, Strategy Sub-Committee was renamed to Strategy Committee according to
Decision No. 32 / QD-HBQT of Board of Directors.
Current structure of Strategy Committee:

No. Full name Position held on Strategy Committee

1 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Chairman of Strategy Committee

Renamed Internal Audit Sub-Committee to Internal Audit Committee

On June 27,2020, Internal Audit Sub-Committee was renamed Auditing Committee according to
Decision No. 33 / QD-HBQT of Board of Directors.
Current structure of Audit Committee:

Full name Position held on Audit Committee

1 Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa Chairman of Audit Committee

2 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Member of Audit Committee

@ Activities of Board of Directors

In 2020, the Board of Directors held 05 meetings and collected written opinions from the mem-
bers of Board of Directors to issue resolutions and decisions according to their competence to
serve corporate governance.

@ Annual Report 2020

Meetings of Board of Directors: 05

No.  Full name Number of meetings of Bod attended Attendance rate The reason for not attending
1 Mr. Do Quy Hai 05/05 100%

2 Mr. Le Tien Hung 02/02 100% Resignation application on May 15, 2020
3 Mr. Nguyen Van Phuong 05/05 100%

4 Mr.Pham Minh Tuan 05/05 100%

5 Mr. Hoang Ve Dzung 03/03 100% Additional Appointment
6 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Dong 02/02 100% Resignation application on May 15, 2020
7 Mr. Le Viet Dzung 03/03 100% Resignation application on September 1Ist, 2020
8 Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa 03/03 100% Additional Appointment
9 Mr. Do Danh Tri 01/01 100% Additional Appointment

The first meeting of Board of Directors

The meeting was held on 31/3/2020, with 06/06 members attending the meeting. Members
attending the meeting agreed to approve various contents related to Quarter | / 2020 business
result and business plan for Quarter 11 / 2020.

(Details are according to the Minutes of Meeting No. 10A / BB-HDQT dated March 31, 2020).

The second meeting of Board of Directors

The meeting was held on May 15, 2020, with 06/06 members attending the meeting. Members
attending the meeting agreed to approve the following contents:

- Convened the General Meeting of Shareholders and submit contents to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders 2020;

- Authorized the Chairman of Board of Directors to proactively approve the promulgation, amend-
ment and supplementation of the Charter on organization and operation of subsidiaries - 100%
owned by Hai Phat.

(Detailed contents are according to the Minutes of Meeting No. 21/ BB-HDQT dated May 15, 2020).

Lt
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The 3@ meeting of Board of Directors

The meeting was held on June 27, 2020, with 06/06 members attending the meeting. Members
attending the meeting agreed to approve the following contents:

- Elected Mr. Pham Minh Tuan to hold the position of Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company;

- Dismissed Mr. Le Viet Dung from the position of Deputy CEO of the Company;

- Renamed Sub-Strategy Committee to Strategy Committee;

- Renamed Internal Audit Committee to Audit Committee;

- Dismissed Mr. Le Tien Hung from the position of Head of the internal audit committee of the
Company;

- Appointed Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa to hold the position of Independent Member of the Board of
Directors and Chairman of Audit Committee.

(Details are according to the Minutes of Meeting No. 26 / BB-HDQT dated June 27, 2020).

The 4" meeting of Board of Directors

The meeting was held on September 28, 2020, with 06/06 members attending the meeting.
Members attending the meeting agreed to approve various contents related to quarter Il / 2020
business results and business plan for Quarter V/ 2020.

(Details are according to the Minutes of Meeting No. 38A/ BB-HDQT dated September 28, 2020).

The 5'" meeting of the Board of Directors

The meeting was held on December 30, 2020, with 06/06 members attending the meeting.
Members attending the meeting agreed to approve various contents related to quarter IV / 2020
business results and business plan for 2021.

(Details are according to the Minutes of Meeting No. 52/ BB-HDQT dated December 30th, 2020).
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Q Resolutions and Decisions issued by Board of Directors

In 2020, Board of Directors has issued the following Resolutions/Decisions:

No. Dec./Res. No. Date Content Acceptance Rate
1 01/NQ-HBQT 16/1/2020 Contents related to the activities of Hai Phat - Phu Yen 100%
One Member Limited Company.
2  O0IA/NQ-HBQT 18/1/2020 Invested and project implemented in Phu Loc district, Thua Thien Hue province. 100%
3 02/NQ-HBQT 12/2/2020 Established Phu Yen Project Management Board; 100%
Authorized Chairman of the Board of Directors to decide various
issues related to the organizational structure of the Company.
4 01/Qb-HBQT 12/2/2020 Established Phu Yen Project Management Board. 100%
5 03/NQ-HDBQT 28/2/2020 Approved contents related to the 2020 Annual General Meeting 100%
of Shareholders; Appointed Deputy CEO of the Company; Adjusted
sales plan of Hai Phat Plaza commercial, service and
luxury apartment project.
6 02/Qb-HPQT 28/2/2020 Approved contents related to the organization of Annual 100%
General Meeting of Shareholders 2020.
7 03/Qb-HDQT 28/2/2020 Appointed Deputy CEO of the Company 100%
8 04/QBb-HBPQT 28/2/2020 Adjusted sales plan of 100%
Hai Phat Plaza commercial,
service and luxury apartment project.
9 04/NQ-HBQT  05/03/2020 Approved Feasibility Study Report on projects in Phu Yen province; 100%
Cooperated to invest and implement projects
in Thai Binh province.
10 05/Qb-HBQT  05/03/2020 Cooperated to invest and implement projects in Thai Binh province. 100%
n 06/QB-HBQT  05/03/2020 Approved Feasibility Study Report on projects 100%
in Phu Yen province
12  07/Qb-HPQT  05/03/2020 Approved Feasibility Study Report on projects 100%
in Phu Yen province
13 07A/QB-HBQT  09/03/2020 Adjusted the total project investment capital in Phu Yen province. 100%
14  07B/QB-HBPQT  09/03/2020 Approved estimate of constructio?,’glrawing design of the project in Phu Yen province.  100%
15 07C/QB-HBPQT  09/03/2020 Approved estimate of con'st.ruction drawing design of the project in Phu Yen province. 100%
16 O5/NQ-HPQT  16/03/2020  Extended organized time of Annual General Meeting of 100%

Shareholders 2020; some contents related to the operation of

Chau Son Land Company Limited.
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No. Dec./Res. No. Date Content Acceptance Rate
17 08/QB-HBQT 16/03/2020 Extended organized time of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2020 100%
18  09/QDb-HDQT 16/3/2020 Distributed profit after tax and set up funds at 100%

Chau Son Land Company Limited.
19 05A/NQ-HBPQT  20/03/2020 Terminated cooperation in investment projects in Ba Ria - Vung Tau province 100%
20  06/NQ-HBPQT  23/03/2020 Approved Hai Phat - Binh Thuan One Member Limited Company 100%
to use assets as collateral for loans of
Hai Phat Thu Do Joint Stock Company.

21 07/NQ-HDQT  24/03/2020 Transferred shares at Railway Urban and Infrastructure Development Investment 100%
Joint Stock Company and Dai Dong A Investment Joint Stock Company.

22 10/QDb-HBQT 24/03/2020 Transferred shares at Railway Urban and Infrastructure Development Investment 100%
Joint Stock Company

23 1/QBb-HPQT 24/03/2020 Transferred shares at Dai Dong A Investment Joint Stock Company. 100%

24 08/NQ-HBQT  25/03/2020 Used the Company's assets as collateral for loans of 100%
Hai Phat Thu Do Joint Stock Company at the Bank.

25  09/NQ-HDQT  25/03/2020 Used the Company's assets as collateral for loans of 100%
Hai Phat Thu Do Joint Stock Company at the Bank.

26  09A/NQ-HDBQT  31/3/2020 Approved the expected business results for Quarter /2020 100%
and the expected business plan for Quarter 11/2020.

27  10/NQ-HPQT  09/04/2020 Approved the policy regarding business transactions with Hai Phat Real 100%
Estate Investment and Business Joint Stock Company.

28  12/Qb-HDQT 16/04/2020 Adjusted the Company's charter capital 100%
29 1/NQ-HPQT 16/04/2020 Adjusted the model, the organizational structure of the Company, 100%

dismissed and appointed managerial positions of the Company.

30  13/Qb-HBQT 16/04/2020 Dismissed Deputy CEQ of the Company 100%
3] 14/QB-HDQT 16/04/2020 Dismissed Deputy CEO of the Company 100%
32 14A/QD-HBQT  16/04/2020 Adjusted the model, the organizational structure of the Company 100%
33 12/NQ-HBQT 16/04/2020 Approved the Company and its Subsidiaries to use assets as 100%

collateral for loans of the Hai Phat Real Estate Investment
and Business Joint Stock Company.
34 15/Qb-HDQT 16/04/2020 Approved Hai Phat Binh Thuan One Member Company Limited 100%

to use assets as collateral for loans of the Hai Phat Real Estate Investment

and Business Joint Stock Company.
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No. Dec./Res. No. Date Content Acceptance Rate
35 16/QD-HDBQT 16/04/2020 Utilized the Company'’s assets as collateral for loans 100%
of the Hai Phat Real Estate Investment and Business
Joint Stock Company.
36 17/Qb-HPQT 16/04/2020 Utilized the Company’s assets as collateral for loans 100%
of the Hai Phat Real Estate Investment and Business
Joint Stock Company.
37  13/NQ-HBQT 16/04/2020 Approved the Company's guarantee for the payment 100%
obligations of Hai Phat Real Estate Investment and Trading
Joint Stock Company at the Bank.
38  14/NQ-HDQT 17/04/2020 Private issuance of Corporate Bonds. 100%
39 15/NQ-HBQT 22/04/2020 Increased charter capital in Dong Do Real Estate Company Limited; 100%
Transfered shares in Civil Engineering Construction
Corporation No.5 - JSC.
40  18/QD-HBQT  22/04/2020 Increased charter capital in Dong Do Real Estate Company Limited 100%
4] 19/QB-HPQT  22/04/2020 Transfered shares in Civil Engineering Construction 100%
Corporation No.5 - JSC.
42 16/NQ-HDBQT 04/05/2020 Dismissed and appointed managerial positions of the Company. 100%
43 20/QD-HPQT  04/05/2020 Dismissed Controller and Head of Finance and Accounting 100%
Department of the Company.
44 21/QD-HDPQT  04/05/2020 Appointed Controller of the Company. 100%
45  22/QBb-HPQT  04/05/2020 Dismissed Chief of Office of the Board of Directors of the Company. 100%
46 23/QD-HDPQT  04/05/2020 Appointed Chief of Office of the Board of Directors of the Company. 100%
47 24/QD-HPQT  04/05/2020 Appointed Deputy CEO of the Company. 100%
48  25/QB-HDQT 04/05/2020 Appointed Deputy CEO of the Company. 100%
49  26/QDB-HDQT  04/05/2020 Appointed Deputy CEO of the Company. 100%
50  17/NQ-HBQT 07/05/2020 Established Heritage Real Estate Vietnam One Member Company Limited. 100%
51 27/Qb-HPQT 12/05/2020 Approved the selection of audit financial 100%
statements and stock swap consultant for
Hai Phat Thu Do Joint Stock Company.
52 18/Qb-HDQT 15/05/2020 Authorized the Chairman of the Board of Directors to 100%

proactively approve the issuance of amendments and
supplements to the Charter of Subsidiaries and Companies

with 100% charter capital owned by the Company.
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No. Dec./Res. No Date Content Acceptance Rate
76  38/QBb-HBQT  09/09/2020 Approved a number of contents related to the operation of 100%
Dong Do Real Estate Company Limited.
77  30/NQ-HBQT  16/09/2020 Approved the policy of restructuring the Company's 100%
investments in subsidiaries.
78  39/QB-HDQT  16/09/2020 Transferred contributed capital, replaced the authorized 100%
representative to manage contributed capital, replaced the legal representative,
amended the charter at Chau Son Land One Member Company Limited.
79  40/QB-HDBQT 16/09/2020 Transferred shares in ING Hotel and Resort 100%
Joint Stock Company.
80  31/NQ-HBQT  23/09/2020 Established Sapphire Invest One Member Company Limited. 100%
81  3IA/NQ-HDBQT  28/09/2020 Resolution of the Board of Directors meeting on September 28, 2020. 100%
82  41/QB-HDQT  23/09/2020 Established Sapphire Invest One Member Company Limited. 100%
83  32/NQ-HBQT 15/10/2020 Authorized the Chairman of the Board of Directors to approve transactions 100%
related to investment, business, and joint venture cooperation with subsidiaries
whose over 50% of charter capital is owned by the Company.
84  42/QB-HBQT 15/10/2020 Approved the policy for Ruby Land Investment and Development 100%
One Member Company Limited to transfer the capital contribution
in Chau Son Land One Member Limited Company and converted the
business type of Chau Son Land One Member Limited Company to Chau Son Land
Joint Stock Company.
85  33/NQ-HBQT 15/10/2020 Approved a number of contents related to the Company's activities. 100%
86  43/Qb-HBQT 15/10/2020 Reformed the model and organizational structure of the Company. 100%
87  44/QB-HPQT 15/10/2020 Established Diamond IC One Member Company Limited. 100%
88  45/QP-HBQT 15/10/2020 Established Topaz PM One Member Company Limited. 100%
89 45A/QD-HBQT  15/10/2020 Established Topaz PM Vietnam Investment and Development One Member 100%
Company Limited.
90  46/Qb-HBQT 15/10/2020 Appointed Mr. Pham Minh Tuan - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 100%
as Member of the Audit Committee.
91 47/QD-HBQT 15/10/2020 Adjusted the Company's charter capital. 100%
92  34/NQ-HPQT 16/10/2020 Approved the policy of the Company participating in the auction of land 100%
use rights to implement the project.
93  48/QD-HBQT 23/10/2020 Approved the policy of restructuring the Company's investments in 100%

Heritage Real Estate Vietnam One Member Company Limited.

No. Dec./Res. No. Date Content Acceptance Rate
53 28/Qb-HPQT 26/5/2020 Financed planning activities in projects in Thai Binh province. 100%
54 29/Qb-HBQT 26/5/2020 Research on investment and project implementation in Thai Binh province. 100%
55 30/Qb-HPQT 26/5/2020 Research on investment and project implementation in Thai Binh province. 100%
56  19/NQ-HBQT 10/6/2020 Approved the policy for Chau Son Land One Member Limited Company to 100%
contribute capital in another enterprise.
57 20/NQ-HDQT 15/6/2020 Loans at the Bank 100%
58 21/NQ-HDPQT 17/6/2020 Buyback bonds before maturity. 100%
59 2IA/NQ-HPQT  25/6/2020 Approved some contents in An Khanh project, 100%
Hoai Duc district, Hanoi.
60  22/NQ-HPQT 27/6/2020 Approved the following contents: 100%
Election of Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company;
Dismissed Deputy CEO of the Company; Renamed Sub-Committees
of the Board of Directors into Committees; Dismissed Head of the
Internal Audit Committee; Appointed Chair of Audit Committee.
61 31/Qb-HDBQT 27/6/2020 Dismissed Deputy CEO of the Company. 100%
62  32/Qb-HBQT 27/6/2020 Renamed Strategy Sub-Committee's to Strategy Committee. 100%
63  33/QDb-HDBQT 27/6/2020 Renamed the Internal Audit Sub-Committee to Audit Committee. 100%
64  34/QD-HDBQT 27/6/2020 Dismissed Head of Internal Audit Sub-Committee. 100%
65  35/Qb-HDQT 27/6/2020 Appointed the Chair of Audit Committee. 100%
66  36/Qb-HDBQT 04/07/2020 Replaced the Authorized Representative to manage the contributed 100%
capital of the Company at IWG Hotel and Resort Joint Stock Company.
67 36A/QD-HDPQT  10/07/2020 Adjusted the total project investment capital. 100%
68 23/NQ-HBQT 24/7/2020 Bought shares issued by Civil Engineering Construction Corporation 100%
No.5 - JSC and Hai Phat Thu Do Joint Stock Company
69  24/NQ-HBQT  06/08/2020 Modified and completed Registered Business Lines of the Company. 100%
70  25/NQ-HDQT  14/08/2020 Approved private issuance of Corporate Bonds. 100%
71 26/NQ-HDQT  14/08/2020 Approved private issuance of Corporate Bonds. 100%
72 27/NQ-HBQT  14/08/2020 Approved private issuance of Corporate Bonds. 100%
73 28/NQ-HPQT  24/08/2020 Approved the plan of issuing shares to pay dividends in 2019. 100%
74 37/QD-HBQT  25/08/2020 Approved the policy of increasing charter capital of Hai Phat - Binh Thuan 100%
One Member Limited Company.
75 29/NQ-HBQT 05/09/2020 Convened the extraordinary meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders 2020. 100%
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No. Dec./Res. No. Date

94 35/NQ-HBQT 26/10/2020

Content Acceptance Rate

Approved the policy of investment, Project implementation

and Company's Loans at the Bank.

100%

95  49/Qb-HDQT 26/10/2020

Company’s loans at the Bank.

100%

96  50/Qb-HDBQT 26/10/2020

Approved the policy of investment and Project implementation.

100%

97 51/Qb-HBQT 30/10/2020

Sapphire Invest One Member Company Limited bought shares issued by

Chau Son Land Joint Stock Company.

100%

98  36/NQ-HDQT 10/11/2020

The company overdraft its current account at a bank.

100%

99  51A/QD-HDQT 20/11/2020

Approved the policy for Diamond IC One Member
Company Limited to sign the Contracts / Transactions / Agreements

with related parties.

100%

100  51B/QB-HDQT 20/11/2020

Approved the policy for Topaz PM Vietnam Investment and Development
One Member Company Limited to sign the Contracts/ Transactions /

Agreements with related parties.

100%

101 37/NQ-HBQT 10/12/2020

- Approved the plan to temporarily distribute profits of Ruby Land
Investment and Development One Member Company Limited and
use the assets of Ruby Real Estate Development and Investment

One Member Limited Company to guarantee the obligations of the third party;

-Approved the plan of profit distribution and shares transfer in

Hai Phat Real Estate Investment and Business Joint Stock Company;

Approved the Company received the transfer of land use rights.

- Approved the policy of signing contracts with its subsidiaries:
Topaz PM Vietnam Investment and Development One Member Company Limited,

Diamond IC One Member Company Limited.

100%

No. Dec./Res. No. Date Content Acceptance Rate

108  57/QB-HDQT 15/12/2020 Use the Company's assets as collaterals 100%
for the Subsidiary's loans.

109 58/Qb-HDQT 15/12/2020 Approved the Company's guarantee for the debt settlement 100%
obligations of Hai Phat Real Estate Investment and Business
Joint Stock Company at the Bank.

10  59/Qb-HPQT 15/12/2020 Committed to maintaining the Company's equity ownership in Hai Phat Real Estate 100%
Investment and Business Joint Stock Company during the time the Bank financing the project.

m 60/Qb-HPQT 25/12/2020 Dismissed the Chief of Office of the Board of Directors. 100%

12 39/NQ-HDQT 28/12/2020 Approved the "Regulations of Operation of the Board of Directors", 100%
dismissed and appointed the Company’s Secretary.

N3 61/Qb-HBQT 28/12/2020 Issued the "Regulation on the Operation of Board of Directors". 100%

N4  61A/QD-HBQT  28/12/2020 Decentralized administration and assigned duties of the 100%
Board of Directors to the Chairman.

N5 62/Qb-HBQT 28/12/2020 Dismissed Company’s Secretary. 100%

16 63/Qb-HPQT 28/12/2020 Appointed Ms. Phan Thi Xuyen as Company’s Secretary. 100%

N7  64/QDb-HDQT  28/12/2020 Approved the policy of cooperation with Civil Engineering Construction 100%
Corporation No.5 - JSC to invest in projects.

N8  65/Qb-HBQT 29/12/2020 Approved the business plan of the Hai Phat Plaza Complex 100%
of Retail and Luxury Apartments.

19  65/QDb-HBPQT  30/12/2020 Resolution of the Board of Directors meeting on December 30, 2020. 100%

102 52/Qb-HDQT 10/12/2020

Approved various contents related to the operation of Ruby Real Estate

Development and Investment One Member Limited Company.

100%

103 53/Qb-HDQT 10/12/2020

Approved various contents related to the operation of Hai Phat Real Estate

Investment and Business Joint Stock Company.

100%

10/12/2020

Approved various contents related to the operation of Topaz PM Vietnam

Investment and Development One Member Company Limited.

100%

105  55/Qb-HBQT 10/12/2020

Approved various contents related to the operation of Diamond IC

One Member Company Limited.

100%

106  56/QD-HDQT 10/12/2020

Approved the policy for the Company to receive

the transfer of land use rights.

100%

107  38/NQ-HBQT 15/12/2020

Used the Company's assets as collaterals for the Subsidiary's loans.

100%
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“ Activities of independent members of the Board of Directors

- From January1,2020 to June 27,2020: The Company had 02 independent members of the Board
of Directors, namely Mr. Nguyen Xuan Dong and Mr. Hoang Ve Dung.

- From June 27, 2020 to September 1, 2020: The Company had 02 independent members of the
Board of Directors, namely Mr. Nguyen Xuan Dong and Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa.

- From October 10, 2020 up to now: The Company has 02 independent members of the Board of
Directors, namely Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa and Mr. Do Danh Tri.

All independent members fullfill their roles, their functions and duties including control the man-
agement and administration of the Company through attendance at meetings of the Board of
Directors. and give their opinions on issues through collecting written opinions.

0 Activities of Sub-Committees of Board of Directors

- On June 27,2020, the Strategy Sub-Committee was renamed to Strategy Committee according
to Decision No. 32 / QD-HPQT of the Board of Directors. Mr. Pham Minh Tuan - Former Head of
Strategy Committee was automatically renamed as Chairman of the Committee. The Strategy
Committee advised the Board of Directors on business development orientations, monitor the
implementation of the goals of the Board of Directors.

- On June 27, 2020, the Internal Audit Sub-Committee was renamed to the Audit Committee
according to Decision No. 33/ QD-HPQT of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors appoint-
ed Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa - Independent Member of the Board of Directors concurrently as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee to replace Mr. Le Tien Hung. On October 15, 2020, the Board of
Directors appointed Mr. Pham Minh Tuan - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors to hold the
position of Audit Committee member. The Audit Commmittee operates according to the functions,
duties prescribed by Law, ensuring independence, objectivity, and law compliance.

List of members of the Board of Directors participating in corporate
governance programs during the year

- List of Corporate governance training programs that Company's managers have participated in
in 2020:

- The Audit Committee Master Program - ACMP on October 15-16, 2020 in Hanoi.
- Online Program - Internal Audit for Board Members 4 (IAFB4) | September 10 - 11, 2020.
- Training course on introducing the Enterprise Law 2020, Securities Law 2019

- The company secretary participated in the training course on introducing Enterprise Law 2020.
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D REPORT ON ACTIVITIES OF CONTROL COMMITTEE / AUDIT COMMITTEE

° Members and structure of Control Committee / Audit Committee

-In 2020, the Company changed governance structure of the company from the model including
General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Control Committee and CEO to General
Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, CEO and Audit Committee under the Board of Direc-
tors, therefore, the control activities in 2020 will include the activities of Control Committee and
the Audit Committee, specifically as follows:

° Information of Control Committee’s members (From 01/01/2020 to 27/06/2020)

Full name Positions Date of dismissal Number of shares
1 Ms. Tran Thi Kim Oanh Head of Contr'ol’Committee 27/06/2020 32,627
2 Mr. Nguyen Anh Dzung Members of Control Committee 27/06/2020 18,830
3 Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Yen Members of Control Committee 27/06/2020 7 244

° Information of Audit Committee’s members (From 27/06/2020 to 31/12/2020)

Full name Positions Date of Appointment Number of shares
1 Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa Chairman of Audit Committee 27/06/2020 0
2 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Member of Audit Committee 15/10/2020 16,925
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Activities of Control Committee

- Complied with the provisions of the Charter, Corporate Governance Regulations, Internal regula-
tions of the Company and current law, specifically as follows:

- Supervised the implementation of resolutions of General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Supervised the implementation of the rights and obligations of members of Board of Directors,
Executive Board, and managers of the Company.

- Verified consolidated and separate financial statements of the Company and business results
for the first 6 months of 2020.

- Regularly communicated with the Board of Directors, CEO in order to guarantee that the opera-
tion of the Company is appropriate and ensure shareholders’ interest.

- Consulted with the Board of Directors to select an independent auditor to audit and review the
financial statements of the Comypany in the first 6 months of 2020.

- Monitored business performance and business plan in the year as well as the difficulties and
opportunities of Company’s business activities..

- Reviewed legality, procedures to issue Resolutions, Decisions of Board of Directors, CEO in accor-
dance with the Company Charter and legal regulations.

- Controlled the information disclosure of the Company and its affiliates in accordance with the
provisions of the law on information disclosure requirements for public companies and listed
companies.

- Reviewed transactions with affiliated persons under the approval of the Board of Directors.

- Control Committee was fully provided with Board meeting minutes, written opinions of mem-
bers of Board of Directors, Decisions / Resolutions of Board of Directors, audited financial
statements of 2019 and quarterly, semi-annual financial statements in 2020

prepared by the Company.

- Control Committee was provided fully, accurately, and promptly with

information and documents on the management, administration, and 0

operation of the Company by the members of the Board of Directors,

CEO and managers.
- Monitored the integrity of Company's financial statements. =

- Monitored to ensure the Company complies with law provisions,
regulatory requirements, and other internal regulations.
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Activities of Audit Committee

Financial, non-financial statements

Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Company's quarterly and semi-annual finan-
cial statements in 2020 ensuring:

- Financial statements were issued in accordance with the Accounting System, Accounting Stan-
dards, and applicable law.

- Financial statements issued were fully accepted by the Independent Auditing company.

The Committee also reviewed other sections of the annual report and the accuracy and com-
pleteness of information prior to publication.

Risk management and internal controls

The Committee monitored risk management and internal control through meetings with inde-
pendent auditor, Executive Board of the Company.

- The Company does not have a specialized risk management department according to its func-
tions, risks were evaluated based on the opinions of the Board of Management and experts. How-
ever, risk management policies and procedures are updated in order to adapt with the Compa-
ny's annual operations and business strategy.

-The Company is maintaining effective control points to cope with risks in the Company's gover-
nance, operations and information systems.

Independent audit service

E&Y was chosen as an auditor for the financial statements
since the Company was listed on HOSE, Audit Committee
has discussed and made comment as follows:

- E&Y has complied with the provisions of the independent
auditor, ensuring independence and objectivity when
giving an audit opinion.

- E&Y ensured the quality and reliability of the information
on financial statements issued.

Committee’s Activities Orientation of 2021

’ In 2021, the Committee will continue to focus more on
’ ( oversight in areas such as Financial Reporting, Non-Finan-
cial; Risk management and internal control; Independent
audit. In addition, the Committee will expand the supervi-
sion and coordination with the Internal Audit when the
Internal Audit Committee officially comes into operation
— in 2021.

www.haiphat.com.vn



e Meetings of Control Committee/ Audit Committee

Meetings of Control Committee

No. Full name Number of meeting participated Attendance Rate Acceptance Rate
1 Ms. Tran Thi Kim Oanh 01/01 100% 100%
2 Mr. Nguyen Anh Dung 01/01 100% 100%
3 Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Yen 01/01 100% 100%

Meetings of Audit Committee

No. Full name Number of meeting participated Attendance Rate Acceptance Rate
1 Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa 02/02 100% 100%
2 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan 02/02 100% 100%

Meeting’'s Contents

Meeting’s Contents Number of members participated

1 15/10/2020  Approved the establishment of the Internal Audit Committee and 02

considered the selection form of the Internal Audit Director

2 20/12/2020 Approved the appointment of Internal Audit Director 02

Annual Report 2020

TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF BOD AND CONTROL COMMITTEE

Principles of payment for the Board of Directors and sub-committees
under the Board of Directors

The remuneration rate the Board of Directors, Sub-committees under the Board of Directors will
be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of Share-
holders.

Remuneration paid to the Board of Directors and sub-committees under
the Board of Directors in 2020

No. Full name Position Remuneration
1 Mr. Do Quy Hai Chairman of Board of Director 2,760,000,000
2 Mr. Nguyen Van Phuong Vice Chairman of Board of Director 690,000,000
3 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Vice Chairman of Board of Director 1,185,750,000
4 Mr. Le Viet Dung Deputy CEO until 27/06/2020 942,224,205

and Non-executive member of the BoD from 27/06/2020

5 Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa Independent member of the Board of Directors 247,219,000
and Chairman of Auditing Committee from 27/06/2020

6 Mr. Do Danh Tri Independent member of the Board of Directors from 10/10/2020 72,734,694
7 Mr. Doan Hoa Thuan CEO 2,040,126,999
8 Mr. Dinh The Quynh Deputy CEO 938,902,005
9 Mr. Do Quy Thanh Deputy CEO 641,165,883
10 Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan Deputy CEO 504,159,250
n Mr. Pham Huy Thong Deputy CEO 801,673,478
12 Mr. Nguyen Trong Thiet Deputy CEO - .-_NZSOJQ
_ 9
TOTAL 11,415,205,695

According to the remuneration plan of the Board of Directors, the sub-committees under the
Board of Directors in 2020 approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the remuneration
rate was paid to Board of Directors, Sub-Committees of Board of Directors according to the plan
was 7,020,000,000 VND.

Actual payment is: 5,897,927,899 VND

www.haiphat.com.vn



ACTIVITIES OF INVESTOR RELATION DEPARTMENT

° The performance of HPX stock price

Despite the serious impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Vietnamese stock market in
2020 witnessed a spectacular recovery and
impressive growth in almost all aspects at the
end of the year. Market liquidity increased
sharply to a record high, the average transac-
tion value in 2020 reached over 7,420 billion
VND per session, increased by 59.3% com-
pared to the average of 2019.

Stock ticker HPX of Hai Phat Investment Joint

Stock Company always maintains its stability
with an average growth rate of 30% per year,
dividend payout ratio from 15% - 20% per year,
stock price remains stable at around 27,000 -
30,000 VND per share. With sustain business
performance and high liquidity, HPX has
attracted the attention of domestic and
foreign investors and was chosen to be added
to the MSCI Small Cap Index.
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a Investor and Shareholder Relations Activities

Hai Phat identifies Shareholders and Investors
as strategic partners, thus IR activities were
continuously improved throughout the year.
The Company's information was provided
transparently, objectively in accordance with
Circular 155/2015 / TT-BTC, ensuring fair access
of information among shareholders, through
communicating channels such as website
and other mass media. In addition, Investor
Relations Department maintains regular
interactions with shareholders through events
such as the Annual General Meeting of Share-
holders, investors group meetings, and meet-
ings with analysts.

Meetings of the General Meeting of Share-
holders are held in accordance with the
agenda mentioned in the meeting invitation

INVESTOR
RELATIONS

letter. The Company has sent to shareholders
all information related to the meeting. In addi-
tion, at least ten days prior to the meeting
date, the announcement of the shareholder
meeting and all of the meeting documents
were publicized on Hai Phat's website to give
shareholders enough time to prepare. attend
meetings as required by relevant laws and
regulations.

Investor Relations activities keeps the lines of
communication open between investors and
the company, regularly updates information
regarding The Company on-going projects,
financial and operational status, thus, improve
investors trust and capital inflows into the

Company.
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° Market outlook for 2021

G Macroeconomic forecast

Vietnamese's GDP growth of 2020 reached its
lowest level in the past 20 years. However, with
the recovery of the agricultural and production
especially domestic consumption in the second
half of 2020, Vietnam became one of the few rare
countries in the world with GDP growth positive.
These results thanks to the Government's efforts
to control the spread of COVID-19, with appropri-
ate fiscal and monetary expansion policies,
which support economic growth while main-
taining a stable inflation and exchange rate.

Some forecasts about Vietnam's economy in

2021 are as follows:

PLAN AND ORIENTATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 2021

- GDP growth in 2021 will be 6.6%, with the recov-

ery of domestic consumption demand, manu-

facturing activities, trade agreements, and FDI
investment;

- Average CPI is 3.6% for the whole year 2021,
within the inflation target set by the Govern-
ment;

- Maintain expansionary monetary policy with
money supply and credit growth of 14% and 13%,
respectively. The VND is expected to appreciate
in 2021 with the foreign currency buying policy
from Central bank and accusations of currency

manipulation from the US.

a Vietnam Real Estate Market Outlook 2021

The real estate market in 2021 will be more
sustainable

Regarding the real estate market outlook in 2021,
PhD. Su Ngoc Khuong, Senior Director of Savills
Vietnam said that the national real estate
market and especially Hanoi is expected to
explode when a wide range of new projects will
be opened for sale and housing remains as an
essential demand. For the real estate market, the
residential sector always attracts the attention of
investors and customers and is likely to expand
more compared to 2020. Meanwhile, offices,
commercial centers, serviced apartments, and
hotels will be less attractive.

Industrial real estate continues to be the “star: of
the market, however, now is the period to
prepare resources including land funds and
infrastructure to attract investors when the
pandemic is controlled.

In addition, there are a number of opportunities

B&o cao thusng nién HPX 2020

that push the real estate market to grow in 2021.
The market has adjusted quickly according to
the epidemic situation as well as the application
of technology to sales. In addition, the laws that
were amended will be the driving force for busi-
nesses such as

Enterprise Law

o gk CORONAVIRUS
significant
reductions; The
Securities  Law
will come into
effect from the
beginning of
2021 with the
regulation  on I M PACT
raising capital
from funds. In
addition, the

rapid disburse-

CORONAVIR
ECONOMIC -

.

ment of public investment is contributing to the
overall growth of the national economy. Further-
more, this is the lowest interest rate in the past 15
years, so families and young adults would have
favorable conditions to buy houses or invest.
Regarding the real estate outlook in 2021,
experts from Jones Lang LaSalle Group (JLL) said
that the trend of this year will be growing and
adapt to match the current demand. According
to experts from JLL, there are 5 trends leading
the real estate market in 2021.

The first trend is that "urban areas in urban
areas" or "integrated property" is often used for
large-scale projects. The real estate market is
gradually stable, homebuyers are more interest-
ed in a healthy and sustainable living environ-
ment rather than a simple living space. So devel-
opers began to attract buyers by creating
well-planned neighborhoods with lots of ameni-
ties, in order to help future residents avoid the
nuisance of rapid urbanization and lag of public
infrastructures. _

The second trend is remote office work trials.
This change was performed in many enterprises
and accelerated due to COVID-19.

Another trend is the fast-paced growth of
e-commerce boosting logistics and warehous-
ing, becoming a vital driver for the market.
Vietnam is currently one of the fastest-growing
e-commerce markets in Southeast Asia. In
recent years, the supply chain is increasingly
focused on
serving
consumers and
the speed of
delivery is one
of the main
factors in the
purchasing
decision.
Compared to

traditional

logistics opera-
tions, e-com-
merce uses

three times

more labor and warehouses. That is the main
driving force for the growing demand of inves-
tors for industrial real estate around the world.
Notably, businesses going towards a green and
sustainable direction is the 4th trend leading the
real estate market in 2021. According to analysis,
when company’s financial situation is difficult,
environment protection initiatives were one of
the first to be crossed out in the development
plan. But despite those challenges, companies,
and investors are expected to still offer “green”
options for a sustainable future ahead.

The fifth trend is investors are turning to inter-
ested in the healthcare industry. 2021 would
witness an increasing interest of investors in key
areas of the health crisis. Both domestic and
international investors have targeted health and
medical logistics and are in need of cold storage
closer to customers to serve the growing
demand for products sensitive with tempera-
tures such as vaccines, cosmetics, food, pharma-
ceuticals.

In order for the real estate market to grow stably,
and overcome the phase of difference in
supply-demand, Deputy Minister of Construc-
tion Le Quang Hung said that in 2021, the Minis-
try will continue to research and construct
mechanisms, policies, and solutions to encour-
age and attract foreign investment into the real
estate market; pay attention to encouraging the
development of real estate products to meet the
great demands of society such as social housing,
low-cost commmercial housing. At the same time,
the Ministry also regularly follows the market
situation, promptly adjusts, and dismisses
difficulties, limitations, and shortcomings of
mechanisms and policies, especially the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

www.haiphat.com.vn



e Strategic Orientation 2021 - 2025

The real estate market in 2021 will be negative
influenced by the unpredictable development
of COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, lack of
documents on policies for new types of real
estate such as Condotel (hotel apartment),
Officetel (office apartment combined hotel),
Shophouse. (commercial townhouses) will
leads to differences between one province to
another. The process of licensing, appraising,
and approving construction investment proj-
ects is long, complicated, with abundant
stages. Tax and transfer tax policies are still
complicated, making real estate investors not
really secure with their investments.

Annual Report 2020

Under this report, Board of Directors and
Executive Board of Hai Phat Investment Joint
Stock Company have determined that 2021 is
the year of "Preserve sustainable value", con-
tinuing to restructure the business and
becomes "A real estate developer with the
most complete and synchronized ecosystem
in Vietnam", creating a complete ecosystem
for Hai Phat and its subsidiaries to mutually
support each other in business operation in
the short, medium and long term.

In the period of 2021 - 2025, the Company still
focuses on core business products including
residential real estate products - especially

TR )

focusing on low-rise buildings, subdivisions,
implementation of long-term projects. Specif-
ically:

- Focus on promoting the implementation
and sales of urban area projects 5A - De Tham,
Cao Bang; Seahara Phu Yen project; Phan
Thiet Seahara project, a resort project combin-
ing commercial services and housing in Ha
Phong ward, Ha Long, Quang Ninh; Fidel Park
project - Dong Ha, Quang Tri.

- Focus on site clearance, investment prepara-
tion, implementation, and sales of Mai Pha
New Urban Area - Lang Son, An Binh 1& 2 New
Urban Area Project - Can Tho.

- Concentrate on auctioning low-rise housing
projects in provinces and cities with potential

O O O
WanV o Vo ST

s — (Ul

economic growth.

- Gradually establish and implement an
ecological chain of operational management
of resort real estate products to prepare for
the recovery period after the COVID-19 pan-
demic effect and adapt to “new” normal life.

- Continue to structure the business to maxi-
mize human resources, minimize costs,
ensure professionalism in operation.

www.haiphat.comwvn
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o Overview

2020 BUSINESS RESULTS

- The COVID- 19 pandemic in 2020 has negatively affected domestic and world economy, and the

domestic real estate industry had to face severe difficulties.

-2020 is the year when local government hold the Party Congress, human resources alteration in local

department has affected project investment preparation process.

- Projects were not implemented as planned due to the epidemic.

e Main Business Results

1. Restructure business

When the COVID-19 outbreak thrust economy
into “frozen situation”, the Company decided to
restructure the entire enterprise, as the follow-
ing contents: ; __

- Reorganized the functional debartment, rede-
fined the functionality and missions of each
department toward professional standard.

- Established two companies, namely Diamond
IC One Member Company Limited and Topaz PM
Vietnam Investment and Development One
Member Company Limited, in order to profes-
sionalize investment preparation and project
management process

- Established a subsidiary - Sapphire One
Member Limited Company for investment func-
tion, renamed HP Dong Do Company Limited to
Ruby One Member Limited Company. Trans-
ferred capital contribution in Chau Son and IWG

from HPX to Ruby Company.

2. Financial activities

- In 2020, the Company completed 02 period of
dividend payments by shares fofr‘ 3018, 2019 to
oo N TV

shareholders, thereby the Company's ‘tﬁr‘?xr&gg

capital increased from 1,999.9 billion to 2,644.8
billion.
- Debt structure through bond issuance, financ-

ing activities and working capital borrow.
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- Equitized Chau Son One Member Limited Com-
pany, finalized legal procedures to register Chau
Son as a public company, proceeding to listed on
Upcom.

- Reduced percentage of ownership in Hai Phat
Real Estate Investment and Business Joint Stock
Company (Hai Phat Land) from

95.775% to 75.775%.

- Divested capital in affiliated
with low percentage of
ownership such as Dai
Dong A Investment

Joint Stock Company,
Railway Real Estate

Joint Stock Company

to focus resources on
companies with vital

business activities.

3. Investment preparation and M&A activities

- In 2020, Hai Phat has completed legal proce-
dures and became the investor of the new urban
area Mai Pha - Lang Son, Vinh My - Hue resort. In
addition, the Company, with its subsidiaries and
partners, successfully auctioned the 5A urban
area project in De Tham, Cao Bang, the project
on resort combining commercial services and
housing in Ha Phong ward - Ha Long city -
Quang Ninh, the Housing project in Fidel Park -
Dong Ha - Quang Tri.

- The Phan Thiet Seahara project has been

4. Implementation activities

- Implemented the construction of the Seahara
Phu Yen project and a 1.2-hectare park in Phu
Yen, however the process has not been complet-
ed as planned due to the Covid 19 epidemic.

- Completed the acceptance testing process and
put the Roman Plaza project into operation and

the remaining buildings of The Vesta project in

approved by the Phan Thiet City People's Com-
mittee on the 1/500 Planning, but did not attain
the goal of construction on October 2020.

- The An Binh 1 & 2 New Urban Area Project has
not been approved with 1/500 Planning as
scheduled.

- Some projects such as TM1 - Nha Trang, New
urban area Nam An Khanh - Hanoi and some
transferred projects have not completed the
adjustment of 1/500 planning, approval of plan-

ning tasks, causing delay in the implementation.

accordance with the State's regulations and laws
provisions.

- Promoted the final settlement process of com-
pleted projects and put into operation including
Thuan An Central Lake - Trau Quy project, 24h

Van Phuc townhouse project.

5. Sales activities

- Completed final sales of the Roman Plaza project and The Vesta

project as planned.

- Organized and implemented sales plan of the project on resort

combining commercial services and housing in Ha Phong ward - Ha

Long city, Quang Ninh province, Fidel Park project in Dong Ha (Fidel

\ Central Park), Quang Tri, Urban Resort Project No. 5A - De Tham
ward, Cao Bang and several low-rise housing auctioned projects.
I - Sales of Seahara Phu Yen project was slow due to the COVID-19

..Organization Structure

| epidemic.

6. Operational Management Activities

- Completed the transfer of the operational management

y2 process of The Pride and The Vesta projects to the Project

management board.
- In spite of some problems related to the operational man-

agement process of The Vesta, The Pride, and Roman Plaza

projects, the Company has gradually resolved the issues and
minimized disputes between the developer and customers.

www.haiphat.com.vn



e Financial Indicators in 2020

2. Financial Indicators in 2020

1. Business results S TP 0 2028 +/'
Unit: Millions VND
I. LIQUIDITY RATIOS
2020 2020 2019 2020/2019
(Consolidated) (Parent Company) (Parent Company) (Parent Company) Sa=hRatle oL o P
1. Revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services 1,320,627,915,814  800,567,762,205 3,522,160,952,173 23% guuentiatio e . o0
3. Net revenue from sale of goods and rendering of services  1,320,627,915,814  800,567,762,205 3,522,160,952,173 23% Quickratig o= 008 2%
4. Cost of goods sold and services rendered 990,130,932,451 640,035,042,777 3,149,071,046,562 20% II. SOLVENCY RATIOS
5. Gross profit from sale of goods and rendering of services ~ 339,496,983,363  160,532,719,428  373,089,905,611 43% RELTTE o) - cxel 220 259 e
6. Finance Income 147,986,222,500  540,954,054,085  411,103,573,034 132% Bl ifesoyss ey e L -
7. Finance Expenses 214734,429599 216,800,581,571  130,763,137,154 166% Desl otz feEsis b2 O] 2
In which: Interest Expense 194,625,426,154  200,605,472,802  114,148,746,847 176% el DnEnE e LI o Lhcs il
8. Shares of (loss) profit of associates (889,206,465) I1l. OPERATING RATIOS
8. Selling expenses 25942,221,748  33,705376,154  94,082,806,517 36% [nieptonidinarenRatio ek Q69 <]
9. General and administrative expenses 117,773,299,352  79,577,651,982  108,252,928,491 74% ACONIIRECaV AR S TNOVET 20 S5 po2Zt
10. Operating profit 128,144,048,699  371,403,163,806 451,094,606;483 . 82% Receivables TULRes 208 o  TIE
11. Other income 20,262,106,318  26,100,480,074  2,312,870,314 1.13% Jl S e Sl 7%
12. Other expenses 12,740,508,007  9,576,485,900  3,150,778,307 304% IV- PROFITABILITY RATIOS
13. Other profit (loss) 16,521,598,311  16,523,994,174 (837,907,993) -1.97% ROR o e Je%
14. Accounting profit before tax 144,665,647,010  387,927,157,980  450,256,698,490 86% RoE 1% 1% 126
15. Current corporate income tax expense 45670,868,799  49,720,800,591  143,924,976,413 35% NetRIelRlgexdin 8L g S5
16. Deferred tax income (expense) 1,383,299,000 BRI MV argin 12.8% i i G -
17. Net profit after tax 97,611,479,211  338,206,357,389  306,331,722,077 110% Qo t Margin e 200 &R

According to the Plan 2020 approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders:

- Net Revenue in 2020 is from 1,600-2,000 billion VND, the parent company contributed 1,100 - 1,500 _
billion VND S 1L PSRl
- Profit after tax is from 350 to 400 billion, the parent company contributed 300-330 billion.

Thus, in 2020, if including income from financial activities, revenue and profit targeted of the Parent
Company were achieved. However, consolidated profit did not meet the set plan due to the impact of
the Covid-19 epidemic, so the revenue and profit of subsidiaries contributing to the consolidated profit
fell significantly. In addition, the Company has not recognized any profit from the transferred capital
of a subsidiary in the Consolidated Income Statement, but only recorded as the undistributed earnings

on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Annual Report 2020 www.haiphat.com.vn <7>
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Liquidity Ratios
Cash ratio
Quick ratio

Current ratio

The liquidity ratios of the Company are relatively positive and was improved compared to the begin-
ning of the year, for example the current ratio increased from 1.00 to 1.10 and the quick ratio increased
from 0.53 to 0.68 over last year.
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Asset Structure
Current Assets/ Total Assets
Long-term Assets/ Total Assets

The proportion of long-term assets in total assets of the Company tends to increase steadily. The main
reason is an increase in long-term receivables from deposits for projects investment cooperation and

an increase in investment properties account when the projects were accepted and put into operation.
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Solvency ratios
Debt/ Total Assets - Liabilities/ Total Assets
Debt/ Owners Equity - Liabilities/ Owners Equity

The solvency ratios of the Company decreased gradually over the last two years. This is a positive signal
about the financial situation of the Cérr.ﬁ.ﬁany when total assets and equity increased slightly while
total debt and liabilities declined slowly. On 31/12/2020, the liabilities to total assets ratio decreased to
0.56 and the liabilities to equity ratio to 1.27. Meanwhile, the debt't<'>__-t0tal assets ratio decreased to 0.28
and the debt-to-equity ratio was 0.63.

The total interest expenses in 2020 was about 230 billion VND, decreased by 9% compared to 2019.
However, the interest capitalized into the value of the project decreased sharply compared to 2019,
about 89% due to the majority of Company'’s projects were completed and accepted by the end of 20719.
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Operating Ratios
Total Assets Turnover - Inventoy Turnover Ratio
Receivables Turnover - Total Assets Turnover

The Company witnessed a significant decreased in Operating ratios compared to 2019, the reason is
that the Revenue and COGS in 2020 suddenly decreased compared to 2019 (Revenue decreased by
77%, COGS decreased by 80%) while the remaining accounts such as Inventory, Total Assets and
Accounts receivable did not decline at the same rate. As a result, inventory turnover decreased by 57%
from 1.39 to 0.6, accounts receivables turnover decreased by 62% from 9.03 to 3.4 and Total assets
turnover decreased by 77% from 0.48 to O.11.
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Profitability Ratios
ROA - ROE R
Net Profit margin - Operat_in‘g" Profit ma gin

4.8% and 11.3%, respectively. Although Profit after tax in 2020 increases by 10%, Net profit from 6perat-
ing activities decreases by 18% but net revenue decreased 77%, leading to net profit margin increased

from 8.7% to 42.2%, operating profit margin increased from 12.8% to 46.4%.

Profitability ratios of the Company ROA and ROE in 2020 remained the same compared to 2019, at
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PROJECT PORTFOLIOS IN 2021

NEW URBAN AREA
MAI PHA - LANG SON PROJECT

NEW URBAN AREA
AN BINH 1 PROJECT

NEW URBAN AREA
AN BINH 2 PROJEC

el
- 2

THE SEAHARA
PHU YEN PROJECT

HP GALAXY CAO BANG
PROJECT

) ‘,_,_;

PROJECT ON RESORT
COMBINING COMMERCIAL
SERVICES AND HOUSING
- LA EMERA HA LONG

www.haiphat.comvn @



D NEW URBAN AREA MAI PHA - LANG SON PROJECT

Name: Mai Pha New Urban Area - Lang Son city - Lang Son province
Location: Mai Pha Commune, Lang Son City, Lang Son Province
Project Scale: 91.73ha, population of 10,000 people

Total investment: 3,381 billion VND

Product type: Villa, townhouse, shophouse and high-rise apartment

Time of implementation: 2020 - 2026

www.haiphat.com.vn @



NEW URBAN AREA AN BINH 1 PROJECT

Name: New Urban Area An Binh 1

Location: An Binh Ward, Ninh Kieu District, Can Tho City
Project Scale: 164.3 ha

Total investment: 4,981 billion VND

Product type: Villa, townhouse, shophouse and high-rise apartment

Time of implementation: 2020 - 2026

Annual Report 2020
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NEW URBAN AREA AN BINH 2 PROJECT

Name: New Urban Area An Binh 2

Location: An Binh Ward, Ninh Kieu District, Can Tho City
Project Scale: 58.4 ha

Total investment: 4,160 billion VND

Product type: Villa, townhouse, shophouse and high-rise apartment

Time of implementation: 2020 - 2026

Annual Report 2020 www.haiphat.com.vn
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THE SEAHARA
HOTEL & VILLAS PHAN THIET

. | _i E Name: THE SEAHARA - HOTEL & VILLAS PHAN THIET
i =
i :! o Location: Vo Nguyen Giap Street, Phu Hai Ward, Phan Thiet City, Binh Thuan
s ;. T _ Province
: ”_“:':z, =l e
e g ) LT e —— Project scale: WAL
S oeAel TEER e Lo
: T e T Total investment: 2,332 billion VND
= P
g Product type: 02 blocks of high-rise apartments with 1,408 resort apartments, 109
low-rise villas.
Time of implementation: From QI1/2021 to Qll1/2023
Operation manager: International Winchester Group (IWG)

Architectural design consultant: Ha Son Construction & Investment Consulting Joint Stock Company

Planning Consultant: MHA Partner Company Limited

www.haiphat.com.vn



THE SEAHARA
PHU YEN PROJECT

Name: The Sehara Phu Yen Shop Villas

Location: Tran Kiet Street, Tuy Hoa City, Phu Yen Province.
Project Scale: 1.4ha and marine park of 1.2ha

Total investment: 238 billion VND

Product type: 46 shopvillas

Time of implementation: From QI1/2020 to QI11/2021
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D GALAXY GAO BANG PROJECT

Name: HP Galaxy Cao Bang

Location: Urban Area 5A, De Tham Ward, Cao Bang City, Cao Bang Province

Project Scale: 4.35ha

Total investment: 886 billion VND

Product type: 203 shophouse, 11-storey buildings (4 floors of shopping center, 7 floors of

hotel apartments).

Time of implementation: From QI/2021 to Qll1/2023
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PROJECT ON RESORT COMBINING COMMERCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING - LA EMERA HA LONG

Resort combining commercial services and housing - La Emera Ha Long

, Ha Long City, Quang Ninh Province

Ha Phong Ward
12.66 ha

Location:

Project Scale:

200 billion VND

1

1

Total investment:

Townhouse, villa, shophouse, commercial service area

Product type:

Time of implementation: 2020 - 2024

www.haiphat.com:vn
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» VINH MY - HUE PROJECT

Name: Vinh My resort Project

Location: Vinh My commune, Phu Loc district, Thua Thien Hue provinc

Project Scale: 39.58 ha

Total investment: 656 billion VND

Product type: An eco-friendly with local culture resort

Time of implementation: From QI/2021 to QIV/2023
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THE ROLE OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Corporate risk management is one of the key factors to ensure the stable and sustainable devel-

opment of the business. Therefore, the Board of Directors and the Executive Board decided to

perfect the risk management system by changing the governance model and establishing an

internal audit committee.

° What is corporate risk management (CRM)?

According to COSO1 ERM-2004 the interna-
tional consulting organizations making guid-
ance on building corporate risk management:
Risk is the influence of uncertain factors that
negatively affects the goal of the business,
according to which:

- Risks associate with business geals, any
change in business objectives will lead to
modification in risks;

- Risks usually are uncertain, which can affect
business goals negatively (threats) or positive-
ly (opportunities). This is a 2-sides effect of

risks that can increase or decrease the value of
the enterprise.

- Enterprise risk management is systematic
process, principles and applies in enterprise
setting. . Because the risks cannot be com-
pletely eliminated, businesses need to apply
the enterprise risk management model to
promptly detect events, evaluate and manage
the worst possible situations to minimize
impacts of threats and seize the opportunity.

e Necessity of corporate risk management

The goal of corporate risk management is not
only to minimize risks, but also to manage
risks effectively in order to preserve and foster

organizational values. In pfhei_words, COrROsmme
At g

L me
"

-
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rate risk management helps managers make
accurate and effective decisions and minimize
damage during business operations.

Importance of corporate risk management:

a) Risks and measures taken provided to the
Board of Directors and Members' Council help
strengthen corporate governance.

b) Support businesses to achieve their strate-
gic goals through risk management tools,
specifically:

- Evaluate the possibility of occurrence and
the negative impacts, establish measures to
prevent, respond, or manage the impact of
situations on enterprises.

- Risk management does not focus on specific
risks but on the source of damage to the busi-
ness. Thus, ERM supports executive board to
improve the efficiency of business activities.

- Enterprises effectively respond to the chang-
ing business environment through identifying
and planning to respond to risks can proac-
tively handle crisis.

c) ERM helps businesses to build trust and
meet the increasing expectations of investors
and stakeholders. Currently, investors,
credit rating organizations may
require enterprises to announce
their ability to manage .
risks in order to
assess the correla- F“
tion between prof-
its and risks that
may be encoun-
tered.

d) ERM promotes a

consistent strategy and culture of risk, helps
managers focus on setting policies, defining
goals, operating mechanism, improving risk
quantification tools, enhancing risk manage-
ment responsibility and promptly identify
changes in the risk portfolio.

e) ERM optimizes the enterprises resources
use for managing and handling major risks:
Risk management allows enterprises to set up
a standard process in identifying, evaluating,
analyzing, prioritizing and managing main
risk.

f) ERM promotes the correlation of profits and
risks. Risk management based on the level of
risk that can be accepted and managed
appropriately, helping enterprises to promptly
grasp opportunities (high risks, high profits).

The ‘Three Lines of Defense’ model is a simple
and effective approach, to strengthen the
ability of risk management and control by
clarifying the roles and duties of stakehold-
ers. Therefore, the Board of Directors and
the Executive Board constantly
improved the company's risk man-
agement system according to this
model.



The Three Lines of Defense Model

Governing Body/ Board/ Audit Committee

Senior Manager

1¢t Line of Defense 2" Line of Defense 3'd Line of Defense

Financial Control

Management
Controls Security
Risk Management
Internal
Audit
Quality
Internal
Control
Inspection
Measures
Compliance
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External Audi

Regulator

The ‘Three Lines of Defense’ model promotes role and responsibility in risk management for
businesses, clearly identifies the roles of 3 groups related to the effectiveness of risk manage-
ment. This model - suitable for all organizations also provides a new perspective on risk manage-
ment, ensures the constant success of risk management measures and promotes the effective-
ness of the risk management system.

The ‘Three Lines of Defense’ model was designed to support the Board of Directors, Board of
Members, Executive Board in risk management. Thus, they need to ensure that the principle of
‘Three Lines of Defense’ is applied in accordance with corporate organizations.

/ - The first line of defense -

A functions that own and

/’ manage risk. This line includes sales

/ function and supporting functions

K (human resources, information technology,

financial accounting ..). This line is responsible for
maintaining and implementing the control and risk
management procedures. Depending on the

- The second line of decentralization in the enterprise, the heads

defense - functions that of first lines are responsible for building,
oversee or specialize in risk implementing, controlling and
management, compliance. This line is monitoring the process.
responsible for general risk management
for the whole enterprise; was set up to
reinforce, construct, and monitor the first line and
ensure that it has been properly designed in terms of
process, control measures, and working towards
the right direction. The second line can partic-
ipate in the modification and construc-
tion of risk management system, - The third line of
internal control and in support of defense - functions that

the operation of the first line. provide independent assur-
ance, above all internal audit with
the first and second line. This line
includes departments that perform internal
o e bt X O audit activities then report directly to the
\ Board of Directors / Board of Mem-
\ bers on the effectiveness of risk

ol
N o management.

www.haiphat.com.vn



IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT IN 2020

o Strengthening the risk management system

- In 2020, realizing the importance of risk management for the Company, the Board of Directors
consulted and has the approval at the 2020 General Meeting of Shareholders on the change of
the model from the Supervisory Board to the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors has estab-
lished and completed lines of defense for risk management:

- Strengthen the bureaucracy of the Audit Committee based on the Internal Audit Committee.

- Strengthen the bureaucracy of the Strategy Committee based on the Strategy Committee of
Board of Directors.

- Established the Internal Auditing Committee and recruited key personnel for the Internal Audit-
ing Committee.

4 \
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e Functions of Internal Audit

Internal audit plays a vital role in corporate governance. Internal auditors can perform an audit to
evaluate and make recommendations to improve the management process or perform consult-
ing on corporate governance issues. Consulting activities are often implemented on incomplete
governance systems or on backlog management problems.

Criteria of assessment:

1) Was the process of making strategic and operational decisions established and consistently
operated?

2) Was the process of monitoring risk management and control been fully and effectively imple-
mented?

3) Were activities that promote core values and ethics in the business were proposed and imple-
mented effectively?

4) Was the process related to the responsibility of reporting and effective management in the
company appropriately designed and effectively implemented?

5) Was the communicating process of risk and control information with relevant departments in
the company accurate and timely?

6) Was the coordination of activities and information exchange between the Board of Directors /

Supervisory Board, independent audit, Internal Audit, and management levels effectively imple-
mented?

e Implementation of risk management by 2020

Real estate business ethics is the prestige, branding and responsibility of the investor for their
own products. Not only before and during the sale, but even after the sale is completed, the inves-
tor must be responsible for after-sales management and ensure a healthy living environment in
the area, especially in the period of the global financial and economic crisis negatively affecting
Vietnam's economy. In 2020, the Board of Directors and the Executive Board have implemented
the risk management as follows:

www.haiphat.com.vn



Strategic Risk

No.  Type of Risk Description

1 Product & market Products fail to keep up with

positioning risk industry trends, economic situation,
environmental change, climate and

disease.

Measures taken

Develop a complete distribution channel, not just focus on the
Company’s products but also those of other real estate developers
to follow trends, understand customer’s taste and define suitable

product segments.

2 Macroeconomics Risks Fail to identify and adapt to
macroeconomic changes affecting
land fund development process and sales

policies.

Update regularly information related to economic,

political changes and have promptly analysis in order to establish
appropriate real estate products, target markets and sales policies.
Ensure the sustainable long-term development of the business,

land fund establishment and project implementation.

3 Communication risks ~ Failure to prevent and promptly
handle negative information affecting
the Company’s reputation and business

operations.

Regularly monitor and update information
about the Company on the media in order to

respond appropriately.

4 Key-person dependency Lack of key persons that can adapt

risks to business expansions.

Maintain HR assessment reports,
specifically train key managers and replace

unsuitable positions promptly.

@ Annual Report 2020

Operation Risk

No.  Type of Risk

Description

Measures taken

5 Demolition and site Delay of site clearance process, increase Make detailed plans for demolition and site clearance, coordinate with
clearance risks of compensation and provision costs, other authorities to promptly update the compensation expense and policy,
lack of cooperation from landowners. and support for landowners on the compensation and relocation process.
6 Legal risks Unclear provisions of the law do not Regularly observes and updates the State policies and laws related to
meet the needs of owning and real estate, frequently consult with state agencies to improve project
developing products. legality, avoid litigation disputes occurring in the sales, and put into
operation process.
7 Project management Unsatisfied product quality, Specialize each stage of project development to have a team of
risks slow construction progress, high level of expertise
and increased cost of project Regularly update product, market and technology changes to
implementation. provide quality advice for Board of Directors and Executive Board.
8 Sales risks Inappropriate sales strategies including  Regularly update economic situation, real estate market and establish
time of release and sales plans an active distribution channel to ensure appropriate sales
negatively affect cash flow plans. strategies and policies.
9 Financial risks Change in credit policies and regulations  Regularly update fiscal and monetary policies in order to develop
negatively affect financing activities a suitable financial plan for project implementation and credit
for project development and purchase financing policy for customers.
for customers.
10  After-sale operational  Although lack of expertise regarding Establish a professional and specialized urban service management

management risks

operational management activities,
Building Management Board is in charge
of this process which leads to some
consequences such as improperly
services, not fully exploit the potential

of the property and negatively affect

the business efficiency. This also cause
disputes and lawsuits regarding between
secondary investors and customers
regarding the operation of apartments

and high-rise buildings.

for each type of product. Currently the Company owns two
professional operations management subsidiaries, one is in
charge of building management, urban services and the other

one is responsible for hotel and resort management.

www.haiphat.comvn @



D RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 2021

1. Comprehensive review of structures in
every aspect including human resources,
markets, products, implementation
progress, methods, and processes.

3. Perform risk assessment
with internal audit.

5.Track and monitor
performance results

ment.

6. Cross-check the

2. Integrate risk management into
evaluation results.

strategic operations, project man-

B3ao cao thudng nién HPX 2020 www.haiphat.com.vn
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D SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS AND STRATEGIES

o Sustainable development goals

Over 17 years of establishment and devel-
opment, the mission of Hai Phat Invest-
ment Joint Stock Company was empha-
sized by the Board of Directors, including:

- Create high-quality products and
services to customers.

- Build a professional working environ-
ment, maximize the ability of each indi-
vidual, create opportunities for enthusias-
tic talents to develop their long-term

careers.

- Give shareholders the optimal and sus-
tainable benefits through a standard
corporation, governance model and pro-

fessional management.

- Harmonize social benefits with business
benefits, work together to contribute to

the community, protect the environment,

and create a lasting beautiful civilized life.

Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Compa-
ny always pursue growth of the enterprise
in parallel with contribution to national
economic development. The Company is
aware that the engagement with society
embed the sustainable development. We
understand that any disproportionate
development in the society can cause
negative impacts on the main business
activities of the Company. Along with
ensure sustainable growth and develop-
ment, Hai Phat always aims to create
value for the community, while minimiz-
ing the impact on the environment and

protecting natural ecosystems.

Annual Report 2020

e Sustainable Development Strategy

In our mission, we always aim for sustain-
able growth and development for the
business, the society and the country. To
achieve these the goal, we pursue devel-
opment strategy as follows:

- The sustainable development strategy
always harmonizes with the business
strategy of the Company. Hai Phat
establish a sustainable growth strategy by
improving the competitiveness to bring
profits to shareholders, investors, partners
and customers. The Company also proac-
tively applies innovations on technology
and safe materials in real estate projects
to create environment friendly products
and reduce waste of resources.

- Research and develop of high-value
products. Products created always have
high liquidity, not only bring benefits to
customers but also contribute to the eco-
nomic development of society.

- Manage the environmental impacts
during the project development and
construction process: We always apply
principles of responsible investment in
projects, advanced technology to opti-
mize and efficiently use raw materials,
energy efficiently in order to create solid
foundation for business performance in
the long-run.

- Create sustainable values with inves-
tors, partners and customers: \We always
maintain and develop strong relation-
ships with partners and suppliers, based
on the principle of compliance with laws,
equal, long-lasting profits as well as social
responsibility.

Human are our core resource. We

understand the importance of each indi-
vidual to build collective strength and
long-term competitive advantage. We
regularly organize training sessions to
improve the employee's expertise of
human, promote gender equality,
promptly reward and support employees
to achieve their personal goals in their
career.
In 2020 - the year of global supply chain
disruptions, COVID-19 pandemic, consid-
ered as the unprecedented "black swan"
phenomenon in human history once
again reinforces the importance of sus-
tainable value. A strategy with a holistic
vision helps business recover quickly after
the severe consequences caused by the
pandemic. At the time of the epidemic
outbreak, the Company continued to
maintain business activities, implement
sales plans through online channels,
ensure jobs for employees, and share diffi-
culties with the community.

www.haiphat.com.vn ‘



ACHIEVEMENT OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS IN 2020

Based on the goals and sustainable development strategy established by the Board of Directors,

the Execute Board has implemented policies and programs regarding sustainable development,

environmental and social compliance in daily business activities.

o Sustainable economic development

Economic performance is to ensure a strong
financial status, maintain production and
business results helps the Company provide
benefits people employees, shareholders and
partners. This is also an essential economic
foundation for the Company to contribute to
the state revenue through tax, re-invest in
sustainable development solutions such as

e Human resource strategy

With the strategy "Human are our core
resource", Hai Phat always affirms that human
resources are the vital contributor to business
success. Thus, we create an ideal working
environment for our employees that ensure
their personal development in order to help
them understand their empowerment and
responsibilities for the long-term growth of
the Company.

Hai Phat also formulates precise remunera-
tion policies that suits each position, skills and
qualifications in order to ensure that each
employee will have sufficient income and
deserve their contributions. In addition, the
Company always maintains basic policies
including social insurance, holiday bonus, 13th
month salary or internal bonding activities for
employees.

Annual Report 2020

voluntary programs for the community.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
significantly affected the national economy
and the real estate industry. Facing these
challenges, the Board of Directors has formu-
lated strategy to adapt to all market fluctua-
tions to maintain and develop stably.

O
o
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‘ Recruitment, training and development policies

In order to continue expanding the business
and connect with customers, Hai Phat contin-
uously focus on recruitment programs to
build a team of high-quality candidates ready
to work in a competitive environment. The
recruitment process is optimized and conve-
nient, ensuring efficient and quality human
resources.

Training programs have always been priorities
in our human resource development policy.
The company regularly organize training
programs in accordance with the needs of the
company such as: Training in recruitment and
sales operations.

In addition, when the State revises or promul-
gates new policies, the Company ensures that

training was carried out promptly for staffs in
order to maintain an absolute compliance
with laws such as the enterprise law and
investment law training program. In addition,
Hai Phat also sent specialized staffs to attend
training courses for management levels such
as an intensive program on Auditing Commit-
tee and an online internal audit program. In
2020, Hai Phat has implemented 9 skills train-
ing courses for brokers, 120,000 hours of train-
ing for leaders.

The company always creates an environment
for all employees to have the opportunity to
learn, enhance their effectiveness, fit them
with the job requirement in order to serve the
Company'’s sustainable development.

0 Equal and high-quality labor force structure

High quality labor force always the top priority
in Hai Phat's sustainable development strate-
gy. Over 70% of the Company’s staffs have
university diploma or higher degree, ensuring
the working process and building a sustain-
able company. Besides, Hai Phat promotes
gender equality with the number of female
employees accounting for 43% of the total

employees.

o |

Labor force structure by gender
Male | Female

‘Labor force structure by education
Post-Graduate | Graduate

The majority of employees are between the
ages of 30 and 42, the age at which the
employees have real experience and are the
golden age for the field of real estate invest-
ment. Especially, there are many young,
enthusiastic workers who have been taking
up Managerial and senior management posi-
tions in the business.

Labor force structure by seniority

College | Other

www.haiphat.com.vn
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@ Organizational structure and quality at all management levels

In 2020, Hai Phat modified the operating
structure, clarified functions and responsibili-
ties of each divisions. Based on these state-
ments, the Company assess their efficiency
and serve as the basis for identify the salary of
employees.

In 2020, Hai Phat appointed new members of
the Executive Board with the positions of
Deputy CEO. Born in the 1980s this new Exec-

0 Welfare policies for employees

With a sustainable development strategy, Hai
Phat always maintained a stable income for
employees over the years. The average salary
of the Company's employees reached
24,000,000 VND increased by 15% compared
to 2019. Especially in 2020 economy and real
estate industry were heavily affected by the
COVID-19 epidemic, Hai Phat ensures the
income for employees and there was not
downsize in the labor force.

The Company also provide a considerable

utive Board has accumulated knowledge and
experience in their expertized field. The Com-
pany believes that with the qualifications,
skills and enthusiasm from the new Executive
Board, the Company will gradually change its
management policies, improve the efficiency
of working performance and towards the
establishment of an international manage-
ment system.

budget in honoring the contributions of
employees such as salary adjustment, 13th
month salary, New Year bonus, additional
allowances for example gasoline, mobile
phone, lunch.

In addition to salary and bonus policies, Hai
Phat also created wide range of internal activi-
ties that strengthen staff cohesion such as
birthday, sickness, marriage, funeral, health
care policies, vacations.
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D COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

° Social Responsibility

Not only focusing on business growth, Hai
Phat pursues responsibility for the communi-
ty by implementing various charity programs
and fundraising in localities.

Specifically, during the flood in the Central
region at the end of 2020, Hai Phat has joined
relief efforts and handed donation of 1 billion
VND to help the victims in flooded areas of
Thua Thien Hue province. In the occasion of

e Responsibilities with customers

Because customers' interests as top priority,
Hai Phat always focuses on providing high
quality products and services, building
sustainable relationships with customers. The
Company implemented after-sales policies -
maintaining product quality, after-sales
program to improve customers' health and

Lunar New Year, Hai Phat gave presents to
poor patients with extremely difficult circum-
stances currently treated at Ha Dong General
Hospital.

100% of employees and the Board of Directors
have participated in these voluntaries activi-
ties, illustrates sustainable development
understanding were embedded with corpo-
rate culture.

UY AN AT TREN 0 QUGG VIET AW TAH TRUA THEN g
TIEP NHAN UNG HO KHAC PHUC BAO L

e

s

spiritual life. The company regularly organized
activities for residents here on holidays, Tet in -
the year. Through each union, residents have
the opportunity to bond with each other,
spread the value of a civilized life, and build an
increasingly rich cultural and spiritual life.

www.haiphat.com.vn @



e Responsibilities with partners and suppliers

As one of the leading real estate developers,
Hai Phat appreciates network with partners to
share opportunities and cooperate while com-
mitting benefits to all parties. Hai Phat has

become a reliable partner of reputable finan-
cial institutions, construction services and
materials companies.

e Responsibilities with shareholders and investors

Hai Phat always ensures business results,
improves management competency and
information transparency. Each year the Com-
pany pays steady dividends at 15% / year and
strictly implements the information disclosure
in accordance with the provisions of Circular

@ Annual Report 2020

No. 155/2015 / TT-BTC. Hai Phat also continu-
ously diversifies commmunications channels to
help shareholders and investors update regu-
larly information regarding strategic orienta-
tion, business results of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Urbanization and fast development of the real estate industry have negatively impacted the environ-

ment. As a business with high social responsibility, Hai Phat Investment Joint Stock Company is always

aware of the importance of environmental protection and considers this as a core criterion in sustain-

able development. Many projects of the Company have been awarded "Green Construction" such as

Roman Plaza and HPC Land Mark 105.

° Optimization of raw materials

Since foundation, Hai Phat has constantly
researched and applied advanced scientific
solutions in construction such as designing
according to sustainable standards, using
new material technologies for architecture
and structures, for example: high-efficiency,
energy-saving equipment (led lighting
system); insulating glass to ensure natural
light exposure and limit heat loss. The Compa-
ny also uses current advanced power man-
agement solutions including central air-con-
ditioning system, electrodynamic system in
order to reduce operating costs, as well as

save energy during the operation. In addition,
the building shell has detail layers of heat-re-
ducing and non-emission materials for walls,
low-e glass for windows. The electromechani-
cal solution and the installation of equipment
promote maximum energy saving for the
whole project.

In addition, Hai Phat focuses on promoting
diversity in land use and urbanization to
create a comprehensive overall development,
along with a clear and flexible planning struc-
ture to fulfil current and long-term needs.

e Compliance with laws on environmental protection

Understanding that the core value of a project
is to bring socio-economic benefits while
protecting the surrounding environment, Hai
Phat is committed to complying with the
current Government Environmental Stan-
dards for all projects such as National Techni-
cal Regulation on ambient air quality (QCVN

05: 2003 / BTNMT), noise (QCVN 26: 2010 /

BTNMT), domestic wastewater (QCVN 14:2008
/ BTNMT). v,

Hai Phat maintain an absolute compliance
with laws of environmental protection and
put environmental protection requirements
in the bidding documents. During project
implementation, Hai Phat uses environmental
monitoring programs, commits to comply
with periodic monitoring requirements and

sends reports to state agencies. In addition,
Hai Phat has invested, researched and
designed a high-tech wastewater treatment
system, ensure the quality of discharged
water into the regional drainage system
according to the National Technical Regula-
tion on domestic wastewater, take measures

to enSuring_§afe‘ty 'of-fii're_ and explosion. Thus,
s ' " MRl

Hai Phat aI'\Na:ys':p'u:csf’the'in"te're'_st%f custom-
ers first, ensures that economic development
goes hand in hand with environmental
protection, thereby form green prosperous
residential communities with quality living
standards. In 2020 the Company complied
with all environmental laws and regulations.
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e Dust reduction policies

- All means of transporting raw materials (soil,
sand, cement, stone, ...) are covered, it is strictly
forbidden to overload to prevent dust spread-
ing into the environment.

- Uses of temporary barriers made of corrugat-
ed iron (3-4m high) to prevent dust spreading
from the construction site to the outside and
dangerous warning signs are placed next to
the work site.

- Watering the surface of material gathering
areas on the routes of vehicles and vehicles to
the construction site with a frequency of 2

Q Water waste minimization policies

- Waste was collected, classiﬁed and moved to
the prescribed disposal location, do not pour
solid waste, oil residue of equipment into the
flow.

- Installing portable toilets were located in the
corner of the project area, away from the con-
struction site, residential areas and water
sources. All wastewater from toilets were

G Solid waste minimization policies

- During the construction phase, the Compa-
ny signed contract with transportation units
on collect, transport and treat solid waste to
the final disposal site of the city every day. The
Company also arranged a team of workers in
charge of collecting domestic waste generat-
ed in the construction phase and dumpih-gi""'it
in the garbage.

- During project operation, we implement

@ Annual Report 2020

times / day to minimize dust generated
during construction to the lowest level.

- Means of transport, machinery and equip-
ment used were tested for gas emissions
according to Vietnam Standard for CO, hydro-
carbon and dust (TCVN 6438-2001). All con-
struction equipment is authorized by the Viet-
nam Register for emissions.

- Plating trees outside the project areas and
paving yard to minimize dust blown into the

air.

transported and treated every 3 days. After
finishing the construction phase, the toilet
would be dismantled and backfilled.

- Building rainwater drainage system around
the project was regularly dredged 2 times per
week. Rainwater in the project area after
deposited was drained into the area's general
drainage system.

advanced solid waste management for exam-
ple waste classification at source. In addition,
in high-rise buildings the Company installs
modern waste collection system, in accor-
dance with fire prevention regulations. Hai
Phat also signs contract with the environmen-
tal company to collect and treat waste gener-
ated f rom-,l_l‘:_g project.
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o Noise reduction policies

- Speed of vehicles and machines operating in
the project and in residential areas is limited
to 10km / h

- Monitoring work schedules to check that
noisy work is carried out as specified. Machin-
eries that cause loud noise and vibration in
construction are only allowed to work during
the day. Activities such as drilling, mixing and

pouring concrete, digging are banned at
night.

- Exchanging equipment and/or processes for
a quieter alternative and regularly maintain
the muffler in construction equipment.

- Planting trees for noise reduction in areas
such as backup generator of hot-air-condi-
tioning system.

e Optimal and environment friendly design

Environmentally friendly design is one of our
top priorities when implementing projects.
The planning layout of the project is
researched based on an in-depth analysis of
the current conditions of the land, then the
Company selects ah optimal solution to limit
Chle advers_é effects of the weather conditions
and minirhizes the need for energy used for
cooling or heating purposes.

Project design and color must be consistent

nuunuw
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with the surrounding areas, combining with
the use of using sustainable materials. The
Company also takes advantage of the rooftop
areas to plant trees, creating green spaces
along with flower and miniature garden
design helps improve the climate conditions
and provide a healthy environment for
residents. In addition, Hai Phat also focuses on
design to take advantage of sunlight and
wind direction at each apartment.

Annual Report 2020

D APPLICATION OF DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION IN PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

From 2019, Hai Phat used Human Resource
Management Software (called CLECO) to
systematize and manage the working process
in the company. The system has helped to
improve employee productivity at the same
time, managers can evaluate and identify a
clear career path for members.

Especially during the COVID-19 epidemic,

under national lockdown, the use of this
system helps the Company monitor online
meetings instead of face-to-face, increase
working efficiency and reduce administrative
costs. The Company continues review,
research and upgrade application of software
to improve employee performance monitor-

ing.

www.haiphat.com.vn @
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

Hai Phat Investment JSC (“the Company"), formerly known as Hai Phat Construction - Tourism JSC,
i a joint stock company established under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Business
Registration Certificate No.0500447004 issued by the Ha Tay Department of Planning and Investment
on 15 December 2003, According to the 5™ amended Business Registration Cerlificate issued on 4
December 2008, the Company changed its name to Hai Phat Investment JSC. The Company also
subsequently received amended Enterprise Registration Certificates with the latest is the 16"
amended Enterprise Registration Certificate granted by the Hanoi Department of Planning and
Investment on 20 October 2020,

The Company's shares were officially listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange ("HOSE") under
the stock code HPX from 24 July 2018 pursuant to the Decision No.234/QD-SGDHCM issued by the
Director of HOSE on 2 July 2018.

The current principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries ("the Group") are to develop and
trade real estate properties, to provide civil engineering construction, to manage and operate real
estate properties, to provide real estale brokerage, to rent real estate products, to manage and
operate buildings and to conduct other businesses as per the Business Registration Certificate.

The Company's head office is located at 5* floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung MNew Urban
Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi, Vietnam.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Do Quy Hai Chairman

Mr. Le Tien Hung Standing Vice Chairman  Resigned on 27 June 2020

Mr. Mguyen Van Phuang Vice Chairman

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Vice Chairman Appointed on 27 April 2020

Mr. Le Viet Dung Member Appointed on 27 June 2020

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Dong Independent member Resigned on 1 September 2020
Wr. Hoang Ve Dung Independent member Resigned on 27 June 2020

Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa Independent member Appointed on 27 June 2020

Mr. Do Danh Tri Independent member Appointed on 10 October 2020

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

According to the Meeting Minutes No.02/2020/8B-DHDCDVHPX dated on 27 June 2020, the General
Shareholders of the Company has approved the termination of the operation of the Supervisory Board
of the Company from 27 June 2020. Accordingly, all members of the Supervisory Board have been
resigned on 27 June 2020

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Members of the Audit Committee during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Tran Vu Thai Hoa Chairman Appointed on 27 June 2020
Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Member Appointed on 15 October 2020

Hai Phat Investment JSC

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

MANAGEMENT

Members of the mmanagement during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Doan Hoa Thuan General Director

Mr. Le Viet Dung Deputy General Director Resigned on 27 June 2020

Ms. Tran Hoai Anh Deputy General Director Resigned on 20 April 2020

Mr. Ta Phu Cuong Deputy General Director Resigned on 20 April 2020

Mr. Dinh The Quynh Deputy General Director

Mr. Do Quy Thanh Deputy General Director Appointed on 28 February 2020
Mr. Ngo Quoc Huan Deputy General Director Appointed on 4 May 2020

Mr. Pham Huy Thong Deputy General Director Appointed on 4 May 2020

Mr. Nguyen Trong Thiet Deputy General Director Appointed on 4 May 2020
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Mr. Do Quy
Hai, Chairman.

Mr. Pham Huy Thong, Deputy General Director, is authorised by the legal representative of the

Company to sign the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries in accordance with the Letter of Authorization No.02/UQ-HP dated 25 January 2021.

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.



Hai Phat Investment JSC

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of Hai Phat Investment JSC (“the Company”} is pleased to present this report and the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group, and of the consolidated results
of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing those consolidated financial
statements, management is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

» prepare the consclidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group will continue its business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Group and to ensure that
the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for
safeguarding the asseis of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of the consolidaled results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for
the year ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial sta!emenls.@/?

i
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;;-';j-'_\F'prr:ﬂq | op.behatf of managerpent:

Pham Huy Thong
Deputy General Director

Hanoi, Vietnam

31 March 2021

Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited  Tel: +84 24 3831 5100
Ath Flaor, CornerStane Bullding Fax: +84 24 3831 5090
16 Phan Chu Trinh Street oLeom
e Haan Kiem District
Building a better I 1\l
working world Hanal, 5.R. of Vietnam

Reference: 614364722 1803543MHN
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Shareholders of Hai Phat Investment JSC i

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of Hai Phat Investment JSC (“the

Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”), as prepared on 31 March 2021 ]
and set out on pages 6 to 74, which comprise the consclidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, A
the consolidated income statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended

and the notes thereto.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consclidated financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consoclidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consclidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the Group's preparalion and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control, An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

& erapvnbeet Tiren o Earad & Young Global Limsted
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all matenal respects, of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of the consolidated results
of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements

relevant to the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.

P Tuan”
eneral Director

Audit Practising Registration
Certificate No. 1067-2018-004-1

Hanoi, Vietnam

31 March 2021

A by T of Ernsl § Vet Clobal Limded

Nguyen Hoang Linh

Auditor

Audit Practising Registration
Certificate No. 3835-2021-004-1

'

Hai Phat Investment JSC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2020

BO1-DM/HMN

Currency: VND

Code | ASSETS Notes Ending balance | Beginning balance
100 | A. CURRENT ASSETS 5,219,393,988,120 | 4,003,659,255,031
110 | 1. Cash and cash equivalents 5 603,097,534,147 402,944 656,545
111 1. Cash 403,097,534 147 344 147 642 223
12 2. Cash equivalents 200,000,000,000 | 58,797,014,322
120 | Il. Short-term investments 6 263,019,803,286 198,860,589,235
123 1. Held-to-maturity investments 263,019,803,286 198,860,589,235
130 | W, Current account receivable 1,969,293,614,273 | 1,133,290,472,764
131 1. Short-term trade receivables 71 271,678,447 650 516,180,592,084
132 2. Short-term advances to

suppliers 7.2 40,469 482 282 83,727,289,380
135 3. Short-term loan receivables g 247, 700,000,000 25,000,000,000
136 4. Other short-term receivables 9 1,449,299 349 850 528,891,492,554
137 5. Provision for doubtful short-

term receivables 10 (39,853,665,509) {30,508,901,264)
140 | IV. Inventories 11 2,288,377,116,056 | 2,160, 187,660,693
141 1. Inventories 2 288.377,116,056 | 2,160,187 660,693
150 | V. Other current assets 95,605,920,358 108,375,875,794
151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 12 6,477,072,028 17,773,564,403
152 2. Value-added tax deductible 20 £8,519,265,861 90,602,311,391
153 3, Tax and other receivables

from the State 20 609,582 469 -

i}



Hai Phat Investment JSC

CONSQOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 31 December 2020

BO1-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Code | ASSETS Notes Ending balance | Beginning balance
200 | B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,159,133,097,815 | 2,825,982,204,344
210 | . Long-term receivables 9 295,351,015,364 768,794,065,278
216 1. Other long-term receivables 285 351,015,364 764 794 085,278
220 | II. Fixed assets 129,291,290,625 123,033,624,678
221 1. Tangible fixed assets 14 128,906,601.912 122,883,812,178
222 Cost 153,992,212,653 142,350,363,767
223 Accumulated depreciation {25,085,610,741) (19,466,551,589)
227 2. Intangible fixed assets 384,688,713 149,812,500
228 Cost 574,050,000 221,000,000
229 Accumulated amortisation (189,361 287) (71,187,500)
230 | V. Investment properties 15 975,393,151,500 841,009,362 006
231 1. Cost 1,040,179,927,.508 883,003 479,415
232 2. Accumulated depreciation (64,786,776,008) (42,984,117,409)
240 | IV. Long-term assets in progress 17 76,303,910,198 58,867,035,067
242 1. Construction in progress 76,303,910,198 58.867.035,067
250 | V. Long-term investments 18 325,527,886,097 519,122,007, 433
252 1. Investments in jointly
controlled entities and
associates 181 51,902 886,097 404,042,007 433
253 2. Investment in other entities 18.2 273,625,000,000 115,080,000,000
260 | VI. Other long-term assets 357,265,844,031 514,156,109,882
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 12 17,533,044 005 21,353 872 176
262 2. Deferred tax assets 34.2 5,732,800,026 6,652,237,706
268 3. Other long-term assets 13 334,000,000,000 486, 150,000,000
270 | TOTAL ASSETS 7.378,527,085935 | 6,829,641,459,375
7

Hai Phat Investment JSC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 31 December 2020

BO1-DMN/HMN

Currency: VND

Code | RESOURCES Nofes Ending balance | Beginning balance
300 | C. LIABILITIES 3,757,583,714,943 3,836,841,692,723
310 | I. Current liabilities 2,557,753,904,340 | 2,298,780,887,031
3N 1. Short-term trade payables | 19.1 505,049 404 642 404 068 684 322
312 2. Short-term advances from

customers 19.2 55,956,710,864 203 08B 199,037
313 3. Statutory obligations 20 143,487,717,979 212,135,727 563
314 4, Payables to employees 22,313,356,207 17,138,534,163
315 5. Short-term accrued
expenses 21 157,315,648,003 317,195,044,058
313 6. Short-term uneamed
revenues 22 13,823, 465,534 9,748 964,415
319 7. Other short-term payables 23 146,429,974,290 154,442,142,283
320 8 Short-term loans 24 1,472 170,219,171 868,945,426,355
322 9. Bonus and welfare fund 25 31.207.407,.560 21,118,164,835
330 | . Non-current liabilities 1,199,829,810,603 | 1,538,060,805,692
338 1. Long-term deferred
revenue 22 4,342 850,144 -
337 2. Other long-term liabilities 23 223,442 610,180 391,834,574 677
338 3. Long-term loans 24 O6EB,054,006,769 | 1,142,699 647 825
N 4. Deferred tax liabilities 342 3,990,444,510 3,526,583,190
400 | D. OWNERS' EQUITY 3,620,943,370,992 | 2,992,799,766,652
410 | L Capital 26 3,620,943,370,992 | 2992 799,766,652
411 1. Share capital 2,644,945 820,000 [ 1,999 963,050,000
411a - Bhares with voling rights 2,644 945 820000 | 1,999,963.050,000
412 2. Share premium 60,986,800,000 60,986,800,000
420 3. Other funds belonging to
owners' equity 580,012,025 =
421 4. Undistributed earnings 516,430,308,503 893,787 588,711
421a - Undistribuled earnings by
the end of pricr year 430,535,271,688 489,669,354,221
421b Undistributed earnings of
current year 85,805,036 815 404,118,234, 4590
429 5. Mon-controlling interests 27 308,000,430,464 38,062,327 ,941
440 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
OWNERS' EQUITY 6,829,641,459,375
Ta Thi Hoan Le Hong Son Pham Huy Thong
Preparer Chief Accountant Deputy General Director

Hanoi, Vietnam

31 March 2021



Hai Phat Investment JSC

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2020

BOZ-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Code | ITEMS Notes Current year Previous year
01 | 1. Revenue from sale of goods
and rendering of services 281 1,329,627,915,814 | 3,431,936,907,385
02 | 2. Deductions 28.1 - -
10 | 3. Net revenue from sale of
goods and rendering of
services 281 1,329,627,915,814 | 3,431,936,907,385
11 | 4. Costof goods sold and
services rendered 29 (990,130,932,451) | (2,920,546,951,023)
20 | 5. Gross profit from sale of
goods and rendering of
services 339,496,983,363 511,389,956,362
21 | 6. Finance income 28.2 147,986,222,500 475,946,381,098
22 | 7. Finance expenses 30 (214,734,429,599) | (130,B67,040,443)
23 - In which: Interest expenses (194,625,426, 154) {114,252 650, 136)
24 | B. Shares of (loss)/ profit of
associates, joint ventures 18.1 (889,206,465) 1,004,201,962
25 | 9. Selling expenses 3 (25,942,221,748) (84,569,782,163)
26 10. General and administrative
expenses H (117,773,299,352) (144,572,990,269)
30 11. Operating profit 128,144,048,699 628,330,726,547
)| 12. Other income 32 29,262,106,318 8,251,284,T31
32 | 13. Other expenses 32 (12,740,508,007) {(4,063,341,564)
40 14. Other profit 32 16,521,598,311 4,187,943,167
50 | 15. Accounting profit before tax 144,665,647,010 632,518,669,714
51 | 16. Current corporate income tax
expenses 34.1 (45,670,868,799) |  (185,206,531,271)
52 17. Deferred tax
(expenses)income 34.2 (1,383,299,000) 5,655,119,289
60 | 18. Net profit after tax 97,611,479,211 452,967,257,732
9

Hai Phat Investment JSC PP
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020
Currency: VND
Code | ITEMS Notes Current year Frevious year
§1 | 19. Net profit after tax attributable
to shareholders of the parent 92,293,322,388 | 446,702,265,689
g2 | 20. Net profit after tax attributable
to non-controlling interests 5,318,156,823 6,264,992,043
70 | 21. Basic earnings per share 36 1,588
71 | 22. Diluted earnings per share 36 1,588

Ta Thi Hoan Le Hong Son
Preparer Chief Accountant
Hanoi, Viet Nam

31 March 2021
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2020

BO3-DN/HN

Currency: VND

Hai Phat Investment JSC

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

BO3-DMNHN

Currency: VND

Code | ITEMS Notes Current vear Previous year
. CASHFLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 | Profit before tax 144,665,647,010 632,518,669,714
Adjustments for:
02 Depreciation of tangible fixed
assets, invesiment properties
and amortisation of intangible
fixed assets 31,821,721.041 23,358,005,271
03 Provisions 9,344 764,245 30,000,000,000
05 Profits from investing activities (147,397,016,035) (481,427,751,064)
08 Interest expenses and bond
issue costs a0 210,888,915,994 130,867,040,443
08 | Operating profit before changes
in working capital 249,424,032,255 335,315,964,364
09 (Increase)/decrease in
receivables (190,169,623, 269) 557.844,551,182
10 {Increase)/decrease in
inventories (265,905,681,444) 1,647,046,642,183
1 Decrease in payables (158,600,785,000) |  (843,110,893,937)
12 Decrease in prepaid expenses 14,472,562 684 22.674.824,164
14 Interest paid {215,467,561,867) (220,690,152 470)
15 Corporate income tax paid 20 (152,503,745,606) |  (112,432,242,404)
17 Other cash outflow for
operating activities (16,187,198,957) {2,379,400,000)
20 | Met cash flows (used in)/from
operating activities (734,938,001,204) 1,384,069,293,082
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Purchase and construction of
fixed assets and other long-
term assets (48,458,902,178) (125,537,234,508)
22 Proceeds from disposals of
fixed assets 280,000,000 -
23 Loans to other entities (293,212,938, B66) (223,860,589,235)
24 Collections from borrowers 17,000,000,000 45,000,000,000
25 Fayments for investments in
other entities {393,166,495,525) | (1,478,877,493 850)
26 Proceeds from sale of
investments in other entities 1,238,690,788,433 592,.906,785,538
27 Interest and dividends
received 6,524,926,393 9,023,907,286
30 | Met cash flows from/ (used in)
investing activities 527,657,378,257 | (1,181,344,624,767)
11

Code | ITEMS Notes Current year Previous year
ll. CASHFLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
31 Capital contribution 1,380,000,000 30,000,000,000
A3 Drawdown of borrowings 1,607,712,022 545 720,731,413,047
34 Repayment of borrowings (1,194,267,088,807) |  (965,909,760,680)
36 Dividends paid/profit
distributed (7,391,433,1889) -
40 | Net cash flows from/{used in)
financing activities 407,433,500,549 | (215,178,347,633)
50 | Netincreasel/(decrease)in cash
for the year 200,152,877,602 (12,453,679,318)
60 | Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 402,944,656,545 415,398,315,863
70 | Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 5 603,097,634,147 402,944 656,545
Ta Thi Hoan Le Hong Son ]
Freparer Chief Accountant eneral Director

Hanoi, Viet Nam

31 March 2021
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Hai Phat Investment JSC (“the Company"), formerly known as Hai Phat Construction -
Tourism JSC, is a joint stock company established under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam
pursuant to the Business Registration Certificate No.0500447004 issued by the Ha Tay
Department of Planning and Investment on 15 December 2003. According to the 5% amended
Business Registration Certificate issued on 4 December 2008, the Company changed its
name to Hai Phat Investment JSC. The Company also subsequently received amended
Enterprise Registration Certificates with the latest is the 16™ amended Enterprise Registration

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.

' P

The Company's shares were officially listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange

("HOSE") under the stock code HPX from 24 July 2018 pursuant to the Decision No.234/QD-

SGEDHCM signed by the Director of HOSE on 2 July 2018,
develop and trade real estate properties, to provide civil engineering construction, to manage

and operate real estate properties, to provide real estate brokerage, to rent real estate
The Company's head office is located at 5™ floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New

The Group's normal course of real estate business is from 12 to 36 months. The Group's
Urban Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi, Vietnam.

products, to manage and operate buildings and to conduct other businesses as per the
normal course of business cycle for other business activities is 12 months.

The current principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are to
Business Registration Cerificate.

Certificate granted by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Invesiment on 20 October 2020.

The number of the Company's employees as at 31 December 2020 is; 100 (31 December

2019: 164),

'SMO]|0) SE 2JB SBUBIPISONS BY)
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

CORPORATE INFORMATION (conlinued)

1.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has 11 subsidiaries. The information of these subsidiaries, and the Company’s voting rights and equity interest

in the subsidiaries are as follows:

Equily
interest (%)

Principal activilies

Registerad office’s address

Vating rights (%)

No Company

1

Developing real estate

project

Con Tan Lap residential area, Xuong Huan ward, Nha

Trang city, Khanh Heoa province, Vietnam

78.00

78.00

HPH Mha Trang LLC

Real estate business

5" floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung Mew Urban
Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi, Vielnam
2™ floor, Viettel Binh Thuan building, Hung Vuong

81.59

81.59

Chau Son JSC (") (***)

2

Trading, developing real
estale projects

100.00

100.00

Hai Phat - Binh Thuan LLC

3

avenue, Phu Thuy ward, Phan Thiet city, Binh Thuan

province, Vietnam

o _
Em
L= 1]
g
50
w3
E2g
- oW
:‘EE
® e E
(= ]
ERS
% oD
LD

2™ flaor, CT4 building, The Pride, An Hung Mew Urban  Consulting brokerage,

Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong districl, Hanei, Vietnam

75.78 75.78

Investment & Trading JSC

Hai Phat Real Estate

4

Real estate business

9" Ly Thuong Kiet, Phu Nhuan Ward, Hue City, Thua

Thien Hue Province, Vietnam

100.00

100.00

Heritage Real Estate One-
member Limited Liability

5

Company ("Heritage LLC")

6 RubylLLC

Real eslate business

5 fleor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New Urban

100.00

100.00

Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi, Vietnam

Faost-investment

§" floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New Urban

Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi, Vietnam

77.00

77.00

PSP JSC (***)

7

property management

Real estate businass,

censulling brokerage

5" floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New Urban

50.50

50.50

IWG JSC (") ("**)

8

Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanei, Vietnam

Financial aid service

5" floor, B2 building, Roman Plaza, To Huu street, Dai
Mo ward, Nam Tu Liem district, Hanal, Vigtnam

100.00

100.00

Sapphire Invesiment One-
member Limited Liability

9

Company ("Sapphire LLC")
10 Topaz PM Vietnam Investment

Architectural and related
technical consulting

100.00

100.00

5" flgor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New Urban
Area, La Khe ward, Ha Deong district, Hangi, Vietnam

and Development One-member
Limited Liability Company

(“Topaz LLC®)

Financial aid service

5" floor, CT3 building, The Pride, An Hung New Urban
Area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi, Vietnam

100.00

100.00

Diamond IC One-member
Limited Liability Company

("Diamond LLC™)

1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

(*} On 16 September 2020, Ruby LLC, a subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Chau Son JSC with a total consideration of VND1,000 billion.
Accordingly, Chau Son JSC became a subsidiary of Ruby LLC and an indirect
subsidiary of the Group.

In 2020, Ruby LLC completed the transfer of 20,250,000 shares, equivalent to 18.41%
of equity interest in this company to individuals. Accordingly, the equity interest of the
Group in Chau Son JSC reduced from 100% to 81.59%.

(**) On 8 October 2020, Chau Scn JSC, an indirect subsidiary of the Group, completed the
acquisition of 50.5% shares of IWG JSC with a total consideration of VND2.5 billion,
Accordingly, IWG JSC becomes a subsidiary of Chau Son JSC and an indirect
subsidiary of the Group.

(***) Indirect subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group also has investment in joint ventures and associates as
described in Note 18.1,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Accounting standards and system

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("the Group”),

which are expressed in Vietnam dong (“VND"), are prepared in accordance with the

Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and other Vietnamese Accounting Standards

issued by the Ministry of Finance as per:

» Decision Mo. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuvance and
Pramulgation of Four Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 1);

» Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Fromulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 2);

 Decision Mo, 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 3);

» Decision No. 122005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Series 4); and

»  Decision Mo. 100/2005/QD-BETC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vielnamese Accounting Standards (Series 5).

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, including their utilisation
are not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles,
procedures and practices and furthermore are not intended to present the consolidated
financial position and results of consolidated operations and consolidated cash flows in
accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other
than Vietnam.

Applied accounting documentation system
The Group's applied accounting documentation system is the General Journal system,
Fiscal year

The Group's fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its consolidated financial statements
starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

2.

2.4

25

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Accounting currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in VND which is also the Group's
accounting currency.

Basiec of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continued to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounling policies, All intra-company
balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains or losses resulting from intra-company
transactions are eliminated in full.

Mon-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assels not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity
in the consclidated balance sheet.

Impact of change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is recorded
in undistributed earnings.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of not more than three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value,

Inventories

Inventory property

Property acquired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than
to be held for rental or capital appreciation, is held as inventory property and is measured at
the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition, and
net realisable value,

Costs concludes:

» Freehold rights for land;

= Amounts paid to contractors for construction; and

= Borrowing costs, planning and design costs, costs of land compensation and site
preparation, property transfer taxes, construction overheads and other related costs.

Met realisable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price in the crdinary course of the business,
based on market prices at the reporting date and discounted for the time value of money if
material, less estimated costs to completion and the estimated costs of sale,

The cost of inventory property recognised in the consolidated income statement on disposal

is determined with reference to the specific costs incurred on the property sold and an
allocation of common costs based on the relative size of the inventory property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

a3

3.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other inventories (continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition, and net realisable value,

Net realisable value represents the estimated =selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cosls to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The Group applies perpetual method to record other inventories which are valued on weighted
average basis.

Frovision for obsolate inventories

An inventory provision is created for the estimated loss arising due to the impairment of value
(through diminution, damage, obsolescence, etc.) of inventory properties for sale, raw
materials, finished goods, and other inventories owned by the Group, based on appropriate
evidence of impairment available at the consolidated balance sheet date.

Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded into the cost of goods sold
account in the consolidated income statement.
Receivables

Receivables are presented in the consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts
due from customers and other debtors, after provision for doubtful debts,

The provision for doubtful debts represents amounts of outstanding receivables at the balance
sheet date that the Group considers to be doubtful of being recovered. Increases or decreases
to the provision balance are recorded as general and administralive expense in the
consolidated income statement.

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the tangible fixed asset to working condition for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carmrying amount of
the assets and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal

(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

35

3.6

.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amartisation,

The cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of preparing the intangible fixed asset for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements are added to the carrying amount of the assets and
other expendilures are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred,

When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the
consolidated income statement,

Leased assets

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at inception date and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

A lease is classified as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessee

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor
Assets subject to operating leases are included as the Group's investment properties in the
consolidated balance sheet Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are

recognised in the consolidated income statement as incurred.

Lease income is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of tangible fied assets and amortisation of intangible fixed assets are calculated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Building and structures 3-50years

Machinery and equipment 3-15years

Means of transportation 5 - 8 years

Office equipment 3-7 years

Computer software 3 -5years
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3.

3.8

3.9

3.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are staled at cost, including transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an investment property that has already been recognised
is added to the net book value of the investment property when it is probable that future
economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing investment property, will flow to the Group.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of each asset as follows:

Buildings and structures 48 - 50 years
Land use rights 48 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years

Land use rights recognised as investment property include land use rights with a definite term
granted to the Group for the purpose of development of investment properties. These land
use rights are depreciated over the term of the license,

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the year of
retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another
party or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made from investment
properties when, and only when, there is change in use, evidenced by commencement of
owner-gccupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. The transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories does not change the cost or
the carrying value of the property for subsequent accounting at the date of change in use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds, Borrowing costs are recorded as expense during the year in which
they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as explained in the following
paragraph.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily take a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset,

FPrepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the

consolidated balance sheet and amortised over period for which the amounts are paid or the
periad in which economic benefits are generated in relation to these expenses.
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3.

3.10

an

312

3.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
PREPAID EXPENSES (continued)

Short-term prepaid expenses include real estate commission fees, provisional corporate
income tax on down-payments from customers for the Group's real estate projects and other
costs that generate economic benefits within a business cycle,

Long-term prepaid expenses include major overhaul expenditure, tools and equipment used
of more than one year in large amounts and other costs that generate economic benefits more
than one business cycle.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of a business
combination is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued, and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination. ldentifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at fair values at the date of business
combination.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of
the cost the business combinalion over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If the cost of a business
combination is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation. Goodwill is amortised over
10-years on a straight-line basis. The parent company conducts the periodic review for
impairment of goodwill of investment in subsidiaries. If there are indicators of impairment loss
incurred is higher than the yearly allocated amount of goodwill an the straight-line basis, the
higher amount will be recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Assets acquisitions and business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own assets and business activities. At the date of
acquisition, the Group considers whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a
business, The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an
integrated set of activities is acquired in addition to the assets.

When the acquisition of subsidiaries does not represent a business combination, it is
accounted for as an acquisition of a group of assets and liabilities. The cost of the acquisition
is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values, and no
goodwill or deferred tax is recognised.

Investments

Investments in associates

The Group's investment in ils associates are accounted for using the equity methed of
accounting. An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence thatis neither

subsidiaries nor joint ventures. The Group generally deems they have significant influence if
they have over 20% of the voting rights.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

Under the equity meathod, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
plus post acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill
arising on acquisition of the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
Goodwill is not amortised and subject to annual review for impairment. The consolidated
income statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition results of operation of the
associate.

The share of post-acquisition profit/(loss) of the associates is presented on face of the
consolidated income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. Dividend/profit sharing receivable from associates reduces
the carrying amount of the investment.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting year and use
the same accounting policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring
the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Investments in joint ventures

The Group's investment in jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost plus post joint venture changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly
controlled entity. The consolidated income statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition
results of operation of the jointly controlled entity,

The share of profitf{loss) of the jointly controlled entity is presented on face of the consolidated
income statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. Dividend/profit sharing received or receivable from jointly controlled
entities reduces the carrying amount of the investment.

The financial statements of the jointly controlled entities are prepared for the same reporting
pericd and use the same accounting policies as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Investments in other entities

Investments in other entities are stated at their acquisition costs.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments
Provision far invesiments

Provision of the investment is made when there are reliable evidences of the diminution in
value of those investments at the balance sheet date.

Increases or decreases to the provision balance are recorded as finance expense in the
consolidated income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at their acquisition costs. After initial recognition, held-
te-rmaturity investments are measured at recoverable amount, Any impairment loss incurred
is recognised as finance expense in the consolidated financial income statement and
deducted against the value of such investments.

Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Provisions
General provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group have a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefilts will be required to seltie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the abligation.

When the Group expect some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a consoclidated asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in
the consolidated income statement net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pretax rate thal reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
expense in consclidated income statement.

Appropriation of net profits

Met profit after tax (excluding gain from bargain purchases) is available for appropriation to
shareholders after approval of Board of Directors (after approval by the annual general
meeting), and after making appropriation to reserve funds in accordance with the Company’s
Charters and the Vietnam's regulatory requirements.

The Group maintains the following reserve funds which are appropriated from the Group's net

profit as proposed by the Board of Directors and subject to approval by shareholders at the
annual general meeting.
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3.

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Appropriation of net profits (continued)

Bonus and welfare fund

This fund is set aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouraging, comman

benefits and improvement of the employees' benefits, and presented as a liability on the
consclidated balance sheetl.

3.17 Advances from customers for purchase of residential properties

3.18

Payments received from customers as deposits for the purchase of residential properties in
the future, which have not met the conditions for revenue recognition, are recognised and
presented as "Advances from customers” in the liability section of the consolidated balance
sheet Discounts under the sale programs, which is treated as sale deductions, are recognised
as a deduction to “Advances from customers” when the underlying sale contracts have not
satisfied the conditions for revenue recognition during the year,

Payments received from customers, in the form of loan agreements, are recognised and
presented as "Other payables” in the liability section of the consalidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, excluding trade discount, rebate and sales return.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Revenue from sale of inventory property

Revenue from sale of inventory property is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the properties have passed to the buyer, normally at the time of handover of
properties to the buyer.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually upon the delivery of the goods.

Rendering of services

Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised by reference to
the stage of completion. Where the contract cutcome cannet be reliably measured, revenue
is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised which are recoverable,

(3ains from secunities trading, capital transfer

Gains from securities trading and capital transfer are determined as the excess of selling
prices against the cost of securities sold. Such gains are recognised on the trade date when
the relevant contracts are executed.

Interest

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the
asset) unless collectability is in doubt
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Dividends

Income is recognised when the Company's entitiement as an investor to receive the dividend
is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating lease is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Taxation
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authonties. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the consolidated
balance sheet date.

Current income lax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when
it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also
dealt with in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for
the Group to off-set current tax assels against current tax liabilities and when the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
consolidated balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, excepl:

» where the deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary difference which anises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the
related transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

= in respect of deductible temporarily differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised,

Defarred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temparary differences, carried forward
unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

= where the deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary difference which arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the
related transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
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3.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax {continued)

= in respect of deductible temporarily differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each consolidated balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Previously
unrecognised deferred tax assels are reassessed al each consolidated balance sheet date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based on lax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted at the consolidated balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in the equity account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the
Group to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on:

= either the same taxable entity; or

= when the Group Intends either settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or lo
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future year in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

3.

320

321

322

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit{loss) after tax for the
year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group (after adjusting for the bonus and
welfare fund) by the weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profiti{loss) after tax
aftributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Segment information

A segment is a component determined separately by the Group which is engaged in providing
products or related services (business segment) or providing products or services in a
particular economic environment (gecgraphical segment), that is subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other segments.

The Group's business segments include the sales of real estate products, leasing and
rendering real estate brokerage services. Management defines the Group's geographical
segments is within territory of Vietnam.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Group if ane party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, or when the Group and other party are under
common control or under commen significant influence. Related parties can be enterprise or
individual, including close members of the family of any such individual.
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MOTES TGO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

4,

4.1

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR
Establishment of new subsidiaries
Heritage LLC

According to the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company No.17/NQ-HDQT dated
7 May 2020, the Board of Directors has approved the decision to establish Heritage LLC.,
Heritage LLC is a one-member limited liability company incorporated under the Law of
Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate No.33016875033
issued by the Thua Thien — Hue Department of Planning and Investment on 15 May 2020,
This subsidiary has a registered charter capital of VND250 billion and the Group holds 100%
equity interest. In 2020, the Group has contributed capital to this company and as at 31
December 2020, the Group has completed the capital contribution with total amount of
WND250 billion.

The current principal activities of Heritage LLC are to trade real estate properties, land use
rights, to construct houses, to provide civil engineering construction and to conduct other
businesses as per the Enterprise Registration Certificate.

Sapphire LLC

According to the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company No.31/NQ-HDQT dated
23 September 2020, the Board of Directors has approved the decision to establish Sapphire
LLC. Sapphire LLC is a one-member limited liability company incorporated under the Law of
Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0109355762
issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 25 September 2020. This
subsidiary has a registered charter capital of VND120 billion and the Group halds 100% equity
interest. In 2020, the Group has contributed capital to this company and as at 31 December
2020, the Group has completed the capital contribution with total amount of YND120 billion.

The current principal activities of Sapphire LLC are financial consulting services as per the
Enterprise Registration Certificate.

Diameond IC LLC

According lo the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company No.33/NQ-HDQT dated
15 October 2020, the Board of Directors has approved the decision to establish Diamond IC
LLC. Diamond IC LLC is a one-member limited liability company incorporated under the Law
of Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0109403877
issued by the Hanol Department of Flanning and Investment on 5 November 2020. This
subsidiary has a registered charter capital of VNDS billion and the Group holds 100% equity
interest. In 2020, the Group started to contribute capital to this company and as at 31
December 2020, the Group has contributed capital with total amount of VND300 millicn.

The current principal activities of Diamond IC LLC are investment consulting and financial aid
services as per the Enterprise Registration Certificate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

4.1

4.2

4.3

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (continued)
Establishment of new subsidiaries (continued)

Topaz LLC

According to the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company No.33/NQ-HDQT dated
15 October 2020, the Board of Directors has approved the decision to establish Topaz LLC.
Topaz LLC is a one-member limited liability company incorporated under the Law of
Enterprise of Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0108403984
issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on 5 November 2020. This
subsidiary has a registered charter capital of VNDS billion and the Group holds 100% equity
interest. In 2020, the Group started to contribute capital to this company and as at 31
December 2020, the Group has contributed capital with total amount of WYND300 million.

The current principal activites of Topaz LLC are to plan, to investigate, to construct, to consult
project management and to manage construction investment costs as per the Enterprise
Registration Certificate.

Disposal of subsidiaries
Partially disposal of Chau Son J5C

On 15 October 2020, the Group completed the transfer of 10% of ils capital contribution in
Chau Son JSC to four individuals with a total consideration of VND100 billion, thereby
reducing the Group's equity interest in this company from 100% to 90%.

On 2 November 2020, the Group contributed an additional VND100 billion, equivalent to
10,000 shares in Chau Son JSC, while the shareholders did not participate in this capital
contribution, resulting in an increase the equity interest of the Group in Chau Son JSC from
S90% to 90.91%,

©On 30 November 2020, the Group completed the transfer of 10,025,000 shares, equivalent to
9.32% equity interest of the Group in Chau Son JSC to two individuals for a consideration of
WND2Z05 billion, thereby reducing the Group's equity interest in this company from 90.91% to
81.59%.

Gainf{loss) arising from these transactions is recognized in undistributed earnings and non-
controlling interests on the consolidated balance sheet.

Partially disposal of Haf Phat Real Estate Investment & Trading JSC

On 31 December 2020, the Company completed the transfer of 14.2 million shares, equivalent
to 20% charter capital of Hai Phat Real Estate Investment & Trading JSC to a corporate
counterparty for a consideration of VND312 .4 billion. Accordingly, the ownership of the Group
in this company decreased from 95.78% to 75.78%.

Gainf{loss) arising from these transactions is recognized in undistributed earnings and non-
controlling interests on the consolidation balance sheet.

Other significant events

In February 2020, the Prime Minister of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam officially announced
the epidemic of acute respiratory infections caused by Coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19"). Since
then, the complicated developments of Covid-19 have greatly affected the Group's operation
and business activities. The Group has been undertaking initiatives to reduce cosls, re-
organize business operations during the pandemic, as well as developing and adjusting
business plans that are suitable with the current situation and for the next fiscal year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

5.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

Cash on hand 24,979 744 046 26,392,197 255
Cash at banks (*) 378, 117,790,101 317,755,444 968
Cash equivalents (**) 200,000,000,000 58,797,014 322

TOTAL 603,097,534,147 402,944,656,545

(*) As at 31 December 2020, cash at bank of the Group included VND150 billion is being
blocked at Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Hoan Kiem
Branch to fulfill future payment obligations of a subsidiary.

(**) Cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020 are deposits in VND at commercial banks, with
a term of 1 month at an interest rate of 3% per annum (as at 31 December 2019: from 5%
to 5.5% per annum).

Mon-cash transactions which affect the cash flow statement:
Currency: VWD

Current year FPrevious year

Stock dividend during the year 644,982, 770,000 -

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Currency: VD
Ending balance Beginning balance
Cost Carrying value Cost  Carrying value
Term deposits 263,019,803,286 263,019,803 286 198,860,589,235 198 860,580 235
TOTAL 263,019,803,286 263,019,803,286 198,860,585,235198,860,589,235

Term deposit as at 31 December 2020 includes bank deposits at commercial banks in VND
with terms from six months to one year, earns interest at the rates ranging from 4% to 6.3%
per annum (31 December 2019: from 6.4% to 7.4% per annum}.

As at 31 December 2020, time deposits with amount of VND240.4 billion are being used as
collateral for the Group's loans at Bao Viet Joint Stock Commercial Bank — Transaction Center
under the loan contract No.0907-2020-HDTC1-BVBOOS (Note 24),

The term deposit of VND17 billion is being used as collateral for Mai Pha new urban area
project, Lang Son city, Lang Son province at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade - Do Thanh Branch.

The term deposit of WYNDS5.1 billion is being used as collateral for loans to purchase social
houses in Phu Lam social housing urban area project, Phu Lam ward, Ha Dang district, Hanai
city under the agreement between the Group and Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam - Do Thanh Branch.

The term deposit of VNDS30 million is being used as collateral the providing of management

services at Helios Tower 75 Tam Trinh Project at Viet A Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Head
Office,
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7.

7.1

.2

BOS-DN/HM

SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES AND SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

Short-term trade receivables

Receivables from sale of inventory properties
Receivables from transferring shares
Receivables from real estate brokerage
Receivables from leasing activities and other
activities

TOTAL

In which:
Short-term trade receivables
Short-term trade receivables from refated

parties (Note 35)

Details for each customer whose balance is more
than 10% ending balance:
Frivate Construction Enterprise No. 1

Hai Phal Thu Do Investment JSC ("Hai Phat

Thu Do JSC7)
HP Land Real JSC ("HP Land JSC")
An Thinh Investment JSC

Provision for doubtful short-term trade receivables

(Note 10)

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

114,568,285 102
30,000,000,000
108,087,729,275

19,022,433,273

242,997,431,329
150,984,755,342
84,551,669,439

37,646,735,974

271,678,447 ,650

516,180,592,084

233,430,310,446
38,248,137,204

20,000,000,000

28,157, 269,777
5191,798,732

(31,358,985,508)

333,088,060,663

183,092,531.421

30,000,000,000
11,928,082,123

65,431,967,416
100,000,000,000

(30,508,901,264)

On 31 December 2020, receivables from the transfer of real estate under Hai Phat Plaza
project, Dai Mo ward, Nam Tu Liem district, Hanoi are being used as collateral for the loans

of the Group (Note 24).

Short-term advances to suppliers

Samcons Vietnam Construction and Investment

JEC
Thien An Industry Construction Investment JSC

Other suppliers
TOTAL

Provision for doubtful short-lerm trade receivables
(Note 10)

a1

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

14,555,795 307
1,856,218,744
24,057 468,231

23,251,747 815
16,031,001,600
54,444 540,175

40,469,482,282

93,727,289,390

(8,494,680,001)

Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLES

Short-term
Loan receivables from individuals (*)

Loan receivables from related parties (Note 35)

TOTAL

BO2-DMN/HMN

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

68,400,000,000 17,000,000,000
179,300,000,000 8,000,000,000
247,700,000,000 25,000,000,000

(*) This is an unsecure loan to an individual, with term from 3 to 12 months and earning interest

from 5% to 11% per annum,

OTHER RECEIVAELES

Short-term

Receivables under business co-operation
contracts and other agreement (i)
Receivables under the liquidated investment
cooperation deposit agreements (ii)
Deposits for real estate sale and brokerage
SEMVICes

Advances to employees (i)

Other short-term receivables

TOTAL

In which:
Other short-term receivables from corporate
counterparties
Other short-term receivables from related
parties (Mote 35)

Pravision for doubtful other short-term receivables

Long-term

Receivables under business co-operation
contracts (iv)

Deposits for project implementation (v)
Other long-term receivables

TOTAL

In which:
Cther long-term receivables from corporate
counterparties
Other long-term receivables from related
parties (Note 35)

Provision for doubtful other long-term receivables

32

Ending balance

370,149,362,336
829,300,000,000
134,988,526,135

84,081,418,610
20,780,042,767

Currency: VND
Beginning balance

360,000,000,000

108,936,696,480
39,584, 222 468
20,370,673,606

1,449,299,349,850

528,891,492,554

1,447 445,083 183

1,854,266,667

197,000,000,000
98,348,015,364
5,000,000

503,071,855 423

25,818,637 131

740,362,336,278
29,431,729,000

295,351,015,364

769,794,065,278

98,351,015 364
197,000,000,000

319,794,065,278
450,000,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

9 OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
{iy Balance as at 31 December 2020 includes:

*  Adeposit of VND320 billion under a cooperation contract between the Group and a
corporate counterparty for the transfer of land for real estate development: and

+  Capital contribution of VND28.8 billion according to the agreement between the
Group and a corporate counterparty to implement a potential real estate project

»  Adeposit of VND20.3 billion according to the trust investment between the Group
and a corporate counterparty for potenlial real estate project.

(i) These are receivables from the liguidation of a cooperation contracts between the Group
and certain corporate counterparties for investing real.

(i) These are advances to employees for the purpose of executing projects of the Group.

(iv] This is a deposit for a related party for the Development of My Hung — Cienco 5 Urban
Area project, My Hung commune, Tam Hung commune, Cu Khe commune and Binh
Minh commune, Thanh Oai district, Hanoi.

(v) Balance as at 31 December 2020 includes:

»  Deposils under the Agreement No.07 and 08 dated 8 May 2019 with Can Tho
Department of Planning and Investment to guarantee the implementation of the An
Binh new urban area project in Ninh Kieu district, Can Tho city, Can Tho province,

= Deposits under the Agreement MNo.2312 dated 27 May 2020 with Binh Thuan
Department of Planning and Investment to guarantee the implementation of the
Ham Tien - Mui Ne Tourism Service Center project, Phan Thiet city, Binh Thuan
province; and

¥+ Recewables under the investment cooperation contract of the Group with an

individual and a corporate counterparty related to the School and Sports area of the
Phu Lam social housing urban project.
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Currency: YND
218,100,542
1,750,000,000
1,638,000,000
1,530,000,000
3,575,680,601
8,712,780,543
Currency: VIND
Frovision

Recoverable amount

Cost
Balance

994 571,850,813

Beginning balance
1,155,666,513,800

Beginning balance

727,001,806
1.750,000,000
1,635,000,000
1.530,000,000
3.575,660,001

39,221,681,807
1,606,062,356

B,343,233,724
2,160,187 ,660,693

30,000,000,000

Prowvision

Recoverable amount

Ending balance
34

Balance

Cost
1,324,684,628,341

Ending balance

000,000

1,358 985,508
1,750,000,000
1,639,000,000
1,530,000,000
3,575,680,001
39,853,665,509
605,781,499
2,288,377,116,056

21,456,139,710

30,
941,630, 566,506

Inventory preperties under construction

Completed inventory properties
Brokerage inventories
Other inventories

- Privale Construction Enterprise No. 1
TOTAL

- Others
Total value of non-recoverable advances

- A corporate counterpary
- A corporate counlerparty
- A corporate counterpary

- Mher overdue advances

Total value of bad debls
TOTAL

BAD DEBTS
INVENTORIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
10.

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

Hai Phat Investment JSC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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11.

12.

13.

INVENTORIES (continued)

BO9-DN/HN

As at 31 December 2020, inventories of Tuy Hoa - Phu Yen project, Phu Yen province, Hal
Phat Plaza project, at Dai Mo ward, Nam Tu Liem district, Hanol city, Commercial service
public and housing Cam Binh project, Cam Binh ward, Cam Pha city, Quang Minh province,
and Ha Phong - Khe Ca Quang Minh project, Quang Minh province are being used as
collaterals for loans of the Group at joint stock commercial banks and corporate bonds (Note

24),

As at 31 December 2020, the land use rights of the Phu Hai project, Phan Thiet province are

being used as collaterals for a loan of a related party.

PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term

Provisional CIT on down payments from
customers

Selling expenses related to inventory properties
not yet handed over

Tools and suppliers
TOTAL

Long - term

Tools and supplies

Major overhaul costs

Prepaid software maintenance fees

TOTAL

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits for the investment purposes

TOTAL

In which
Deposits with a corporate counterparly

Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

2,782,826,880 3,619,138.886
1,733,045,609 12,000,258,782
1,961,199,529 2,254,166,735
6,477,072,028 17,773,564,403
9,524,848,372 8,639,416,518
7,050,694 637 10,480,288,293
957,499,996 2,234 166,665
17,533,044,005 21,353,872,176
Currency: VIND

Ending balance Beginning balance

334,000,000,000

486,150,000,000

334,000,000,000

486,150,000,000

334,000,000,000

486, 150,000,000

Balance as at 31 December 2020 includes deposit to a corporate counterparty to invest in
Ham Tien - Mui Ne Tourism Service Center project in Phan Thiet city, Binh Thuan province.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended (continued)

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

14.

Currency: VND

Tatal

QOffice equipment

Means of

transpartalicn

Machinery and
equipment

Buildings and
structures

Cost:
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(25,085,610,741)

{1,721,974,674)

(10,510,899,507)

(4,028,675,944)

(8,824,080,618)

Other decreases

Net carrying amount:

122,883,812,178

14,639,906,721 6,963,992,729 1,357 478,626

16,107,903,755

97,822,434 102
108,614,798 549

Beginning balance

128,906,601,912

550,391,286

6,333,508,322

Ending balance

In which:

726 6659589

726,665,989

Collaterals *}

(*} On 31 December 2020, certain tangible fixed assets, which are means of transportation with the carrying value of VND727 million, are being used
as collaterals for leans of the Group at Tien Phong Commercial Bank (Nofe 24).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

BO9-DMN/HN

18. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)
18.1  Investments in jointly controlled entities, assoclates (continued)
Dretails of the investments in jointly controlled entities and associates are as follows:
Cienco 5 Dai Dong A JSC BT Ha Dong LLG Tatal
Cost of investment:
Beginning balance 300,245,220,000  55,730,000,000 46.076,278,930  402,071,498,8930
Additional contribution - - 5,826607,167 5,826,607,167
Disposal (300,245,220,000) (55,750,000,000) - (356,995,220,000)
Ending balance - - 51,902,886,087  51,902.886,007
Accumulated share in post-acquisition profit of the associates:
Beginning balance 3,845,513,605 (1,875,005,102) - 1,870,508,503
Loss during the year - (889,206,465) - (889,205.4535)
Disposal (3,845 513 ,605) 2,764 211 567 - (1,081,302 038)
Ending balance = = = e
Net carrying value:
Beginning balance 304,000,733 605 53874904 BOR 46076278930 404,042,007 433
En_,ding balanme - - 51 .902,356.09? 51 .QDZ.BEE.OQT
18.2  Investments in other entities
Ownership and voting
Number of shares right (%)
Ending  Beginning Ending  Beginning
Name of entity balance balance balance balance
Hai Phat Thu Do JSC (i) 16,008,000 11,008,000 17.79 13.76
Cienco 5 6,804,520 - 15.50 -
Railways Real Estate JSC (ii) - 500,000 - 10.00

(i) According to the Resolution No.23/NQ-HBQT dated 24 July 2020 of the Board of
Directors, the Group has completed the additional capital contribution in Hal Phat Thu Do
JSC with the amount of YNDSO0 billion, equivalent to 5,000,000 shares, Because some
other shareholders did not contribute capital according to their ownership ratio, the
Group's ownership in Hai Phat Thu Do JSC increased from 13.76% to 17.7%%,

(i) On 25 March 2020, the Group completed the transfer of all shares in the Railway Real
Estate JSC to a related party for a total of consideration of YND5 billion, no profit/{loss)
arising from this transaction.

As at 31 December 2020, all other investments are being used by the Group as collaterals for
the related party's loan.

Due to insufficiency unavailability of necessary information, the Group has not yet been able
to determine the fair value of these investments as at 31 December 2020,

41
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

Currency: VWD

Beginning balance

SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES AND ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

MOTES TO THE CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Short-term trade payables

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

19.
19.1

Ending balance
Amount

501,330,423,572

Payable amount
391,448 804,599

Amount

391,448,804,589

Payable amotnt

501,330,423,572
163,701,726 450

23,493,115910

Shori-term trade payables
- Ms Nguyen Heong Nhung

23,493,115,910

163,701,726 450

14,332,163,010

23,493,115910
14,332,163,010

3,277,221482

23,453,115 910
3277,221,492

- Joint venlure of Sacoform Cansfruclion Equipment JSC and

T5Q Techco JSC

- No.1 Song Hong Construction JSC
- Other suppliers

- TSQ Techco JSC

24,350,671,310
329,272,854,369

24,350,671,310
329,272,854 359

310,858,358,720

310,858,355,720

12,619,879,723
404,068,684,322

12,619,879,723

404,068,684,322

3,718,961.070
505,049,404,642

3,718,981.070

505,049,404,642

Short-term payables to related parties (Nofe 35)

TOTAL

Short-term advances from customers

15.2

These are mainly balance of down payments from customers who signed contracts to purchase real estate properties at Hai Phat Plaza high-rise

Currency. VWD

project, Phu Lam social housing urban area project, Phu Luong new urban area project and other projects of the Group.

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS

20.

Ending balance

Payment made/Offsetting
during the year

Payables for the year

Beginning balance

Payables

26,575,652,361
10,082,892,593

104,025,150,003

151,894,163,127
150,932,587,714

100,191,273,665
126,559,975,319

155,728,079,475
50,948,274,756

Corporate income tax

Value added tax
Personal income tax

20,048,530,381
317,671,300,400

24,672,150,052
317,671,300,400

5,459,373,332

2,803,982 622
143,487,717,979

Land fees payable to the State

Others

7.337,997,775
647,884,698,418

10,141,880,397
579,236,688,834

212,135,727,563

TOTAL
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

20.

21.

22,

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Beginning  Receivables for
the year

balance
Receivables

Value added tax 90,602,311,391

4,351,446,421 6,434 491,951

BOS-DNHMN

Currency: VND

Offsetting
during the year Ending balance

88,518,265,861

Corporate
income tax - 609,562,469 . 608,582,469
TOTAL 90,602,311,391 4,961,028 890 6,434,491,951 89,128,848 330
SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Currency: VND

Accrued future costs of inventory properties sold
Accrued construction costs

Accrued interest supporting cost

Accrued loan interests

Accrued advertising and commission fees

Other accrued expenses

TOTAL

In which:
Short-term accrued expenses for other parties

UNEARNED REVENUE

Short-term
Unearned revenue from leasing activities

TOTAL

Long-term
Unearned revenue from leasing activities

TOTAL

43

Ending balance

Beginning balance

46,208, 431,283  231,684,347,100
44 985,312 885 13,882,138,188
20,456,475,133 24,513,036,062
16,146,685 821 34,185,316,964
13.942,006,383 8,001,902 543
15,576,736,578 4,928,303,201
157,315,648,093  317,195,044,058
167,315,648083  317,195,044,058
Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance
13,823,465,534 9,748,964, 413
13,823,465,534 9,748,964,415
4,342 659,144 -
4,342,659,144 £

Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

23,

OTHER PAYABLES

Short-term
Maintenance fund (i)
Payment and collection on behalf
Payables under business co-operation contracls
Deposits, borrowings and other agreements
related to real estate projects

Other short-term payables

TOTAL

in which:
Cther short-lerm payables lo cuslomers
Other short-term payables to relaled pariies
(Mote 35)

Long-term
Payables under trust investment contracts (ii)
Deposits from long-term lease contracts (iii)

Payables under business co-operation contracts

TOTAL

In which:
Cther long-term payables to other parties
Other long-term payables to related parties
(Note 35)

Ending balance

67,998,246,879
31,512,076,223
16,842 8956,202

15,556,033,875
14,519,761,111

BOS9-DN/MHMN

Currency; VND

Beginning balance

76,150,812,973
30,328,275,000

9,895 443,166
38,067,611,144

146,429,974,290

154,442,142,283

145 141,931,806

153,852 081,364

1,288,042,384 490,060,919

- 202,200,220,000
178,199,761,578 148,275,754 877
45242848602  40,358,600,000
223,442,610,180  391,834,574,677

223,442,610,180

189,634, 354,677
202,200,220,000

{i) These are maintenance funds for handed over apartment units sold at the Group's real
estate projects. These maintenance funds will be transferred to the building management

boards,

(i) Balance as at 31 December 2019 is the payable to a related party under the contract
No.342/2015/HB-UQ regarding the investment trust to acquire share capital in another

entity. This trust investment has been terminated in 2020 (Note 18.2)

(i} Balance as at 31 December 2020 includes long-term deposits from customers under the
leases contracts of social housing apartments at Phu Lam social housing project, Phu
Lam ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi and under leasing contracts for commercial floor of
The Pride building, An Hung new urban area, La Khe ward, Ha Dong district, Hanoi.
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

28.

28.2

29,

30.

REVENUES (continued)

Finance income

Gain from disposal of financial investments (i)

Interest income
TOTAL

Current year

127.463,411,5867

20,522 810,933

BO9-DMN/HMN

Currency: VND
Previous year

466,922,473,812
8,023,907,286

147,986,222,500

475,946,381,098

(i} Gain from disposal of financial investments includes:

- Gain of VNDG5.45 billion arising from the transfer of contributed capital for investment
co-operation in the Southwest Ba Ria - Vung Tau eco-urban project to a corporate
counterparty under the agreement No.35/2020/BBTT dated 26 March 2020,

- Gain of VND52.2 billion arising from the transfer of all shares in Dai Dong A JSCto a
corporate counterparty under the contract No,36/2020/HDCN dated 25 March 2020,

COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Cost of inventory properties sold

Cost of real estate brokerage services

Cost of managing and operating services
Cost of leasing activities and rendering other
services

TOTAL

FINANCE EXPENSES

Interest expenses
Bond issue costs
Loss from transfer of shares

TOTAL

55

Current year

629,684 561,804
229,172,573,794
57,844,833,676

73,428,963, 177

Currency. VND

Previous year

2,674,554 857 066

155,686,460,714
12,251,768,298

78,043,864,944

990,130,932,451

2,920,546,951,023

Current year

194 625,426,154
16,263,489,840
3,845,513,605

Currency: VND
Previous year

114,252,650,136
16,614,380,307

214,734,429,599

130,867,040,443

Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

M.

32.

33

B09-DN/HN

SELLING EXPENSES AND GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling expenses

- Commission fees

External services expenses
Labor costs

Advertising, promotions expenses
- Others

General and administrative expenses
- Labor costs

- External services expenses

- Provisions

- Others

TOTAL

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other income

Gain from bargain purchase

Income from compensation, contract penalty
Income from interest sharing agreemeant
Payable written-off

Other income

Other expenses

Penalty of Tax late payment
Contract penalty

Other expenses

NET OTHER PROFIT

PRODUCTION AND OFERATING COSTS

Development costs of inventory properties
External services expenses

Labor costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Raw materials expenses

Others

TOTAL

56

Current year

15,858,796,163
4,639,534,028
4,243,326,169
1,141,617.338
58,948,050

Currency: VND

Previous year

75,421,388,287

3,573,245,550
4,470,164,088
104,984,238

25,942,221,748

84,569,782,163

55,305,745,340
37,684,465 450

9,076,033,942
15,707,054, 620

58,556.834,215
33,286,111,595
30,000,000,000
22,730,044, 458

117,773,299,352

144,572,990,269

143,715,521,100

229,142,772,432

Current year
29,262,1086,318

3,875,272,189
15,606,589,635
9,327,805,985
452,438,509

12,740,508,007
9,232 987,063
1,819,143,878
1,688,376,966

Currency: VND
FPravious year
8,251,284,731
4.477,168,004
2,164,715 7EE
1,156,487 660
452,903,299

4,063,341,564
2735147 773

1,328,193,791

16,521,598,311

4,187,943,167

Current year

1,104,324, 654,161
167,303,477 344
290,573,938,877

31,821,721,041
1,825,457 585
24,937,501,163

Currency: VND

Previous year

570,616,864 433
108,877,907 287

272,710,871,781

23,358,005,271
5,335,290,960
£4,852,791,089

1,620,886,750,176  1,045,751,730,821




Hai Phat Investment JSC

BOS9-DMNIHN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

34.

34.1

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The statutory corporate income tax (“CIT") rate applicable to the Group in the current year is
20% of taxable profit (2019: 20%), except for profit from Phu Lam social housing urban area
project, which is subject to incentive corporate income tax rate of 10% applicable for social
housing project.

The tax returns filed by the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to examination by the
tax authorities. As the application of tax laws and regulations is susceplible to varying
interpretations, the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could change
at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

CIT expenses
Currency: VND
Current year Previous year
Current tax expenses 44 384,173,361  185,206,531,271
Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior year 1,286,695 438 =
Deferred tax expensesf{income) 1,383,299,000 (5,655,119,289)
TOTAL 47,054 167,799  179,551,411,982

The reconciliation between CIT expenses and the accounting profit before tax multiplied by
CIT rate is presented below:
Currency: VND

Current year Previous year

144,665,647,010 632,518,669,714
28933129402 126,503,733,943

Accounting profit before tax
At CIT rate applicable to the Group
Impacts of adjustments:
Mon-deductible land development and
construction expenses
Impact of Decree 132/2020/ND-CP

16,653,402, 261  49,588,005,355
2,991,567,116 -
574,397,643

Penalties 1,859,244,276

Under accrual of CIT from prior year 1,286,695,438 -
Mon-deductible depreciation expenses 306,904,265 496,369,778
Impact of business combination or disposal of

financial investments in the consolidated financial

statement 216,260,408 (991,334,374)
Share of loss/{profit) from associates 177,841,293 (200,840,392)
Other non-deductible expenses 4,926,227 132,779,577

Profit for current year taxed in previous year {2,8563,712,794) =
Impact of difference in corporate income tax rates (1,397,068 ,586) 3.214,843,939
Tax reduction (7} (541,180,045) 5
Unrecognised deferred tax assets related to tax

losses in the year (193,841 462) 233,436,513

47,054,167,799 179,551,411,982

CIT expenses

ST

W

Hai Phat Investment JSC

EO9-DMN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

34,

34.1

34.2

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)
CIT expenses (continued)

(*) Accerding to the Resolution No.116/2020/QH 14 dated 18 June 2020 issued by the National
Assembly, some Company's subsidiaries are entitled to a 30% reduction of the payable CIT
amount of 2020 because their total revenue in 2020 is not larger than YMD200 billion.

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the current period. The taxable incomes
of the Company and subsidiaries are different from that reported in the consolidated income
statement because taxable income does not include taxable income or deductible expenses
for taxation purposes in other periods and also excludes non-taxable or non-deductible items
for taxation purposes. The current CIT payables of the Company and subsidiaries is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Defarred tax

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised by the Group, and the movements
thereon, during the current and previous year:
Currency: VND

Consolidated balance sheet Consolidated income statement

Beginning
Ending balance balance Current year  Previous year

Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference
related to unrealised profit
of internal transactions
within the Group

Deferred tax labilities
Termporary difference
related to unrealised proit
of intermal transactions
within the Group

5732800026 6652237706  -919437.680 6,118,980,608

(3,990,444,510) (3,526,583,190)  (463.861,320)  (463,861,319)

Net deferred tax assets  1,742,355,516  3,125,654,516

Deferred fax

rEIPEﬂSEJﬁHCﬂmE _ﬂ, 333, 259, ﬂﬂ'ﬂ} E, 555, 115,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

34.

34.3

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)
Tax losses carried forward

The Group is entitled to carry tax loss forward to offset against taxable income arising within
five years subsequent to the year in which the loss was incurred. At the balance sheet date,
the Group had aggregated accumulated tax losses of VND1,035,452,501 available for offset
against future taxable income. Details are as follows:

Currency: VND

Originating Can be Tax foss Utilized up to Unutitized at
year utitized up to amount (*) 31 December 2020 Forfeited 31 December 2020
2017 2022 232,555,427 (232,555,427) - -
2018 2023 1,056,688,700 (975,577,291) - 81,111,409
2019 2024 858,728,185 - - §58.728,185
2020 2025 95,612,907 - - 95,612,907
TOTAL 2,243,585,219 {1.208,132,718) - 1,035452,501

(*) Alltax losses are based on the annual tax finalisation that has not been inspected by the
local tax authority at the date of financial statements.

No deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of the above tax loss amount because
future taxable income cannot be ascertained at this stage.

(") Interest expenses over cap in accordance with Decree 132/2020/ND-CF.

In addition, according to Decree 132/2020/ND-CP, the Group is allowed to -;arrylinmrarr:l the
interest expenses exceeding deductible cap in the fiscal year 2020 to the following years to
offset against profits within 5 years from the year the expense is incurred. As at 31 December
2020, the Group has accumulated interest expenses exceeding deductible cap of
VND12,957,835,585 which can be used to offset against future profits. As at 31 December
2020, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets on these carried forward mtere;t
expenses because the Group cannot reliably determine the deductibility of these expenses in

the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

35.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Significant transaclions with related parties during the current year and previous year are as
below.

Currency: VND
Related parties  Relationship Transachions Current year Frevious year
HP Thang Long  Related party of Construction cost paid by - 34,319,097.510
Construction JSC  a family member off-setting between
(formerly known  of the Board of  receivables and payables
as Hai Phat Directors until 1 Construction cost paid - 53,304,901,366
Construction Movember 2019  Construction costs - 115,391,984 989
JEC) payables
Phue Thanh Under common  Construction costs 1,930,908,887 7,224 163,817
Concrete control payables
Construction and Construction cost paid 877,220,000 7.224,163,817
Trading JSC
Bea Leasing one- Under common  Revenue from sales of - 93,980,201,567
member Limited  key personnel  inventory properties
Liability Company
Dai Dong A JSC  Under common  Refund of deposit for - 20,000,000,000
contral purchasing commercial
floors
Deposit for real estate =
brokerage 8,111,346,666
Senvice fee regeivables 19,863,981.777 :
Receipt from service fee 13,872,976,368 -
Deposit off-setting 3,228,653,334
according to agreement
contract
HF Land JSC Under common  Receipls from deposit 215,000,000,000 605,000,000,000
member of the  Transferring cash to
management deposit 215.000.000,000 .
with a subsidiary Receipls from transferring :
inventory properties 254 816,534,714
Receivable from
brokerage service 105 267,481,069
Payables for goods
purchased, services used 159,876,968 9109653131
Advance for goods
purchased, services used = 41,000,000,000
Erokerage service
recsivables 12,790,857 367 -
Receipts from rental fee 14,628,606,315 -
in:oelpts from brokerage 42,966,827 305 .
Receipts from service fee 569,104,704 -
Car rental payables 356,400,000 -
Car rental paid 355,400,000 .
Debt off-setting 4 089 044 78T -
Hai Phong Under common  Capital contributed - 17,750,000,000
Development key personnel
Limited Liability
Company
BT Ha Dong LLC  Associate Capital contributed 5826607167 18,688,322,582
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transferring shares
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Hai Phat Investment JSC BO9-DN/HMN Hai Phat Investm ent JSC BOS-DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended
35. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued) 35. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Siwcant transactions with related parties during the current year and previous year are as Significant transactions with related parties during the current year and previous year are as
belows (continued): below (continued):
Currency: VND
R Ve ies Relationshi Transactions Current year P
elationshi U revious year
Related parties  Relationship Transactions Current year  Previous year TR e 5 d A
An Thinh Related party of a Receivables from - 450,000,000,000
Hai Phat Thu Do Under common  Receivables from 20,274,129,586  16,718,465,235 Investment JSC member ofthe  transferring shares
JsSC member of the  brokerage service Board of Direclors Receipts from 100,000,000,000 350,000,000,000
Board of Directors  Receipts from 5400521430 13,755697 977 of a subsidiary transferring shares
brokerage service until 17 April 2020 Receivables from - 200,000,000,000
Receivables from - 1,285,305,145 investment co-operation
leasing services contract
Receivables from loans - 8,000,000,000
Recdp “{om t s ) Hai Phat Global Under common  Brokerage fee payables 1,279,915,689 ¥
agreement conlract r of the Brokerage fee paid 2,071,576,632 -
Receivables from 202,200,220,000 - B et il itaad
transferring confract a subsidiary
Debt off-setting 202,200,220,000 -
Receivables from 19,184 504,015 . . . X "
management and Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
service fee " :
Receipts from 16,883,006,451 : During the year, the Group has purchased, provided, and acquired, goods and services, and
ma“?@ﬁma“‘ and has also been invelved in payment on behalf from and to related parties at mutually agreed
service fee :
Collection on behalf fee  13,532,798,047 - Eh
payables ’ ; i
Collection on behalf fee 12,733,583,582 - Outstanding receivable, payable balances at 31 December 2020 are unsecured, "f'lgtege“;:?j
paid and will be settled in cash. During the year, the Group has not made any provision for dou
Rental fee payables 1,281,769,340 - debts relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 December 2019: nil). This assessment
Receivables from loan 854,000,000 o is undertaken each financial year through the examination of the financial position of the
npsrest related parties and the market in which the related parties operate.
Thanh Mhan Under common  Construclion payables 4170127936 36,758,537,034
Commercial and  member of the Construction paid 697,020,357  50,240,878,885
Construction management with Advance 6,707 623,361 -
Investment JSC. a subsidiary until  Payment of advance - 50,000,000,000
27 March 2020 Fayment by off-selting = 10,909,192.270
receivables
Receivables under - 250,000,000,000
business co-operation
contract
Mrs. Tran Thuy  Related party of  Transferring 115.000,000.000 -
Anh key member until  coniributed capital
20 April 2020 Receipts from 115,000,000,000 -
transferring contributed
capital
Mr. Le Viet Dung Member Transferring 5,000,000.000 -
contributed capital
Receipts from 5.000,000,000
transferring contributed
capital
Mr. Do Quy Hai  Chairman Assets purchasing 6,500,000,000
payables
Azsels purchasing paid 6,500,000,000
Mrs. Tran Thi Related party of  Receipts from loan 50,000,000,000 -
Thai Binh key member
Mrs. Mguyen Thi  Related party of  Receivables from 20,000,000,000 -
Thu Huang key member transferring shares
Receipts from 20,000,000,000 -
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Hai Phat Investment JSC

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year end then ended

35.

36.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

BO9-ON/MHN

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors, the Management and Audit Committee:

Position

Chairman

Standing Vice Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Independent member

Deputy General Director until 27 June 2020
and a member of the Board of Directors
from 27 June 2020

Independent member

Independent member cum Chairman of the
Audit Committee

Independent member

General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

TOTAL

EARNINGS PER. SHARE

Currency: VND

Remuneration
Current year Previous year
2,760,000,000 2,627,920,000
834,782,609 1,712,731,000
690,000,000 725,340,000
1,185,750,000 862,947,000
306,000,000 411,107,000
942 224 205 988,308,933
208,695,652 411,107,000
247,219,000 -
72,734,694 -
2,040,126,999 1,570,604, 980
406,651,911 971,872 675
406,872,376 987,878,419
938,902,005 500,628,736
641,165,883 -
504,159,250 -
B01, 673,478 -
591,250,181 -
13,578,208,243 10,907,598,743

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit/(loss) after tax for the
year aftributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group (after adjusting for the bonus and
welfare fund) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
ocutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
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The Group used the fallowing infermation to calculate earnings per share and diluted earnings

per share:

Met profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders '

Adjustment for remuneration of Board of
Directors {*)

Adjustment for appropriation to bonus and
welfare fund (%)

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
adjusted for the effect of dilution

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(excluding treasury shares) for basic earnings
per share

Effect of stock dividend paid in 2020 (**)

Woeighted average number of ordinary shares
(excluding treasury shares) for basic
earnings per share, after adjustment

Effect of dilution

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
{excluding treasury shares) adjusted for the
effect of dilution

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Currency: VND

Frevious year

Currency (Restated)

92 293,322 3688 446 702 265 689
(6,398,285,575) (6,936,669,723)
- (19,748 623 225)
85,895,036,813 420,016,972, 741
264,494 582 199,996,305

- 64,498 277

264,494,582 264,494,582
264 494 582 264,494 582
325 1,588

325 1,588

{(*) Metprofit used to compute earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
restated from the previously reported figures in the current year's consolidated financial
statements to reflect the actual allocation to bonus and welfare funds and remuneration
of the Board of Directors from 2019 retained earnings as approved in the Shareholders
Meeting's Resolution No.02/2020/NQ-DHDCD dated 27 June 2020,

Net profit used to compute earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
adjusted to reflect the remuneration of the Board of Directors from 2020 profit as per the
Annual Shareholders Meeting's Resolution No.02/2020/NQ-DHDCD dated 27 June 2020
and the Extracrdinary Shareholders Meeting's Resolution No.03/2020/NQ-DHDCD dated

21 Movember 2020,
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(**) The number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earnings per share includes the

36.

change in the number of shares issued from the decision to pay dividends in 2018 and

2019 (Note 26.4).

transactions between the reporting date and the date of completion of these consolidated

Other than the above, there have been no ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
financial statements.

37

SEGMENT INFORMATION

risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and

services rendered. The operating businesses are organised and managed according to the
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group's
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.

Real estate activities includes sales of real properties at the Group's real estate projects

as well as other real estate investment activities.

Real estate brokerage activities includes providing brokerage services and other related

sernvices.

Leasing service and other activities includes providing leasing office, shopping mall and

other related services of the Group's real estate projects.
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Total
3,431,836,907 385

BOS-DNMHN
Currency: VD
3,431,936,907 385
427,624 376,162
204,694,283 552
632 518 669,714
(179,5571,411,982)
452,967 257,732
5,690,560 862,216
5,395,707,346
122,883,812,178
10,284,781,765

1,138,080,487,159 1,139,080 497,159

924,335 263,625 1.139,080,487,159 §,820,641,459 375
1,326,065, 661,855

2,510, 776,130,858

2.510,776,130,858

elimination
175,107,976, 710 2.510,776,130,858 3.836,841,692,723

5,395,707, 346
122,683,812,178
10,284,781, 165

Adjustment and
(512,521,414,703)

Leasing services
and ather refated
activities
90,456,909, 323
33,966,051,900 (512,521,414,703)
124,452 061,223
(132,474,305)
924, 335,263,625
175,107,976,710

Real estale
30,616,198,580
364, 277,924,761
177, 744,367,871
221,827,023,086
221,527,023,086
50,579,615,093
50,579,615,093
7

333.461,726.181

activities brokerage achvities

Real estats

447 739,164,223
3,455727.436.104
280,212,482 596

3,007,888.271,881
4,5644,288,675,505
4.,544,288,675,505
1,100, 377,870,062
1,100,377,970,062
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

BOS-DNHN

ar. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

") Unallocated income/(expenses) mainly comprise finance income, finance expenses,
general and administrative expenses, other income and other expenses.

{**}  Unallocated assets comprise cash and cash equivalent, short-term investments, other
receivables, tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets, short-term loan
receivables and deferred tax assets,

{(***) Unallocated liabilities comprise statutory obligations, payables to employees, bonus
and welfare fund, deferred tax liabilities, loans, certain other payables and accruals,

38. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments on capital contribution

Currency. VND

Capital conlribution commitment of the Group

Qutstanding

Registered commitment as at

No  Name of invesles charter capital Amount % 31 Dec 2020

1 BT Ha Deng

Limited Liability

Company 350,000,000,000  175.000,000,000 50  123,097,113,903

TOTAL 175,000,000,000 123,097,113,903

Commitments related to development of real estate projects

The Group has signed contracts related to the development of the Group's real estate
projects. The total commitment under these contracts as at 31 December 2020 is estimated
at VND7V2.3 billion.

Commitments under operating leases where the Group is a lessee
The Group, as the lessee, has signed a number of office rental, vehicle rental under operating

lease agreements. The minimum lease commitment as at the balance sheet dates under the
operating lease agreements are as follows.

Segmen! nel profit before tax
Unallocated incomeffexpenses) (*)
Net profit before corporale income tax
Corporate income tax expense

Sales to external customers
Sales to internal customers

Total revenue

Results;
Unallocated liabilities [***)

Tangible ficed assels

Costs of fixed assels
Depreciation

Net profit for the year
Segment assels
Unallocated assets (**)
Segment liabilitias
Total liabilities

As at 31 December 2019 and for the year ended.
Total assets

Assets and liabilities
Other segment information

The following tables present revenue and profit and certain assets and liabilities information regarding the Group's business segmenis
Revenue

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SEGMENT INFORMATION (cantinued)

as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended
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aT.

Currency: VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance

Less than 1 year 14,548,809,340 8,560,249,661
From 1- 5 years 30,877,235,045 11,586,047,269
More than 5 years 39,789,392,090 37,612,026,868
TOTAL 85,315,436,476 57,760,323,818
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

38.

COMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Commitments under operating leases where the Group is a lessor

The Group, as the lessor, has signed a number of lease contracts of apartments and
commercial floor under operating lease agreements. The fulure minimum rental receivables
as at the balance sheet dates under the operaling lease agreements are as follows:

Currency: VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance

Less than 1 year 33,100,948 458 33,011,310,143
From 1- 5 years 114,825,179,028 96,247 376,576
More than 5 years 42 426,347,559 86,679,314,549

TOTAL 190,352,475,045 215,938,001,268

Other commitments
Commitment to investment contract/principle agreements

According to the contract No. 215/HBHTET/ 2018/HQC-HP dated 29 May 2018 between the
Group and a corporate counterparty, the Group commits to co-operate with this party to
develop Ham Tien — Mui Ne Tourism service Center project. According to which, the Group
commit to transfer to this party an amount of VIND388 billion. As at 31 December 2020, the
remaining commitment is VIND54 billion.

According to the contract No.203/2019/TTHT/HP-PA signed on 23 December 2019 between
the Group and Phuc Anh Limited Liability Company regarding the co-operation to develop
11,409.6 m2 of urban land under Fidel Park project at Ward 1, Ward 3, Dong Ha city, Quang
Tri province. The Group will contribute 50% of the expecled investment of VNDZ239 billion. As
at 31 December 2020, the remaining commitment is YND30.5 billion.

According to the contract No.159/2020/HDHTDT signed on 31 December 2020 between the
Group and a corporate counterparty on the investment co-operation, construction,
implementation, business exploitation and operation for short-term projects in 2021, the Group
will contribute VND200 billion. As at 31 December 2020, the remaining commitment is VND3
billion,

According to the contract No 196TTHTDT/HP-TV signed on 27 MNovember 2015 and
Mo 491/ TTHTDT/HP-TV signed on 11 December 2018 between the Group and a corporate
counterparty on capital contribution to receive the co-operative land with infrastructure with
an area of 6,220 48 m2 including 37 adjacent land lots and villas, the total value of capital
contribution that the Group will contribute is WYND108.8 billion. As at 31 December 2020, the
remaining commitment is VIND1 billion.

Commitment according to the profect implementation guarantee

According to the agreement to guarantee the implementation of project No.07 and 08 dated
8 May 2019 between the Group and Can Tho Department of Planning and Investment for An
Binh Mew Urban Area project, Ninh Kieu district, Can Tho city, the remaining commitment for
this deposit is VND30 billion.

According to the agreement No.2312/SKHDT-HTOT dated 27 May 2020 between the Group
and the Phan Thiet Department of Planning and Investment to ensure the implementation of
the Ham Tien - Mui Ne tourist service center project in Phan Thiet city, the remaining
commitment is VND95 billion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2020 and for the year then ended

a9,

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There iz no matter or clrcuma_lance thal has arisen since the consolidated balance sheet date
that requires adjustment or disclosure in the consclidated financial statements of the Group.

In the first quarter of 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic continued to spread o many countries
causing widespread effecls, creating many challenges for many industries as well as socieryj
The Gmup assessed the overall impact of the epidemic on its entire operations and tock all
pessible measures lo mitigate the negative impact of the pandemic on the Group's employees
and operations. The Group is constantly monitoring the development of COVID-18 in order to
respond proaclively, promptly and appropriately. The widespread of COVID-19 is expected to
have a negative impact on the global economy as well as the Group's revenue and profitability
in 2021, however, the Group cannot quantify the impact of this-preblem as at the date of this
consolidated financial stalements.

b

Ta Thi Hoan Le Hong Son
Preparer Chief Accountant

~Pham Huy Thong
Deputy General Director

Hanoi, Vietnam

31 March 2021
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